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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting of April 21, 2009 is now in session. The time is 9:04.
At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the Members that are here
this morning. We do have Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Welcome back. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members
Johnson and our Chairman Mateo. We do have personnel from the
Administration with us. We do have the Budget Director, Mr. Fred Pablo
and our First Deputy Corporation Counsel, Traci Fujita Villarosa. Again
supporting the Committee for the last several months now are Gayle
Revels and Lance Taguchi, Legislative Analysts, and Ms. Yvette
Bouthillier, our Committee Secretary.
Members, we do have public testimony this morning, but before I go into
public testimony, I just want to recap comments that I made yesterday.
You know, I, I understand that the Chair's proposal has hit home really,
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really hard and one of the things that this Chairman is responsible for is to
be fmancial. . financially responsible for the County of Maui.
In light of the proposed reduction in the TAT of $18 million, this
Chairman had proposed a budget that is very demanding on the County.
You got to be mindful though that we need to continue our County core
services and it's not easy to balance the County services that we provide
and many County and the non-profit organizations that provide services to
what the County cannot provide for those unfortunate people. And again,
this Chairman had indicated that we will have no real property tax increase
as proposed by the Mayor and, and this Chairman. And what the
Chairman had done was provide services to those elder, to elderly and
early childhood type programs as well as affordable housing, not
affordable housing but affordable rental programs, which, which are I
consider safety net along with food programs. So, I thought I'd provide
you with that comments early this morning so all of you can understand
the direction that we take in regards to the possibility of losing our
$18 million TAT. We need to be responsible to this County and the
people of this County.
So, with that, the Chair is going to call for public testimony. But before
we go into public testimony, for those of you that are providing public
testimony this morning, you have three minutes to provide public
testimony. If you could identify yourself and the organization that you
represent, the Committee will appreciate that. So, with that, the Chair
would like to call Rosie Vierra.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. VIERRA: Good morning, thank you. My name is Rosie Vierra. I'm the
Program Coordinator of the Dental Hygiene Program, which is one of
many Allied Health programs at Maui Community College and I'm here
speaking in behalf of all of the Allied Health programs. We are, MCC
Dental Hygiene Program is possible because of your past support. We're
the only associate of science degree in dental hygiene in the State of
Hawaii. We've come many times before the Council and so I know all of
you know what we've said in the past and I'm mostly here today to thank
you for your support. I know we're in really difficult times and we just
ask for your continued support and thank you again for all of your help.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Vierra, thank
you for being here. You stated that MCC has the only associate of science
dental degree in this State. None, none of the other community colleges
have it?
MS. VIERRA: No, sir, we are the only, our program just became accredited. We
are the only associate of science, which means it's a two year degree in the
State of Hawaii. University of Hawaii has a dental hygiene program, but
it's a BS degree.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Thank you so much for that
information. I didn't realize that was so, but thank you.
MS. VIERRA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here this morning.
MS. VIERRA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Suzette Robinson.
MS. ROBINSON: Good morning, Members of the Council. Thank you again for
allowing me to speak. My name is Suzette Robinson. I'm the
Vice-Chancellor of Academic Affairs at Maui Community College and as
Rosie said we have been before you before. But again, we want to make
public our, our appreciation for the support that you have given Maui
Community College over the last few years. Our Chancellor, Dr. Clyde
Sakamoto, would have been here this morning, but he's involved in a new
technology program that we hope will put computers in the hands of our
students, and right now it's in the midst of, of how shall I say it? The, the
devil is always in the details, you know, you have an idea and now we got
to put it into place and that's what he's doing right now. But knowing our
Chancellor, he will be here and talking with you over the next couple of
days.
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I'm here just to tell you that we understand. We hear the tough decisions
that you have make. We, we certainly empathize with the kinds of
situations you are in. We know that you will be trying to make the very
best decisions for the people of Maui County. And at the same time we
ask if you could again consider our, our request for MCC programs,
especially those that deal with our Cooperative Education Program, which
allows our students to have real life work experience that is so critical
right now.
Our allied health as Rosie talked about the Dental Hygiene, the Dental
Assisting, and the Nursing Programs, as well as the Aging with Aloha
Program, because we know that all of these things are investments in our
future, and we are committed to make sure that these are the very best
programs for the students so that they, when they become graduates they
will become very much a part of our contributing members of our
community. So, any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. ROBINSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Jo-Ann Espiritu.
MS. ESPIRITU: Good morning and thank you. I'd like to thank the County
Council for supporting our Co-op Education Program for the internship for
the County of Maui and just to say that it has, I have benefited from it
because I am reinventing myself as a single mom with seven children and
three grandchildren. And this program has allowed me to broaden my
horizons. And so, now by spring of next year, I'll be going on for my
bachelors. And I just wanted to say that this program has helped me to
make these decisions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here.
MS. ESPIRITU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Cyrilla Pascual.
MS. PASCUAL: Good morning, Councilmen Thank you for having me here to
testify. I'd just like to say thank you for your support for the Maui
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Cooperative Education Program. And before I forget, I am the Program
Coordinator for Cooperative Education and also the Department Chair for
the Business and Hospitality Department.
I just want to say that this partnership with our program provides our
students an opportunity to learn about government and public service
careers through internships, which utilize their education and academic
skills, and the County benefits from the help and current skills the interns
bring to their field sites in different departments. The community benefits
from understanding the interns that develop through the civic engagement.
They become better members of the community because they saw
government from the inside. I also like to emphasize that the students do
earn credits. They need to pay for the course and they also earn a stipend.
Thank you. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you, Cyrilla. Next testifier is Sheron Lehuanani
Bissen.
MS. BISSEN: Aloha and good morning everyone.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. BISSEN: I join the song of mahalo this morning from our counterparts at
Maui Community College and they, actually, I think, the second verse
would read partnership. Without the partnership of the County of Maui,
all these programs that we mentioned this morning would not exist. In
fact, they would cease to exist. I think we realize that you have tough
decisions to make, among them, this County grant for the education of our
future leaders. I wanted to make sure that the Members were aware that in
this grant the college bears no fees and no costs for faculty. I'm here and
not paid at all by the grant, although I assist. Anything to do with the
faculty wages or our benefit packages are excluded from the assistance
you give us in this grant partnership. All of the monies go directly to
students like Jo-Ann Espiritu.
Thirty-two years ago you made some tough decisions to partner and at that
time you partnered with the Maui Chamber of Commerce and you
partnered with the Jaycees. Though your monies, I was able to be a
product of a scholarship program, which paid completely for my
educational process. I would not be standing here a graduate of Maui
Community College and a graduate of U.H. with a bachelor's in
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Journalism if it was not for your partnership. So, I encourage you to
support this and to keep it going so we can take your jobs. I mean so that
we can be future leaders down the road. Mahalo.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you, again, for testifying this morning. Next testifier is Laurie
Kimura.
MS. KIMURA: Good morning, Members of the Council. My name is Laurie
Kimura. I am the Office Assistant at the Cooperative Education Office,
very nervous. I'm not like Lehua who is such a great speaker. I'm more
behind the scenes at our office, but I witness student interns who have
been so pleased to have the experience to work in the County with their
supervisors, and I know their supervisors who have been very pleased with
them. I just want to say thank you for all the support that we've received
over the years. I'm new to the program but Wallette Pellegrino and
Cyrilla have both put much effort and they too appreciate all the help that
we've gotten from the County. So, thank you, again. And I do have a few
names of graduates who have gone on to work for the County and they are
Don Danley and Mike Chenney, Lori Wright, Crystal Sakai, Kathy Paz,
Ed FooSum, Kyle Kimizuka, and I believe Celeste Guillerimo. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, I, I thought you was going pronounce my name too. Thank
you very much.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
MS. KIMURA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Fred Ruge or Ruge.
MR. RUGE: Good morning. My name is Fred Ruge and I'd like to thank
Chairman Joe Pontanilla and the rest of the Council for allowing me to
come and bring an update on the proposal for the Maui Appreciation
Fund, Military Appreciation Fund.
We have a broad community support for this program. I'm a member of
the Maui Disabled Veteran's organization. We have about 300 members
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and they've submitted a letter here on the first page, and the president of
the organization is Ned Purdy, and our organization's offered to verify and
do all the paperwork necessary to qualify any of these veteran's who are
returning. Then also I met on March 30 th with the Maui Veteran's Council
and they voted a resolution unanimously in support of the Maui County
Military Appreciation Fund.
I'm also on the board, Advisory Board of the Salvation Army and the
Salvation Army supports this proposal 100 percent. And we do have a 18
bed emergency shelter for men at the center and a large share of these men
are veterans. And I'd like to thank both the captain and his wife are Mark
and Cathy who are here in the audience and I'd like to thank them for
everything that the Salvation Army is doing for our veterans. And I
support all the programs of the Salvation Army.
And then finally, I have a letter of support from approximately 125
veterans and these are all veterans that I know most of them personally. I
know their families and I'll give you an example. One of the veteran's
that signed the support, I know a lot of you know him His name is Ole
Anderson. He is a retired school teacher and principal and he also is a
veteran of the Battle of the Bulge and he told me personally that he knows
a lot of these young people from school that are now serving over in Iraq.
And then also, believe it or not, I got a call at 5 o'clock this morning from
a wife of a veteran and this veteran is Mitch. . . (inaudible). ... He's
Hawaiian; he was born on Molokai; he served in the Korean War. And
she called at 5 o'clock this morning to apologize for not returning the
letters of support because her husband's in the hospital at Tripler and
they're putting a new knee in there, which was damaged during the
Korean War. So, we do have a broad support and I would appreciate it
and do respect and ask this Council to give high priority to our returning
veterans.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. RUGE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Fred. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you, again, for being here this morning.
MR. RUGE: Thank you.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Cheryl Okuma.
MS. OKUMA: Good morning, Committee Chair Pontanilla and Council
Members. Thank you for today's opportunity to testify. We have some
concerns regarding the Committee's recommended cuts and I'd like to
address them. We will follow this up with something in writing to you as
well too.
But first of all in terms of Environmental Management Administration, we
see that there's a proposed cut of $10,000. The one thing we'd like to
point out to you is that salaries and wages makes up 70 percent of our
operating budget. Our office rent makes up 20 percent of our operating
budget. And we have an estimated, in terms of nondiscretionary funds,
approximately $545,000 nondiscretionary funds. In the end what we net
out is about $37,000. A $10,000 cut leaves us with $27,000 for the
remainder of the year to deal with whatever else we need for the office and
unanticipated circumstances.
I'd like to spend most of the attention here on the cuts suggested for the
Solid Waste Division, which you know is one of most heavy, heavily
regulated industries. In terms of priority, I tried to point that out to you.
The Assistant Division Chief that is a high priority for our Department at
this time. Currently, we have recruited to fill that position. An
advertisement went out, which we have paid for and the application
deadline is in fact today. And so, our request is to be able to continue in
terms of filling for that position.
Our next priority position, it's indicated as an Accountant III position.
However, that is being redescribed as an Accountant I. Any delay in
hiring for this position impacts on our residential billing and commercial
billing functions. In addition, we have a utility billing system that we
have been working on and expected to come on line in the near future and
it will be important for us to be able to move forward with this hire.
The next position I would like to mention is a Safety Compliance Officer
that is a permit requirement, required by Department of Health.
Fourthly, I'd like to mention that there was a deletion of an expansion
position for the Recycling Specialist. We were previously here to provide
recommendation that instead that be an Engineer V position to support the
implementation of the Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan, which
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you heard on February 24 th and supported. We would request an unfunded
position for an Engineer V, an unfunded expansion position.
Turning then to Page 5, the Landfill Disposal Program, we noticed a
deletion of several heavy equipment. First bear in mind that all heavy
equipment is tied to our ability to comply with permit requirements and
regulations. We noticed that dozers have been, funding has been
eliminated as well as a water truck for Molokai. Our priority is the water
truck for Molokai. That is important for us to comply with our permit and
for safety reasons.
Fourthly, we are also currently in union consultation on the landfill
working site, working supervisors. We currently have no supervisors in
our rural areas of Hana, Molokai, and Lanai, and I'd just like to point out
that reducing that funding and delay does impact in terms of our ability to
supervise and manage those rural landfills.
Next there's mention of a Solid Waste Collection Supervisor. We were
not certain what the position is being referred to, but we believe that's our
Lahaina position. That position was filled last year in November and so
there's currently a person in that position.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. OKUMA: Also, the deletion of your funding for the Refuse Collector
position, that is a critical position for operations of refuse collection.
And lastly, the 96-gallon carts, we do need as a priority $100,000 at a
minimum for 1,300 carts in order to be able to do replacement in the
Automated Refuge Program and open new accounts. Without that, we
would not be able to open new accounts and do replacement in the
Automated Refuse Program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? Member Medeiros followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Director, thank you for being here this
morning. I just have a question on the carts. What is your current
inventory of what exist in the carts that have not been assigned to
residences?
MS. OKUMA: Four.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You have four?
MS. OKUMA: Oh, I'm sorry, four...(pause)...400.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Four hundred and with this budget item that
you have requested, it would be able to purchase how many carts?
MS. OKUMA: One hundred thousand carts [sic] would get us, I'm sorry, it
would get us 1,300 carts, $100,000 would get us 1,300 carts. Those carts
would be needed in order to do replacement for damaged carts or carts that
are lost, in addition, to opening new accounts. For example, when there
are areas of new, new development, new subdivisions, in order for people
to open accounts, we would need to be able to issue them carts. We
wouldn't be able to do that if we have no carts available.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Director. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you,
Ms. Okuma for being here this morning. We all had a little bit of
questions about this when it was brought up yesterday. I'm particularly
interested in deleting the funding for the 96-gallon green carts. I know
that that's to try and get the recycling, a better recycling of the green
waste. Can you tell us how many carts you were planning to buy and what
the impact of reducing this funding will be?
MS. OKUMA: Well, $400,000, each cart is about $100 so that, that gives you
some idea.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MS. OKUMA: But, yes, thank you for bringing that up. Part of, part of looking
at that was to be able to pilot a Green Waste Program. That information
that we get would be very valuable for us as we then move forward in
terms of negotiating with the union. We would need to be able to work
out an agreement with the union to bring out that program permanently.
But we would also need to, it would be useful for us to have some
information. So, the thought was to at least be able to pilot in particular
areas to get what was needed and that would help us move forward.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Alright, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair has one question. Have you started
negotiations with the union in regards to this program?
MS. OKUMA: Not on the Green Waste Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you do, do you have any idea how long it will take?
MS. OKUMA: Well, I'm told maybe about six, six months at best.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six months at best, thank you. Members, any more
questions for the testifier at this time? If not, thank you very much.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have one question for Staff. The sheet that you gave
us, 81/2 x 14, is this the most updated information regarding vacancies in
the County of Maui?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, that list was given to us by a testifier.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
MS. REVELS: But by the Department of Personnel Services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Richard Ellis.
MR. ELLIS: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, Council Staff, ladies and
gentlemen in the audience, good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MR. ELLIS: My name is Richard Ellis. I have owned a timeshare in the Maui
Sunset in Kihei since 1981. On the mainland, I live in the small city of
Issaquah, which is 17 miles east of Seattle. We are also in King County,
Washington, which by population count is the largest county of any of the
39 in the State of Washington.
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I thank you this morning for giving me an opportunity to appear before
you and share with you some thoughts and opinions on equality in real
property taxation.
Let me take you back 156 years to 1853. In the 1853 Organic Act, which
established the government for the Washington Territory, the Congress of
the United States demanded that the government of the new territory
establish a tax system that was equitable for all the residents in that
territory. This was done so that the residents that lived there at the time
could not propose or impose a disproportionate tax on the new arrivals
coming in to the territory. When Washington State was organized in
1889, they took on the same tax program that had been used in the
Washington Territory. There is an additional item on the uniformity of
taxation I would like to mention and that is not only the rate but a good
appraisal system that equally appraises the property for all property
owners.
On a personal basis, this means that I have the same tax rate on my little
two bedroom condominium that Bill Gates, the founder, co-founder of
Microsoft Corporation pays on his multi-million dollar mansion.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. ELLIS: It is also the same rate as the Boeing Aircraft Company pays on
their properties.
Secondly, beyond the principle of uniformity, the Washington voters put
into law a limit on the amount of taxes that could be collected on a parcel
and then that rate was set at 1 percent, which is equal to $10 per 1,000 of
assessed value.
When I purchased my timeshare in Kihei, Maui County had this same tax
system. Then the Hawaii Supreme Court ruling on Tax Appeal Case
97-023 dated May 11, 1999 states: the County of each Council, County
shall increase or decrease the tax rate applicable in the County using the
following method.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. ELLIS: The total revenue to be raised from real property in the County shall
be divided by the aggregate value of taxable real property within the
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County. The rate shall be expressed in terms of the tax per 1,000 of the
assessed value -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ellis.
MR. ELLIS: --of taxable real property -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ellis, can you conclude?
MR. ELLIS: --in the County provided that the applicable rate for each County
shall be computed to the nearest cent. This is what I was taught in two
real estate property tax courses that I completed, one in Washington and
one in California. In 2005, the...
CHAIRMAN PONTANILLA:
Mr. Ellis, can you conclude?
. . . (end of tape IA ). . . Is your testimony written?
MR. ELLIS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you and I think the Members have a copy of
your written testimony this morning. So, I'm going to stop you in regards
to your public testimony. I've given you enough time to provide public
testimony and, and I need to be fair to everyone here this morning.
MR. ELLIS: Can I come back at the end of the session as . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, you can. I'll allow that.
MR. ELLIS: Okay, I would like to come back. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier is Mark Merritt.
MR. MERRITT: Good morning, I'm Mark Merritt. I'm the Commanding
Officer for the Salvation Army here on Maui. I just found out yesterday
that we've been on Maui more than 100 years so that's kind of exciting
news. I want to thank you for allowing me to come this morning. I'm
humbled by the opportunity to speak with each one of you.
I'm talking about the $150,000 line item grant in the budget. I want you
to know that this money is used for food, for full-time emergency shelter,
for clothing, for hygiene products, for showers, for washers and dryers, an
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address through which homeless people can receive mail, phone for their
use, case management, and access to other agencies and referrals.
A decrease in this funding will result in a lack of basic life services to
people in need. For instance, let's just say if there is a $20,000 cut in
funding that could result in us handing out 5,714 less food bags this next
year. It could result in us handing out 8,200 less hygiene kits in the next
year or we could just in service for 147 of our homeless clients.
We need you to know that there is no surplus in our homeless budget. I
wanted to tell you this for these reasons. There's no surplus at all. We've
not asked for an increase in funding for three years. We have cut our staff
by two full-time and one part-time positions. We have terminated our
lease on an office trailer and actually moved the lady who does our stats
into the church reception area and moved the homeless supervisor into our
church nursery as an office to cut our cost. We also downsized our
outreach van to a van that's more economical to run. We have rerouted
our services.
To let you know just a little story how the entire team is trying to cut
costs, Pam and Paldy, two of our staff, were eating lunch a few months
ago, and I walked into the lunch area, and they were eating in the dark
because they didn't want to turn the lights on and use electricity. So, the
whole staff is being very careful and to this time we have cut $73,000 a
year in expenses from our homeless programs.
And while we've cut that much, I want to tell you the increase in our
services over the past three years. We've had a 60 percent increase in the
number of clients that we serve. We've had a 50 percent increase in the
number food bags that we've handed out. We have a 45 percent increase
in the number of referrals to outside agencies. We now are an island wide
service. We are no longer a, a couple of hour a day soup kitchen. We are
a 24-hour a day homeless center for people who are in trouble. We give
them legal documents, ID's, 24-hour help, case management for families,
for veterans, for those who are mentally challenged or addicted.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. MERRITT: So, in summary, we do have funds from our Christmas kettles.
You may wonder about this and also funds from our Thrift store. But
these funds provide money to operate our social services programs, both
on Maui and Molokai, our various youth after school programs. We have
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after school programs everyday of the week, except Monday for the youth.
They help with our building costs, our church events, Angel Tree, Angel
Tree Programs, meals, Senior Thanksgiving dinners, things like that. But
across our organization, we have lowered our expenses to the point where
there is really no excess money being spent. As you know, the Salvation
Army is very good at that. So, we would ask respectfully that you not cut
our line item grant as proposed in the budget. But more than this, I want
to talk to you for just a few seconds about hope.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. MERRITT: The hope to people who have come to the edge of giving up on
life and that we are your hands and feet to those people to give care to
them. So, we respectfully request that you reinstate our line item grant of
$150,000. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? Member Molina followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning,
Mr. Merritt.
MR. MERRITT: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I was wondering if you could provide the
Committee a copy of your testimony 'cause I want to say that's very
powerful information you given to us as a nonprofit and understanding our
situation that you made some significant reductions with your
organization. So, I just want to commend you for, for doing that and I'm
hoping the other nonprofits can share with us what, you know, they've
done to, you know, deal with this economic crisis that we're, we're
involved with. So, I just wanted to compliment you and thank you and
please keep up the good work.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Have you turned anyone around
because of lack money?
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MR. MERRITT: No, not, not currently. There had been people that came to us
for help and the best we could do would give them a box of food but we
try to never turn anyone away. Somehow, we'll fmd them some kind of
help.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Besides the grant that we have here for you, do
you also apply for any other grants?
MR. MERRITT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And have you been successful from the County?
MR. MERRITT: In the, not in, not from the County, no.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: From the State?
MR. MERRITT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Do you leverage any of the County monies
for any grants that you receive?
MR. MERRITT: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You don't? Okay, thank you very much. And, and I'm
one of those volunteers every Christmas, you know, do ring the bell for
your organization.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, thank you very much. Oh, Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Merritt, thank
you very much. I appreciate, I appreciate listening to your testimony and I
commend your organization for the many methods of trying to cut and
curb costs. I, I guess, in, in order for me to share additional information to
you as well as the other nonprofits in this, in this gallery, you do realize
we are facing a $22.5 million shortage. You do realize because you have
sat here and you have heard some of our very own County core
departments, who are virtually screaming at us, saying you have cut us to
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bare bones. We cannot continue to meet some of our departmental needs.
You have heard some of our departments say that some of the cuts that
this body has considered puts this County on the verge of violation of
environmental protection, fines, and other restrictions against this County.
You will continue to hear some of the other non-profit organizations come
and say instead of we will make due with the funds available, you will
hear them say, we need more monies to take care of more shortages. The
message from me, sir, is this County itself has major deficits. This County
itself has major needs. We are trying to balance it as equitable as we
possibly can and I beg your indulgence and well as the indulgence of the
many nonprofits to please bear with us in these very difficult years ahead.
Thank you, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, Mr. Merritt,
thank you for being here and your testimony. I want to ask kind of follow
up of Member Nishiki and also Chair Pontanilla, in leveraging the
County's funding, the grant of 150,000, you did say you receive some
State funding. Is that correct?
MR. MERRITT: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you tell me how much that State
funding is?
MR. MERRITT: Three hundred and forty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, do you also receive any Federal
funding?
MR. MERRITT: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No Federal funding. Do you receive any
funding from your National organization?
MR. MERRITT: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No? Okay, so you're living strictly on the
State, the County, and whatever you gather from your kettles and your
other activities?
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MR. MERRITT: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay, thank you so much for your
testimony.
MR. MERRITT: If I can just speak to that for a moment. When you put these
funds together it means that we have about $43 a month to help each
person we help.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and I commend you as, as did
Councilmember Molina on, on making the necessary adjustments in your
operation to try to lower your costs and that's appreciated.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair And thank you
very much. Is it Captain?
MR. MERRITT: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Captain Merritt, for being here.
Sometimes I don't get these ranks straight.
MR. MERRITT: I don't either.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, but as the former director of MEO, I had the
pleasure of working very closely with the Salvation Army, and
understanding pretty much what you do. I want to tell you that I want to
thank you and your organization for what you do on Maui and I'm sure
you do it all over wherever you are. But, you know, when we were stuck
and we had a person in need who didn't fit the description of a grant
eligible person, you know, they weren't in the right income category, or
they weren't of that special eligibility criteria, and it was heartbreaking for
us to have to say no, we always sent them to the Salvation Army because
you were the folks that would always come through with something,
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whether it was homeless or no food or no place to stay or no place to take
a bath or just desperate and you were always there.
MR. MERRITT: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, I want to tell you I totally understand what
you're trying to tell us today and I'm hoping against hope that when all of
this is said and done that we'll fmd a way. Thank you very, very much.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. Captain, I guess, my
question is a simple one. Are we seeing a rise in demand on the basis of
what you are telling us?
MR. MERRITT: The rise this year has been about 30 percent so far this year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So far this year?
MR. MERRITT: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And with this impending cutback if that's
what has to be done, and I agree with Chair Mateo, our hands are tied. We
only have so many dollars is the truth in almost every household across
the nation, across this State, and across this County. We are at wits end,
but what I'm asking you is there any other areas for which you can foresee
that not only your organization and other organizations can look for help
from?
MR. MERRITT: I, if I knew them I, I'd be there testifying.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MERRITT: I, I hope there are, you know, there's been talk about the
stimulus package that might help us in a year or two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
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MR. MERRITT: So, we're defmitely, you know, hopeful for that but right now,
I, I come and plead my case to you because this is really where we get our
money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and I thank you, and I thank you for
all the years of service you provided, the hundred plus years you've been
here in the County or islands of Maui, Maui County, and I hope that with
the good Lord's will something will come together that we will be able to
give you what you truly need. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much again.
MR. MERRITT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Deidre Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning, my name is Deidre Tegarden. I am the
Coordinator with the Office of Economic Development. Good morning,
Committee Chair, and Members. We understand and appreciate the
extremely difficult job facing the Council in making the recommended
cuts to the proposed Fiscal Year '10 Budget.
We would like to take a few moments to comment on the proposed
changes as it relates to the Maui Visitor's Bureau. The visitor industry
continues to be our economic engine and we fear that cuts beyond
3 8 million will have adverse effects on our economy of the, of the
County, including job losses for our residents and possible business
closures. The Maui Visitor's Bureau not only keeps Maui top of mind, but
also Molokai and Lanai through their affiliate offices. The visitor industry
is estimated to bring in $80 million in real property taxes this year, which
is approximately one-third of the real property revenues for this County.
The 3.8 million awarded to the Maui Visitor's Bureau would only be
3.7 percent of what the hotels pay in real property tax and this is a pretty
good return on investment.
Visitors will have spent over $3.6 billion in Maui County in Fiscal Year
'08 and this keeps our businesses afloat and open. According to the 2007
County Data Book, there are 65,000 non-Ag jobs in Maui County, 35,000
or 53 percent are visitor industry related jobs, and this does not include
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retail, restaurant, or other service industry jobs. If you add in those
ancillary jobs as much as 75 percent of our economy is reliant upon a
successful visitor industry.
Marketing helps keep our residents employed. As you can see, the
economic impact from the visitor industry is very significant to the
County. And in fact, the economy of our County depends on the help of
the, of our visitor industry, both now and in the future. This is why we
urge the Council's continued support at the level of $3 8 million for the
work of the Visitor's Bureau. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? None, thank you. Thank you, Deidre.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Lori Tsuhako.
MS. TSUHAKO: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Chair Mateo,
Members. I'm Lori Tsuhako. I'm the Director of our County's
Department of Housing and Human Concerns. I thank you for this
opportunity to testify before you this morning. I want you to know that I,
as well as other members of the Administration, realize the many
challenges involved in crafting a budget that balances all of the
community's needs with available resources. I really appreciate the
thought that went into Chair Pontanilla's proposal.
I'm here this morning to identify a couple of critical areas in which the
Department's operation would be impacted by the proposed changes. And
I'm working off of Council's Exhibit 1, Page 8, in which the deletion of
two requested expansion positions was discussed as well as the reduced
funding for existing positions of a Housing Program Specialist IV and V.
I will tell you that the deletion of the two requested expansion positions
would severely cripple our Division's ability to monitor, monitor and
enforce mandated housing requirements. There have been several very
significant mandates that this body has imposed on the, on the County to,
to look at affordable housing as well as residential workforce agreements
and those functions would be very, very difficult for us to continue to do
without these expansion positions.
In, in addition to that, the two existing positions for which funding is
being recommended to be reduced are for our HOME Program
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Administrator. Now, HOME as you saw last week is a Federally funded
program. It's a highly regulated program. It's a very complex program
but it, it generates approximately $2 million in grant revenue for our
County and for projects that are built with these funds.
In addition to that, the existing positions, I believe, were just, were
recruited, and I think the recruitment closed last week. So, those positions
are already, hopefully, we have plenty of applicants, so, then, I think, the
reduction in funding would be a real detriment to our ability to do these
functions.
Secondly, there's a proposed reduction in the First Time Homebuyer's
Program to, from 1.6 million to 200,000. I won't belabor this point, but I,
I would certainly advocate and let you know that if we calculate the
essential cost of this with only $200,000 it would enable 12 or 13 people
to receive a down payment assistance from the County. I don't mean to be
presumptuous, but if we could add more to that amount that's being
allowed, even half of it, would, would help us help more first time
homebuyer's with that program.
The second, excuse me, the third item that I want to talk about is the
recommended deletion.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. Deletion of funding for the Nutrition Program Aid
position. Our Department records indicate that this is a grant funded
position. It's also a half-time position on Molokai and if this position is, is
eliminated it would render us unable to continue with the home delivered
meals. We appreciate the addition of funding for our home delivered
meals, but without the staff to do the program, we'd be unable fulfill, I
think, the Department's sees that as well as Council's desire, to have that
allowances.
And my fourth mention, I think, the Staff handed out a handout. The
Youth Center allocation last year was $1.8 million. All of that allocation
was made to all of the youth centers who, who applied and so there, the
message in the, in the, the Chair's proposal says that there was $80,000
that was unallocated, that was an error by our Department, so.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this morning? We will go with Member Molina first.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman Good morning,
Madam Director. Thank you for your comments with regards to the First
Time Homebuyer's. You mentioned that with the reduction from
1 6 million down to 200,000 that you'll be able to basically only help 12
families. And we heard testimony last week that ironically even with this
downturn in the economy there's a lot more units available that are within
reach of families that could qualify and would have this monies, whether it
be in the loan form or as grant. So, tell me realistically what you guys
could work with 'cause I, I, I agree 200,000 is a little low. So, you said
800,000 or but the previous appropriations have been for 400,000. So,
even with 400,000 you guys would be happy with or...
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, we could help more people and I think that's the point.
The, with even with the downturn in the economy one of the, one of the
things that has happened is that there's more units available, and there are
people here who have in our community who have jobs. And, I think,
Deputy Director Ridao mentioned while she, while we testified last week
that we were very willing to increase the income guidelines to be able to
serve those folks that were considered in the gap group from 140 and
below of the median income. So, I think, we could serve more people if
we had a little bit more money in this fund to work with.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. And you hit on the key point,
the gap group, 'cause I think that was the original intent of the bill years
ago to help address our people in the gap group, the police personnel, fire,
teachers, nurses, and so forth. So, these are the people that are the back
bone in terms of bringing in revenue for our economy as well. They're
very important, like everybody else, but I, I think, right now these folks
are not getting the help that they need and this fund could certainly help
them, give them an opportunity to own a home, and then be payer's or
contribute to the revenue to our County. And so, it's a win-win situation
the way I see it. They become, they have home ownership and then they
become contributors to the real property tax system. Thank you, Madam
Director.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you,
Ms. Tsuhako for being here this morning. Lots and lots of questions about
things pertaining in your Department but just one big one that I'd like to
ask you about and that's in regard to the positions.
Recently, all of the Members were provided, provided with a copy of an
audit report from one of your grantees, a very large grantee, and it was a
very large report, which I read line for line so that I would understand.
What I got out of that is that there was a feeling or a recommendation that
maybe you don't have enough grant people or grant monitors or I'm not
sure what you call them to oversee the grants and to do the onsite help and
monitoring and, you know, to be there for the grantees. And it's really
important that with all these grants that you make, and you make many,
many, many, that there is staff to go out and actually monitor what's going
on, and see if there's compliance, and also to offer to assistance because
that's really important is the offer of assistance. What is the ratio
currently, more or less, of monitors to grantees?
MS. TSUHAKO: The current ratio, Member Baisa, is about 1-to-50. So, for each
one of our Program Specialists and our, our Grants Administrator also
functions part of his duties also include monitoring of grants. So, it's
about 1-to-50.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, do you feel that's adequate in order for you to
improve this situation we would have more time to do the, you know, the
help and the monitoring?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think if, I'm sure that we read the same report, and I think in
the way that the grants management oversight was described, I think, the
auditor made some comments about what is best practices. And they've
not, we, the Department has requested from them resources to help us
understand what they're considering best practice, and so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This, this would be my concern is if we're going
to cut positions, what impact might this have on this function, which I
think is critical? You know, it's real easy to blame people for not doing
things right, but if you're not there to monitor and assist, it, it makes it
worse.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, and I agree, and not having the opportunity to hire another
Grants Specialist would have long, you know, would have an impact
long—term on our Department, that Division especially, ability to have
oversight of the grantees in a way that's being described by the auditor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. This was my concern
when I, when I saw the proposed cuts and I certainly understand what's
the point of giving you money to do home delivery meals if you don't
have anybody to take them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tsuhako, you understand this is a
program budget?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, sir. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And do you expect to spend all of your requests in
regards to operations?
MS. TSUHAKO: Do I expect to spend all of the appropriations? Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I looking at carryover savings for next year.
MS. TSUHAKO: I will spend whatever is needed to run that Department. Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Tsuhako, thank
you for your testimony this morning. I'm particularly concerned with
anything involving the youth or the elderly. And on the youth centers, the
funding is divided among the youth centers throughout Maui County. Is it
divided equally or how is that formula calculated?
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Medeiros, the Youth Center allocation is, the
recommendations are made by the Grants Review Committee to the
Administration. And so, the youth centers dual proposal that's reviewed,
evaluated, and scored by the Grants Review Committee. And the Grants
Review Committee makes recommendations to the Administration about
funding levels based on the amount requested, the programs provided,
etcetera.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: In, in that review and consideration, is it a
part of that consideration that youth centers in very rural, isolated areas,
such as Hana or Lanai or Molokai, that is taken in for consideration that if
the youth cannot go there for some reason that they have no other place to
go in such rural areas as I mentioned. Is that considered whereas, you
know, in larger urban central areas there are other programs that they can
go to. So, is that considered?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I was not part of the GRC's deliberations, Mr. Medeiros. I, I
don't know that specifically that concern was addressed by the Grants
Review Committee. I do know that they received proposals from all the
youth centers and based their recommendations on the, the proposals that
were presented to them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Director, appreciate your
comments. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair has one comment to make. In
regards to the youth center recipients, in the budget, Program Budget,
what it says here funding for current expansion or new programs, funding
distribution to the recommended, will be recommended by the Grant
Review Committee, and there's $84,000 that hasn't been identified. So,
you're saying that, that's a misprint?
MS. TSUHAKO: That, that was our Department's error, yeah, because when,
when we looked at the lower allocation from 1.8 to 1.74 and tried to assess
that reduction across all of the recipients, there was a miscalculation and,
and in actuality all of the, all of the 1 8 million had been allocated last
year. So, there wasn't any unallocated money in this category.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it similar to the CPG or CPR program, where it says
unallocated $41,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, but with the CPG fund there were some fund there were
some funds that the GRC did not allocate. But for the, for the youth, for
the Youth Center Programs, they allocated the entire amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the $41,000 still remains as unallocated for 2010?
MS. TSUHAKO: For CPG?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. By the way, did you have a chance to
review this particular Page, 10-26 and 10-27 of the Program Budget?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't have that with me right now, Mr. Chair, I don't know
what you're referring to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and if you could because -MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --these are the numbers that is being provided to this
Committee at this time.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, and we, we realize that, I think, in our presentation last
week we apologized to the, to the Council for having that error in there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo followed by Member
Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Tsuhako, good morning.
MS. TSUHAKO: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Who is currently doing the monitoring of your programs
now, your Housing Programs now, in terms of affordable housing relative
to the workforce, workforce development and all the housing agreements?
MS. TSUHAKO: Some of those responsibilities have been taken over by the
Housing Administrator, Mr. Oshiro, and actually some of the oversight
has been provided by our Deputy Director.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, so, there, there is someone who is currently
providing or doing the services now?
MS. TSUHAKO: There are, those, those services are actually outside the scope
of what they're supposed to do because these positions were intended to
have oversight over those things.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so, and also the, the HOME project, projects
that you mentioned with the grant funds, you, you referenced the, the loss
of a potential position from utilization of the HOME Funds. Was that the
reference?
MS. TSUHAKO: I said that reducing the funding available to refill that position
because. . . (end of tape 1B). . . vacant would have an impact because as is
now our Housing Administrator is having to run the HOME Program as
well as do all of the other duties associated with his job as the Housing
Administrator.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, and also your reference to the 1 6 million for the
Affordable Housing Fund where 200,000 seems to be the number being
looked at. Your concern is it's not enough because that 200,000 services
or will service only 12 families. Has the Director considered utilization of
the entire 1.6 to buy real estate so the County can actually initiate an
affordable housing project thereby making more homes available to more
people across the board, be it ownership or rental?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't think the Department has considered using that fund in
particular to purchase land but there had been progressive discussions over
the past few months about the County purchasing land and actually
partnering with agencies to develop affordable housing.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank, and because currently that's exactly what the
Department is doing, partnering with a lot of nonprofits to try to expedite
the construction or the availability of more homes making a lot more
available both, in both, in both, ownership and rental units. Also, Madam
Director, your reference to the 1-to-50 ratio, employee versus, well with
grants, is that an indication that perhaps there's too many grants?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, I don't think so. I think that in, as I understand it, Chair
Mateo, historically the Grants Management Division had about six or
seven employees who were working in the function of Program
Specialists, and over the years that's decreased. And, I think, Member
Baisa made mention of an audit that we, results that we received recently.
And as I said, the, the, the auditor did not give us specific references even
though we asked for it about best practices and they have a certain level
that they're claiming to be best, best practice in terms of the ratio between
specialists and grantees. And so, the Department is very open to
discussing that with the, the auditor as well as with the grantees that we
currently work with in the community to see if it, it does meet the need.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And my only reason for asking that, Madam Director, is
because a couple of days ago when, when the Budget Director indicated
that this County in 2004 provided $17 million in, in funding availability
to, to the social service needs of the County, and just a few years later, we
are now providing services in, in, in terms of fmancing to, in, in the tune
of over $34 million to social service programs, and my concern is the
Department's ability to continue monitoring and providing whatever needs
there are because of this County's continued increases 'cause that is a
sizable growth since 2004 to 2009, we virtually doubled. So, I, I continue
to worry about the explosion in the non-profit organization when perhaps
there are many duplication of services in a lot of the organizations. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. And, Ms. Tsuhako, first of
all let, let me start by saying, I believe, from my point of view you guys do
a fine job in trying to do the things that we ask you to do as a community.
So, let me start you that way.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I thank you very much.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There is a darn if you do and darn if you
don't in this whole equation today and it'll be that way till the end. But
what I was curious to go in, I wanted to go back on the youth programs
and the youth services because you said the Grant Review Committee kind
of allocates these numbers, these dollars to the various youth centers
throughout the County of Maui. Am I correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: The Grant Review Committee makes recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendations?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then --
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MS. TSUHAKO: For the allocations, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and then you guys use that recom..., and
generally speaking, do you go very far off their... so let's say I
recommended 280,000 for, for the Central Youth Center. Do you say oh,
no, no, well because there's other things, other places they can go, we'll
give you guys 250,000, or...is there other factors do you put in?
MS. TSUHAKO: The Department generally follows the recommendation of the
Grants Review Committee. We, we appreciate their contribution. They
take, volunteers take time to read numerous proposals and carefully look
through budgets and look at what the requests are based on what they see
as the community needs. And so, we, generally try to adopt the
recommendations that the Grants Review Committee makes to us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well, and the reason the question was
lined in that, in that direction is because I hear at times some of my
colleagues say that because rural areas only have one program and urban
areas have many programs, but in your case you try to formulate your
Grants Review Committee takes a lot of factors in.
And the other thing I wanted to ask you is population base, you have, you
have a pretty good understanding about the population base throughout the
County of Maui, right?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so, let's take two, just two right off
the top of my head, Lanai and Central Maui, just because and it's not
nothing against Lanai, just took two very, very different areas as far that
population base. Just so that the public understands, what's the population
of Lanai versus just Wailuku itself?
MS. TSUHAKO: Very small.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Proportionately?
MS. TSUHAKO: Proportionately, very small.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so, when my colleagues start to say
that, oh, in urban areas you can go to other programs, we also are faced
with larger numbers of demand. We have a large number of
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disadvantaged in our areas, which again, the small rural communities
proportionately probably have in equal number. But I do get a little
disturbed at that fact because we do not have a lot of extra as MEO has
said that when they cut something in Central Maui that puts 21 families
out. That's 21 families that go no where because there's nothing else out
there. You know, we have more programs but we also have a greater
population of need percentage wise. So, I just wanted to know how you
come to that because I thought it was very interesting, you know, I, I
always hear this and I, and I, and I, and I, I take, I take a real back seat to
that. I will not say that, that because you come from an rural area that,
you know, you don't get your fair share because, I think, we have tried to
be fair all around. And the urban areas, or Central Maui, and other areas,
West Maui, or South Maui, have greater needs proportionately versus the
population that exist in these areas. Am I fair to say that, that, that
statement?
MS. TSUHAKO: And Member Victorino, I would agree with you and, I think,
perhaps something that I neglected to mention earlier is that the proposals
that the youth centers create and submit to the Grants Review Committee
have the proposed number of kids that they're going to serve. And so,
there's, there's a way that the Grants Review Committee can factor in the
cost per student served. And so, the, the budgets and the budget requests
coming from the larger youth centers, of course, are going to be way
larger than those made by the smaller youth centers in smaller
communities.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you very much and when I
look at the numbers I, I can see that you guys try very diligently to be fair
all around. I just wanted that point made. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier this morning? Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair Director, I'm
just looking at that area that you talked about that 80,000, which is in the,
the Summary Budget and it just appears that all you've done is that you
built into each of the, the programs an additional amount that you, that
you're bringing forward to us. So, I guess, the question is then when
we're looking at the $84,000 that was not assigned and that's here in our
document then simply all you've done is you've spread that costs between
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all of the, the programs, and then you have now said that there's no
monies really available?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, because, thank you, Member Kaho'ohalahala. The
$80,000 was actually allotted in Fiscal Year '09 to all of the youth centers
that you see listed here and it was the Department's error that, that showed
the $80,000 balance because essentially everything was spent. And so this
amended sheet that I gave you this morning just simply takes the total
reduction from 1.8 million to 1.74 million and assigns a 3.3 percent
reduction in each of the programs across the board assessing it, essentially
assessing the reduction to all of the youth centers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, while, but while you're,
while you're talking about assessing a reduction you're also talking about
an increase to each of the program areas. I'm comparing the, the two
amounts in your proposed to, to 2010, okay. And what you're reflecting
here in this summary as an example the Central Maui Youth Center at 257
in the new amendment, I guess, you're, you're handing out. You've
increased that to 270,000. So, so, that to me, I'm trying to ask if it's just a
matter of, of, of arithmetic, you know, that we're going to assume the
84,000 and just add portions of it across the board. Is that what's being
done here?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, because when the individual calculations for each of the
youth centers was done, it was done incorrectly by my Department. And
so, we, we had it a balance of approximately 80, 80,000 or so that wasn't
allocated on paper. It showed that it wasn't allocated but it had been
allocated and so the, the totals that you saw on the initial summary that,
that you received in your, in your folders were incorrect. And if you add
up all of the decreases for each of the, the youth centers, you'll see that
because of that $80,000, the youth centers actually took a loss of more
than the 60,000 that Administration had recommended as a reduction in
the overall allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, I just wanted some
clarification on how, how you came about to make that change and, you
know, what we had to deal with was, was that amount, and that's why it's
reflected as a...in the Chair's recommendation, so.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah, and, and, and I, I apologize for that. I was, that was our
Department's error in, in calculating.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Lori, does anybody get any credit for being tight
and rewarded? Do you ever award anybody by saying, hey, because you
saved you get whatever, a tap on the back, or whatever, kind words?
MS. TSUHAKO: Uh...I trying. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I'm, I'm, I'm dealing with just the youth
centers, okay. And, and I'm asking this because in this budget, and I don't
say that they don't need the money, but have you ever told them like you
tell other departments, well the Mayor tells other departments to cut and
save money. Has this ever happened?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, it has, Member Nishiki. In fact, that, that message has
gone out to all, all of the nonprofits via letters from the Department asking
agencies, our partners to be very cautious and careful about the money that
they're asking. And it's also been done directly through my meetings with
the members of the Maui nonprofit Executive Directors group. So, it has
been done, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and just because it has been done, does it
mean that they do it. Have you seen any savings?
MS. TSUHAKO: Some of the agencies who submitted requests for line items for
our Fiscal Year '10 did reduce their, their request to the Department, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In the area of Youth Center, have you seen any
savings?
MS. TSUHAKO: The youth centers were not asked to submit new proposals
because they're funded on a two-year cycle by the Grants Review
Committee. And so, the agencies who were directly approached about
asking, asked to reduce their budgets actually were all recipients of line
items from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And in terms of spending, have you seen people
exhaust their spendings towards the end of the fiscal year because you
have extra money and maybe don't want to be cut? Have you ever
examined those numbers?
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MS. TSUHAKO: You know, Member Nishiki, I'm sure that it happens to some
extent, but since I took over this Department I've not seen that being
abused by grantees.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a comment from this Chairman in
regards to expansion positions and vacant positions. You know, I, I've
been here a number of years and, and every year when it comes to budget
time, we have the same old issue, position, vacancy positions not being
filled, and we keep on adding. For seven years, we've been adding
positions, you know, to this County government. And in those years, you
know, the number of vacancies still continues to go unfilled. So, all of us,
I think, collectively have an issue with, you know, how long it takes to fill
in a vacancy. When you have vacancies up to Year 2007 and, and you
might not have been here, but, you know, the, the question becomes do we
really need that position? So, you know, for me as Chairman of this
Committee, I, I, I, I look at that and it's about time we start doing
something about it. So, I thought I'd pass on that comment, not only to
you, but the other departments that are here this morning. You know, I've
been here, you know, as Budget and Finance Committee Chairman for
three years. I haven't heard my present predecessors ever mention, you
know, about the vacancies and, and we should take a stand as far as do we
want it? Is it needed? And if we don't need it, let's remove it. So, thank
you, Lori, for being here.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Vincent Mina.
MR. MINA: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Morning.
MR. MINA: Good morning, Council Members. Aloha, again, nice to see you
folks and how beautiful the liquid sunshine we have this morning from a
farmer's point of view. I also want to thank Akaku for taping his so my
wife realizes that I'm not out holo holoing this morning since 8:30. She's
on the farm. I, I wanted to clarify a few things folks as to what we want.
First of all, my name is Vincent Mina, again, and I'm representing Maui
Aloha Aina Association.
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Our wish and mission is to promote life nurturing practices for the body
and the soil through education and outreach. So, what we're asking for
this year is a, I sent you folks a proposal for a agricultural summit we'd
like to hold that will develop an action plan. I was born and raised with
the value of if it is to be it's up to me and I don't see an action plan
happening around food, security, and sustainability on this island done
ecologically. And I, I know as an ecological farmer that in fact you need
to do, you need to have ecological practices in order to sustain anything
agriculturally over a long period of time that will give you the, the benefits
of health and nutrition and also environmental benefits.
As farmers, case in point, as farmers, we want our inputs lowered. We
want our yields raised and we want to leave the soil behind in a better
place. So, all farmers share those values and there's a report I just found
on carbon sequestration that in, in Indiana land that has 1 percent organic
matter in it was selling for $2,200 an acre. Land that had 4 percent,
3 percent higher organic matter was selling for $3,100 an acre. So,
organic matter matters and that's the carbon in the soil. If you guys left
this morning, and got in your car, and your fuel wasn't as high an octane
as needed to be, your car would've kind of got you here, but all kind of
chugga, chugga, and all, and, and hard to get you here. And, and then, the
breaks down. Well, it's the same thing with our farms. We need to keep,
and as I represent last time, we need to put the carbon back into the soil in
our practices.
So, I wanted to also share and clarify that, us as a commodity group,
we're, we're in the Farm Bureau as a commodity group. And, you know,
in our, in our proposal here we wanted to continue to keep the funding of
our, that we've been getting as a commodity group in the Farm Bureau for
the conferences that we put on each year. But also we wanted to have this
one time proposal to, to create this ag summit to develop this action plan
to truly be able to disseminate all the different components that make up
the whole system of agriculture and fund those components through
grants. That's our assertion, that's our, that's our, our path and, and what
we want to do.
But as a commodity group, it's been very difficult because I don't see
organic, we don't see organic as a commodity. Organic is a cultural
practice. If you want to look at organic as a commodity well then we need
to look at its conventional agriculture and GMO agriculture as also
commodities, standardize them like you're doing organic as the national
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policy on organic standardizes it, and label it appropriately. Then, we're
on a level playing field, you know. But seeing organic as a commodity in
Farm Bureau that basically gives us one voice on the board and it's a, it's
a lose-lose. It's not, you know, I'm not here to make any entity wrong. I
just had a conversation with Warren out in the hallway. It was great.
Warren and I, one-on-one, you know, we go back in the sense that we've
worked together.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. MINA: And we can talk together and it's great. And I appreciate Warren. I
feel he's in between a rock and a hard place dealing with a, a large entity
that he has to represent. He's being paid to represent. And, but he is a
farmer. He comes from generations of farmers. I think his parents, even
he told me his parents said, tried talking him out of farming, you know.
It's a bad economics too, guys, and, and, the economic reality here, in
farming on the island, is that we need to utilize our natural resources to
economically sustain our operations. And that's what we represent at
Maui Aloha Aina and I would appreciate any questions that you have that
I, hopefully, I can answer clearly because three minutes is, is just difficult.
I'm just kind of getting started with, in that time but thank you, appreciate
it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Vince, Farm Bureau is being given 425,000 and
there is no cuts. Would you recommend a line item of that money going
to Keiki 0 Ka Aina [sic] or whatever that group that you represent?
MR. MINA: Well, you know, Wayne, thanks for asking. I, you know, truly I
don't quite understand this whole dynamic of, of the, the provisions, and,
and not provisions, and line items, and all that. I'm, I'm a farmer, you
know, I really don't have, I haven't spent that time in, in, in getting all that
information. I wish I had somebody in our organization who was akamai
who could come and represent that. So, I really don't know to give you an
honest and, and intelligent answer on that. All I'm saying is I'm coming
here going look guys, we have our programs in place that we do every
year. We've had conferences since 2001 on the relationship between the
body and the soil. We've gotten great responses. I think people have
testified to you folks in that respect. We'd like to continue that, but yet on
top of that, we'd like to be able to have a summit. We want an action
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plan We want like no kdding. We want to have something in place that
we can bring to you guys and go here, here are experts. You know, we
bring an expert in every year from our, our, the past four years and speak
at our conference by the name of Jerry Brunetti. He just won, he just won
a lifetime achievement award from Pennsylvania Agricultural Sustainable
Association. Two thousand people showed up at that conference, you
know, and he won it from Acres USA, 1,400 people come to them
conference. We bring these people, this, this level of expertise here and,
and they're saying the same thing that I'm saying. I'm basically
representing that same message of what, you know, of what we need to
see happening.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, can, can I cut to the chase?
MR. MINA: So, excuse me, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Out of that 425, do you get money from the
Farm Bureau?
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and what is your budget?
MR. MINA: Twenty-five thousand two hundred dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman Mr. Mina, thank
you for taking the day off on the farm to be here this morning. I
appreciate it. I'm, I'm interested in asking you a question on, you know,
you talk about carbon in the soil how important that is and also about
organic. Are your members and yourself mostly organic farmers?
MR. MINA: Yes. I'm not, personally, I'm not certified organic now through a
glitch through the, this, the Hawaii Organic Farmer's Association, and I
can elaborate on that if you'd like. But basically, we're in the process of
getting recertified organic. But, yes, most of our people that come to our
conferences practice organic principles.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And because, you know, I'm, I'm trying to
see where your particular group can advance as far as, you know, revenues
to yourself, because I notice like large stores, like Costco, bring in a lot of
organic things now, including eggs and milk and vegetables. Is that a
market for your group?
MR. MINA: Well, yes and no. You know, these big entities like that have a
tendency of taking all of your products and then trying to get as low of a
price as they possibly can. And that's a whole other issue as in that
respect, Councilman, but I, I guess your point being is, is that are we
looking for markets?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, and, and does that present a good
market for you, and, I think, you answered part of that. Then, I, I agree, I
understand and that's a way organizations, like Costco, can keep their
price down is they give the vendor, you know, a very small price on it.
So, I appreciate your answer, but I, I, I just think, you know, your organic
farming is important to our County.
MR. MINA: Well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But thank you for the work you do.
MR. MINA: Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Vincent, thank you, and I'm sorry I
missed the first part of your testimony. But I just want to ask you that if
you do get a separate line item or something, you know, where your funds
are segregated from Maui Farm Bureau, one of the things we look at in as
far as grant recipients go is measurable outcomes Like if you set a goal
and an objective, how close did you get to that goal and objective, and
with the money that we give you, how you're bringing in additional
dollars, et cetera. So, if you do that, are you prepared to be held
accountable for whatever monies are given you so that you can illustrate to
us and the taxpayers because it's their money that you're willing to
produce measurable outcomes?
MR. MINA: Yes, absolutely, absolutely.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright, thank you very much, Vincent.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair Aloha, Vince.
I just want to make clear because we had our first pass through the budget
and then what's being recommended now is that we keep the Maui Farm
Bureau at its current level. But are you asking and just, you know, that's
what I need to clearly understand. Are you asking to be separated out of
the Maui Farm Bureau? Or, do you want to continue to be in the Farm
Bureau as one of the commodity items because you just said now you're
not essentially a commodity?
MR. MINA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But, so, by saying that then do
you want to be put in a separate line?
MR. MINA: What we would ideally like to be in the, in the spirit that our, our
missions are diametrically different in that there's a, there's a, just in the
organic standards, for instance, you're not allowed to be using or
associated with GMO agriculture. We see it as a form of contamination as
far as the standards. So, just in that, just that one aspect of it, it's a
National law that we can't be associated.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just think we needed to be clear
what it is that you are -MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --asking and then that way we can
proceed. Thank you.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a question from the Chair.
MR. MINA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to your summit, is it Statewide or, or is it
only the Maui organic farmers that attend?
MR. MINA: Well, the plan, the plan is for Maui and yet it's, it's, it will have
Statewide affects.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is, is there a Statewide organization that you folks are,
you know, working together?
MR. MINA: The only organization would be Hawaii Organic Farmers
Association at this point in that respect. They, they will be invited to
come and, and participate, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Last question, have they themselves conducted a
summit?
MR. MINA: No, not that I'm aware of, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Mina, good morning.
MR. MINA: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Your primary interest is to get the available funds to
actually do the ag summit?
MR. MINA: Yes, as one part of. We would like to continue on the funding that
we've, we were receiving for our conferences.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, but your list, you're virtually under the, the Farm
Bureau?
MR. MINA: Right now, right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, you get funding via that umbrella.
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MR. MINA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But your, your primary interest is in order to protect the
food, security, and sustainability then you're asking that additional monies
be made available so you can hold the ag summit?
MR. MINA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, have you prior till today had the opportunity of
talking to the Office of Economic Development in their agricultural
promotion area where they could try to see if they can provide assistance
to you instead of coming and requesting for additional funds to do a
separate conference?
MR. MINA: Specifically, in this term, no, sir.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Mr. Chairman, perhaps that is a vehicle available
to Mr. Mina, so we would be able to just refer the request to the entity that
has a direct funding source to do such promotions. Thank you. Thank
you, Mr. Mina.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, any more questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here this
morning.
MR. MINA: Thank you very much and one more point, sir, excuse me. Vitamin
D3 for you guys. When you're inside the Council Chambers and you're
not getting sunlight, Vitamin D3, if you go to lifeextension.org , will
educate you on that, okay.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We need it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MINA: No, really, truly. So, thanks a lot.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before we continue on, the Chair would like
recognize the presence of Chairman Mateo and Member Johnson this
morning. Members, the Chair is going to call our mid morning recess.
We'll take a ten minute recess and we'll reconvene at 10:45. This meeting
is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 10:35 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:52 a.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, the next testifier this morning is
Jacob Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. My name
is Jacob Verkerke. I'm the Manager of the MIS Division and I also
coordinate the efforts of several of Departments with respects to the
proposed Emergency Management Center. I'm not here this morning to
speak about the MIS Program Budget. We appreciate the challenges that
you're faced with and we'll fmd a way to make it work.
I am here today to offer testimony on an item you have asked to revisit. I
urge the Committee to support the Mayor's request and the Chair's
proposal to provide $290,000 in CIP funding for the Emergency
Management Center. As this is through required County matching funds,
to $850,000 in Federal grant funding, to be provided by the Economic
Development Administration.
Our credibility with the EDA received an important . . . (end of tape 2A).. .
November and we are at great risk of losing that credibility if we were to
turn down the grant by not providing the matching funds. The Emergency
Management Center is to collective response of four departments and
agencies to the risk that exist for the community from the present state of
the facilities that Emergency Management will have to rely on. These
agencies are the Maui Police Department, the Maui Fire Department, the
Maui Civil Defense Agency, the Department of Management, including
the MIS Division, and the Mayor's Office.
The critical facilities that exist now, the EOC, the MIS computer room,
and MPD's Dispatch Center were all designed decades ago for a
community size and a level of technological reliance that bare no
resemblance to what we are faced with today. I hope you were able to
gather from the recent article in The Maui News that our present facilities
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are vulnerable and no longer adequate for the task. Lack of redundancy is
the very real risk we face everyday. The plans for this integrated facility
were developed through the cooperative efforts of those agencies that this
community will rely on in an emergency, as I mentioned Police, Fire,
Civil Defense, and those are responsible, those that are responsible for the
critical communications infrastructure, both voice and data, such as MIS
and the Police Department's Radio Communications Section.
This Emergency Management Center is specifically designed to withstand
and operate during extreme conditions and will provide the best decision
support environment with reliable access to critical information and
communications to those that are going to be called upon to guide this
community through that crisis. You have heard it said many times, the
question is not if, but when Maui County will be hit by that disaster. We
can ill afford to pass up an opportunity to receive almost three-to-one
Federal funding -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. VERKERKE: --to continue our efforts to create this Emergency
Management Center. This center is a key component of the efforts to
protect and support this community in time of emergency. The efforts of
these agencies not the least of which is the Civil Defense Agency need
your unqualified support to do their job the community will expect of
them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions, Members, for the testifier?
Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman Okay, so, thank you very
much for being here and sharing your, your considerations with us. You
are not a newcomer to County government. You are quite familiar with
our process. Tell me where we can get 290,000 from what, which
department? Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. VERKERKE: If, I'd like, I'd like to answer that question, please.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, please.
MR. VERKERKE: Because I am not a newcomer to County government, I do
not believe it's my place to recommend cuts to other programs. I think
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that's the purview of this Committee and the people putting together the
budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Verkerke, the Chair has one question.
In regards to the land purchase, have we already started negotiations as far
as acquiring the property?
MR. VERKERKE: We have had meetings with the leading partner of the
partnership that owns the property and he's given us permission to have
fair market value appraisals done. So, we have had, we're in the process
of getting that done and that will be, we hope the basis of negotiations for
the purchase that we hope to conclude before the place holder, CIP
funding that it's in the 2009 Budget lapses in December. So, we're quite
confident that we'll come to an agreement before that time and be able to
come back to you to ask for the real funding for that purchase.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you say that the 290,000 will leverage on some
Federal match?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. There's $850,000 of Federal grant money
available and I'm not really fully up-to-date on the status but Jo-Anne
Inamasu can fill you in on the details. The application is with the Federal
Department of Commerce, EDA, and the condition is this matching funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, so, last year we funded for the Emergency
Center, this year you're requesting 290 to match the Federal funds. Would
that be enough to purchase the property?
MR. VERKERKE: The funding is not meant for acquisition of the property. It's
meant for planning and design of the facility. So, we're, we're looking
ahead on the assumption that we'll come to an agreement to purchase the
property so we can keep the process moving. There'll be quite a bit of
work in, in the final design in the entitlements process that it behooves us
to, to keep that effort going and not fall behind.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Shouldn't it be that we some how work in concert in
purchasing the land, you know, prior to designing a building, not knowing
that, you know, if our County government can afford purchasing the land?
MR. VERKERKE: If it's not in the budget for next year, we won't be able to do
any design work even if we do purchase the land.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for being here.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jeff Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Aloha and good morning, Council Members, Budget Chair,
Council Chair. I'll be speaking on two subjects. One is the Department of
Fire and Public Safety and some of the cuts that we're projected for on
Exhibit 1. We please ask that you fund these positions as we are already
in the process of setting up interviews. This has been a long ongoing
project for us, so, please reconsider.
As an example, for the Lead Fire Mechanic as we identified that during
our budget process and the past year that, that is an issue that for safety of
our vehicles as well as the people, that it's really hard to get qualified
personnel. That process has taken us a year for two sets of interviews. So,
we're fmally down to the process again, and we don't want to lose these
candidates 'cause we only have two left, and we can't expect them to wait
around for jobs. They're going to have to jump on what they can for their
families as well.
We also want to talk, bring about the, the Battalion Chiefs. I know I
explained that during our budget process of the safety issues, the response
times, and the responsibility for that.
Secondly, I want to speak about the Emergency Management Center.
That would be an area that a lot of our departments will work in, in very
tough situations in emergency management. I've had the ability to work
and see three counties and work in their EOC 's and it is, it is something of
a, a new start for Maui County to jump on, and I'd really ask for your
consideration as well for that. Thank you for time. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Chief.
Thank you for your testimony. My question relates to the position for is it
the Lead Fire Mechanic?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And you mentioned it's taken you guys one
year to go through this interview process. Can you tell us why it's taken
that long?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for that explanation. What happened was the
announcement went out. We went through the process for that about six
months ago and there was only one person that qualified. We offered that
person the job, he didn't take it. So, we had to go through that process all
over again, thinking that the economic situation would bring us more
qualified people. There's still only two people and that same person is
back on the list as well. So, maybe that person has had a change of heart
or something else has been happening but that set us back a whole year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, that one person who turned down the offer
the first time is now back again, which basically caused the delay. And,
so, now, you guys some what, so now you're considering that person
again?
MR. MURRAY: Well, we have to. We'll interview that person again. He was
more than qualified. We're not sure personally what went on in his life at
that time. We can't answer for that but we were very disappointed but
also happy to see that he was also back on. But we also now have a
choice.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, so, anyway, so, if, I guess, if we do fund
this position then there's one other, the Fire Command Chief also. Is there
any issues on that?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, what, what we did was when it became vacant due to a
voluntary demotion; we didn't fill it seeing some shortfalls in our Admin
Program. So, what we did was held off on that and then we also
redescribed part of that position to make it conducive for our goals for the
future.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and so, fmal, my final question, Chair
So, the highest priority for you right now of these proposed adjustments
by the Budget Chair, which of these is the most important that you need.
Would that be the Lead Fire Mechanic? I mean, if we had to pick only
one or two of your considerations that's being proposed to be cut? And
there's a Battalion Chief issues. You know, Chief, at a later point you can
give us.
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MR. MURRAY: It...it...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know it's, I'm sort of putting you on the spot
here.
MR. MURRAY: I've been wrestling with this once we found out what, what was
being on the board here, and, and I appreciate your, your question. I
would have to go with the Battalion Chiefs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can I interject? Can I interject, please?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe I can provide some light. We, we just reducing
the funding in regards to the positions that are in the Fire Department.
You know, we not deleting any of the positions but deleting of the
funding. You do have several vacancy positions, including the Battalion
Chief. I don't know where you're at as far as trying to get those filled.
And the funding had been reduced to provide, well not, yeah, to provide
some funding should you hire anyone, you know, from within the
Department. If you hire within the Department then whenever a position
is vacant, you know, if you promote someone within the Department then
that position becomes vacant and, and, you know, that's funding for that
particular position. And, and it continues on and on, you know, like that.
If you promote within you create vacancy, which create funding for a
position. We reduced the funding because, you know, on the average the
length time to, to find someone to work for the Department and, and, you
know, this being a program budget you have the ability to utilize funding
from the A, B, and C accounts, you know, to your prerogatives. So, you
know, if, if the Lead Mechanic is very important, then I, I would look at,
you know, within the departments knowing that some of the funding
already are included although it's partial funding. It can be utilized to hire
your Lead Mechanic
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. We, we understand that. We were just
wanting to shed some light on, on, on, on the process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman Chief Murray,
thanks for being here for your testimony this morning. In regards to the
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County Emergency Management Center, what acts as, as that facility
currently?
MR. MURRAY: It is Civil Defense downstairs.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so, you have the same
emergency response agencies that come there and, and, and take care of
the operations of whatever is occurring. Is that correct?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, based on the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And is normally in most situations
that the Fire Department takes command once they're at the scene or it, it
depends on the emergency?
MR. MURRAY: It depends on the emergency based on, on our charter rules.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And, and, and we will have an on scene commander that takes
care of that and then either myself or my deputy or assistant chief will go
to the EOC and help, you know, with, with, with resources as well there
and also give explanation in, in that realm for, for that group, that
executive group.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, I, I know in, you know, training that I
received while with the Fire Department, in a situation where the police
are first there, and then the Fire Department gets there, and it's within
their jurisdiction, they take command once they get there. Is that correct?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, that is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and the position which is titled Fire
Command Chief, what would be the responsibilities of that position?
MR. MURRAY: Well, during the time that we had it vacant, we utilized that
opportunity to reprioritize that person's job duties. Mainly it is, goes back
to the strategic plan and accreditation, that, that is a good portion of that
position. We also reclassified it as a Fire Service Officer and during that
process we gave that individual more responsibility in, in administrative
management.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, as far as on the scene command, it's
normally a Battalion Chief?
MR. MURRAY: It will be a Battalion Chief or and/or the Assistant Chief of
Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay, thank you for that information.
It's helpful.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Chief Murray? I, I
just got one and I forgot to ask Mr. Verkerke the same question I'm going
to ask you. In regards to the Emergency Operation Center that is being
planned, what do you think about having that emergency center, you
know, tied in with the new Kihei Police Station?
MR. MURRAY: Thanks for that question. I, I don't think that's in my
responsibility to answer that. What, whatever the County finds
appropriate that would be something that the Police Chief, I think, would,
would answer, you know, much better than I would.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Because we're going to add big capital
dollars, you know, in constructing the police station, and that's the reason
why I asked that both be located at one location, so. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Understandably, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the Chief? If not,
thank you for being here this morning.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Paula Ambre.
MS. AMBRE: Good morning, Council Members -COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
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MS. AMBRE: --Committee Chair, Council Chair. My name is Paula Ambre, I'm
Executive Director of the Maui Farm. I'm here this morning to advocate
for restoration of the $22,000 that has been cut from our line item in the
current version of the budget that you are deliberating on. I need to start
by thanking you all for support over the years. Certainly, we have
developed the Maui Farm as an organization that we hope our community
can be proud of. I've certainly appreciated the positive comments that
have come from this Council to us during the budget hearing process as
well as, as during the deliberations. And so, thank you for that.
The Maui Farm's Family Strengthening Program provides housing and
essential services for families who are homeless due to domestic violence
and economic challenge. We collaborate with partner agencies in the
delivery of a continuum of integrated services that support families in
making a successful transition to self-sufficient living.
The Family Strengthening Program is an important component of the
County's overall plan to address homelessness in our community Our
program works with some of our most vulnerable populations, families
with children who find themselves homeless due to domestic violence and
economic conditions. And we know that during a time of economic
downturn that we will continue to see more and more families who are
being impacted, a loss of jobs, medical benefits, et cetera. This program is
a part of our County's safety net.
We believe that our methods are consistent with some of the things we've
heard from the, the Council, encouragements to us to partner and
collaborate. We work together with Women Helping Women and Family
Life Center to connect our services in a way that strengthens the, the
integration of services as well as to help families to really maximize the
outcomes and this is, also helps in terms of the investment of resources,
produces better outcomes for families. We work in collaboration so that
we ensure that there's no duplication of services that each agency works
from their strengths. We provide individual, individualized services that
help families to improve their motivation to develop the skills and
resources they need to be successful as they move out to transitional
housing or housing in the community. And by working to keep families
safe, in tact, and healthy, we are working to prevent foster care in the
future and we know that children going into foster care doesn't do any
favors for anyone.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

The Maui Farm was included in the Administration proposal at a
10 percent cut to our budget. We've been working since that time to
identify sources of funding to fill that gap. We've been writing grants to
trust and foundations. We're monitoring the stimulus monies that are
coming down through the Federal, State, and County funding systems, and
looking for opportunities that we might be able to capitalize on. And so,
we are working to fill the gap of that first cut. We are trying to maintain
all of our staff so that we don't put other employees out unemployed.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. AMBRE: And so, we're hoping to do, do even more with less resources this
year as we're also expanding, growing food, and sharing that with our
partner agencies as well, to meet basic needs. So, as a small organization
the second cut will be very difficult for our agency to absorb. We
certainly recognize the challenges facing this Council, this Committee, in
their deliberations, and I just want to thank you for the opportunity to
advocate for the restoration of our funds for the Maui Farm's Family
Strengthening Program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. AMBRE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Milton Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. My name
is Milton Arakawa. I'm the Director of Public Works for the County of
Maui. We have reviewed Exhibit 1 prepared for the Budget and Finance
Committee's deliberations on April 20, 2009 and we have the following
comments and suggestions for the Committee's consideration.
On Page 2 of Exhibit 1, Revenue, Line 2-4, it is noted that funding for the
Lahaina Watershed Flood Control Project would be withheld, and we
would request that withholding of funding be deleted since this will only
serve to further delay the construction of the project.
On Page 19 of Exhibit 1, PW 19-13, funding for the vacant Supervising
Building Inspector and Land Use Permit Clerk positions is proposed to be
deleted. Both of these positions are currently being redescribed to address
increased responsibilities due to the inclusion of the Energy Code. So, we

- 53 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

ask that funding be restored from the General Fund or alternatively from
the Building Permit Revolving Fund.
On Page 20 of Exhibit 1, Highways, 19-22, funding for the Tractor Mower
Operator and Laborer II positions are proposed to be deleted. It's noted
that one Tractor Mower Operator position, PW-207, is not included in the
Department's budget proposal but is included in the Vacant Position's
Report provided to the Council by the Department of Personnel Services.
We have no objection to deleting that PW-207 position. However,
funding should not be deleted as it will impact existing filled positions.
Regarding the Laborer II position, this is the PW-0477. This position is
currently filled. So, we would request that this position continue to be
funded.
On Pages 26 and 27 of this Exhibit 1, all the district resurfacing funds are
proposed to be deleted. While we understand the Committee's concern
about resurfacing work under contract from past fiscal years, which has
not yet been completed, please bear in mind that the process that we must
go through is basically to do the design for the resurfacing first. As an
example, this includes an assessment as to whether the base course needs
repair, whether the old asphalt needs to be removed, how thick an asphalt
layer you need, how wide it should be, how drainage should be
accommodated, and what kind of striping is proposed. For all the streets
that are funded in the given fiscal year -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. ARAKAWA: --this design task may take the better part of a year. Also,
during economic boom times of the past years, many contractors have
been very busy and sometimes cannot fulfill the work in a timely manner
that the County expects. In the case of resurfacing, this has been
exasperated since there is one main resurfacing contractor in the County.
During lean economic times, such as we are experiencing presently, we
believe that the amount of encumbrances will be significantly reduced.
Moreover, with the economic downturn contractors certainly need the
work.
Alternatively, the Committee has discussed the desire to have the County
perform a portion of the district resurfacing with its in-house crews. If
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that is the direction of the Committee, then paving equipment needs to be
purchased and the present proposal does not contain purchase of heavy
equipment.
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. ARAKAWA: Just to close, we'd like to emphasize that the resurfacing
program is already lagging and we receive many requests for resurfacing
and cutting its funding will only further setback resurfacing efforts in the
County.
One last thing, on Page 47, Grant 32-26, there is a 37 million Corps of
Engineers Grant, and based on the latest information from the Corps of
Engineers, construction is not scheduled to start until October of 2011.
So, this entry can be deleted from the Fiscal Year '10 Budget Proposal.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that information. Milton, do you have
written testimony that you can provide the Members because that was a lot
that you provided us this morning.
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, we will provide the Committee written copies of that
testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, thank, thank you. Members, any questions
for Mr. Arakawa? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just very quickly,
just for clarification on Page 20, when you talked about Highway 19-22,
you did say the Laborer II position is already currently filled. Is that
correct?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and then on the Tractor Mower
Operator, did, is that also true that, that position is filled?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, I, I think, that. . .the position you're referring to, and you
can correct me if I'm wrong, is that PW-207 position, which was referred
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to in the DPS Vacant Position's Report, that was never included in the
Department's proposed budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so, that position PW-207, which is a
Tractor Mower Operator's position is no, shouldn't be under
consideration?
MR. ARAKAWA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Director.
MR. ARAKAWA: So, my only point was if it's not in the Department's budget
and if you delete the funds then it's going to be deleting the funds for
someone else. So, we would ask that funds not be deleted.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Thank you, Director. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Arakawa? Staff, fast question, do we have the dollar amount in
regards to the fees that it--what Department was that?--DSA have in their
account? Is that the area that you was looking at as possibility of funding
some of, or a position?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, there's the Building Permit Revolving Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
MS. REVELS: Yes, Mr. Chair, there is approximately 3 7 million in the Plan
Review Permit Processing and Inspection Revolving Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for, any more
questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If I may. So, Milton, you're saying that the
Army Corps of Engineers Grant for the 37 million, that's the one you said
that we're not going to get started to 2011?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct, so, it can be deleted from the Fiscal Year '10
budget proposal.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that would have not, would not inhibit
us from getting the matching or Federal grants or anything like that?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, it's simply not going to start construction during the
Fiscal Year 2010 period. So, when they are ready, we will come forward
and request and, and be recognized in the County budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Arakawa? Seeing none, thank you, Milton.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Gen finuma.
MR. IINUMA: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members of the Council.
My name is Gen finuma and I have the privilege of serving as the
Administrator for the Maui County Civil Defense Agency. You've got a
really difficult task ahead of you and trying to balance our budget. And
I'm here this morning to plead for your retention of Civil Defense
personnel position funding.
Specifically, I'm looking at Exhibit 1, Page 3, where we have a number of
positions, three positions that are looking at deletions for funding, the
Civil Defense Technician, reduction of funds for our Civil Defense Staff
Specialist, and reduction for the Administrative Assistant. For your
information, the Civil Defense Staff Specialist position, as well as our
Plans and Operation position, which is vacant, has been through a
recruitment process. They took the test last week. I believe there were 40
some what applicants for both positions. We're currently waiting for a
candidate's list to hire. The Administrative Assistant position has been
filled through internal transfer, and that position, the former position, will
be coming up. It's going to be vacant. Oh, it is vacant and will be coming
up for recruitment.
I'm also here to seek your assistance and seek your approval to include
two grant funded positions that were formerly in the budget. These
positions will be paid for through Home Land Security funds and would
be providing work activities or duties and responsibilities to support Home
Land Security Grant Program.
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And the third item that I'd like to address is that spoken to by
Mr. Verkerke and Chief Murray in support of the Emergency Management
Center. I believe that it's a very opportune time to move forward with this
position to . . . (end of tape 2B). . . funding to initiate action. As you are
well aware our current facilities are quite dated and, I think, it's an
opportunity to leverage County funding with Federal, Federal matching
dollars.
The Civil Defense Agency is tasked with a number of coordinating issues
and we feel that the staff positions are very critical to our operations. As
you are well aware, these positions often times or the kind of work that we
do are fly way below the radar screen. Many of the tasks we do, and one
example is like last night we had staff up doing advisories for flooding.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. IINUMA: Often times these kinds of things come up. Recently, we had the
North Korean missile, ballistic missile firing, and we had staff monitoring
those kinds of situations, things that are normally not thought of in the
Civil Defense realm, but certainly we would like to have our positions
considered in terms of retention of funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Iinuma?
Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Iinuma, good morning.
MR. IINUMA: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Iinuma, in regards to your positions you, you have
spoken in trying to retain the positions within your Department. In your
original submission upon direction to provide the Administration with...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Savings.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: ...yeah, with savings, you had, you had originally
submitted a reduction in salaries for $37,000. Can you tell us what
position this references?
MR. IINUMA: What we hoped to do was look at the, in the hiring process,
because we know that as you well aware that it takes some time to, to hire
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positions in, and to look at that cost savings from, from the time frame for
hiring. We were not looking at reducing salaries but using this, a time
frame for hiring as, as the padding.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And the reduction then would be reflective of these, of
any of these three positions that you have referenced?
MR. IINUMA: Well, currently, again, with the vacancies that we have we should
realize some savings in there. However, to reduce the fundings for the
staff that are already on board, it's going to be quite difficult.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, so, I, once again, the 37,000 that you showed as
a, as a reduction in terms of savings references these same three positions
that currently we're looking at in the budget.
MR. IINUMA: Well, some of the 37,000, I believe, was also in operations, it
was, yeah..
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, in operations, you submitted $50,000 in reductions.
So, the 37,000, does it reference these same three positions that we're
looking at in the budget?
MR. IINUMA: One, one in particular.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you name it?
MR. IINUMA: It would be the Staff, the Staff Specialist, the new one coming
aboard.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank, thank you, Mr. Iinuma. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Iinuma? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Jeffrey Amaral.
MR. AMARAL: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla, and fellow Council
Members. My name is Jeffrey Amaral. I'm a Captain with the Maui
Police Department. Assigned to the Office of the Chief, I handle a lot of
communications projects for Maui County. I'm here on behalf of Chief
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Phillips and Deputy Chief Yabuta, who is off-island attending meetings
today.
I'm here to support the $290,000 CIP request for the Emergency
Management Center slated for Waikapu and the preservation of more than
$850,000 of Federal dollars associated with this request. This
appropriation would allow the process to begin on the planning and design
phase for the Emergency Management Center project.
First off, let me stress that this is not a project involving only our County
MIS Division. In addition to providing a secured backed up facility for
our software and electronic data information to keep Maui County
functioning, this project is supported by the Police, the Fire Department,
and Civil Defense Agency, as well as the other service, emergency service
providers, who perform vital functions within our community during times
of need.
Maui Police Department supports this budget item as we plan to move the
County 911 Call Center and Dispatch Facility to the EMC. We have been
in the current 911 Center since 1987 with absolutely no room for
expansion, even though Maui's population and calls for service have
increased tremendously since then.
The new center would be planned for increased dispatcher and call
positions and include the ever important facility, training facility to allow
dispatchers to be trained in a more realistic environment and to better
prepare them for handling real time emergencies. Currently, dispatchers,
trainees are shuffled from various conference and meeting rooms in order
to go through the required training. The vital service that 911 provides,
along with the dedicated individuals that serve our community in this
capacity, deserves our support. It is also becoming more increasingly
difficult to improve the current facility as it must be kept live 24/7, thus
minimizing the options for changing out equipment and making the
facility modifications due to limited space and noise abatement and so
forth.
In addition to 911, 911 operations and training, we would like to be
looking at moving our Radio Operations facility to the Emergency
Management Center as this would relocate vital operating mainframe
equipment into a much more hardened facility and would protect
equipment, have adequate back up power, provide for redundancy in
electrical and telephone circuits to the facility, and make Maui County's
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ability to respond to serious emergency situations with increased
capability, and a more robust design of utility and structural environment.
A lot of effort has been put into a collaborative effort from various
departments to search for the right location for such a facility in Maui
County. We believe Waikapu to be that location. It's a location outside of
the inundation zone. It's near the government seat and with easy and
quick access to other government support agencies.
Understanding the budget crunch we are facing, we also face the
responsibility of keeping core governmental operations intact during
serious emergencies.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. AMARAL: Please look closely at the importance of this request and we ask
that you do not make any cuts of this funding request. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Captain
Amaral? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Since you mention location as being important,
why would Kihei not be a place that you would put it? Or, do you need
collaboration amongst your other agencies?
MR. AMARAL: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. That's one of the reasons. Others
would be the access to and from Kihei during a vital or, or a big
emergency event would, would be hampered. We've also looked at
wanting to have multiple points of connectivity, especially for land line
circuits that come into the facility, so that we would have a little bit closer
location to not only the Wailuku Central Exchange office but the Kahului
office, electrical power coming off of various sides of the grid, so that
when we lose a circuit we're not totally down and so forth. We've looked
at various communications devices that we would need to attach to the
facility, such as microwave connectivity, not only to the top of Haleakala
but some of the other various offices within Central, the plains here in
Maui and found Waikapu to be one of the core locations.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I was going to ask the same question.
Thank you, Captain. Members, any more questions for the testifier this
morning? Seeing none, thanks. The next testifier is Kalbert Young.
MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair Good morning, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MR. YOUNG: Kalbert Young, Director for the Department of Finance I know
all of you here know that I also know how strongly and difficult you have
a challenge before you related to the budget. There are no easy answers
after listening to everyone's wants and needs from the various departments
and community groups. There are no easy solutions, so we are all in this
trying to find the difficult answers. I've chosen this more formal
opportunity to provide just some testimony as it relates specifically to the
Department of Finance
There's two revisions that are being proposed from the Mayor's proposed
budget related to Department of Finance related to various positions and I
just wanted to provide you with some additional information as to what
those positions mean.
The first is a, a line item to delete the expansion positions for the
Accountant V and reduce funding for Fiscal Analyst from eight months to
six months. The justification for these two positions in the Accounts
Division in the Department of Finance are specifically to address concerns
raised by the Council contracted auditors in the course of doing their audit
work for compilation of the Fiscal Year '08 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, which the Council is soon to deliberate after the
conclusion of the budget sessions. The concerns raised by the auditors
were directly attributable to a concern over existing resource levels within
the Department of Finance as being too limited to meet the fmancial audit
timeline requirements established by the Maui County Code.
Management believes that adding resources is the strategy to proactively
meet the requirements and expectations for future audit years.
The second was a delete the funding for a vacant Cartographic Drafting
Technician III and GIS Analyst III. These positions are two distinct
functions and positions. The Cartographic Drafting Technician is a highly
technical skill that is currently be redescribed to include GIS duties to
support a Countywide migration to GIS functionalities within the Real
Property Tax Division. Although the position is, and has been officially
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vacant during this redescription process, there is an employee currently
temporarily assigned to do this function. This position is the sole mapping
position within the Real Property Tax Division. The extremely technical
nature and requirements for this position, not only make it an important
function, but difficult to locate skills in the marketplace. This is the
reason that the recruitment process has been prolonged and extended.
Management is working with the civil service, personnel services process
to satisfy this necessary function. Please also know that the Division has
been working over the last five years to reduce a significant backlog of
mapping and subdivision assignments and this position is directly
responsible for these efforts.
The new expansion position for a GIS Analyst is necessary to further
incorporate GIS functionality within the Division. The Maui, the County
of Maui has been moving in the more contemporary technology of GIS in
other operational areas of the County. This position will provide
professional and technical oversight for the entire GIS program within
Real Property Tax Division. The new position, in concert with the
Cartographic Drafting, Drafting Technician, will provide a full
complement of mapping services, expertise for the Division, and will
enable the County to become a truly self-sufficient, and no longer reliant
on the contract services for this function previously provided by the City,
or by private contracted services.
Management believes that once these positions are established internally;
there will be improved control and accountability of outstanding
subdivision mapping and inventory.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. YOUNG: These will translate to more efficient revenue generation through
the Real Property Tax Division.
Please also note that the positions requested by Finance were first
evaluated to be funded without an increase to the Department's
operational budget in Fiscal Year '10 compared to '09. Management
looked first at conserving and reducing costs before considering expansion
positions within the Department. The Department's perspective is that
these positions are highly, are high priority items to address significant
issues and deficiencies within our core functions presently.
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With that, I request your consideration for reinstating these positions into
the budget. And, and I'm available for any alternatives that the Council
may, may consider. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Molina followed by Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Good afternoon or shall I
say, I guess, good morning, Mr. Director. With regards to the GIS Analyst
position, you mentioned that we contract out to Honolulu and other
people. How much does it cost typically a year for these services?
MR. YOUNG: We contracted out for the last five years on a, basically on a per
hour basis, so the City's cost basis is relative to who they have employed
and are assigned to our projects. And relative then to the amount of work
that we provide to them. The contract can run anywhere from in the 30 to
$40,000 range. When the backlog was quite extensive, it was obviously
quite more than that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, so, you're looking at potentially a greater
return for the County long-term benefit if we reinstate this position
request?
MR. YOUNG: Well, what we desire is that over the last five years the backlog
has been significantly reduced to where, you know, operationally, I would
say there are none. But what we want to preserve is that if the County can
maintain that status and not fall or return to a backlog situation that we can
be self-sufficient and not rely on the workload of, of other counties or the
City, or on contracting through a private service.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chair, thank you. Mr. Young, good morning, and,
and thank you -MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAR MATEO: --very much for your, your comments this morning. The
Cartographic Drafting Technician that, that you just referenced a, a minute
ago, was the listing on the personnel services...the listing that they
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provided to this body in terms of vacancies, was that in error when they
indicated that since 2007 there was no request to fill?
MR. YOUNG: I would consider that an error, Mr., Mr. Chairman, because since
that time we have been actually actively moving through the process to
recruit. In fact, that position has, to my recollection, was advertised for
recruitment as late as in 2008. Now, admittedly, though that position has
been vacant because that recruitment didn't result in any qualified
candidates because of the technical nature and we are working with DPS
to get that position redescribed to incorporate a GIS functionality. One on
the thought that there might be more applicants that would have that
background, but two, the GIS functionality is, is the movement of the
future for the County in more contemporary technologies.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. And, and Mr. Chair, I, I think, I
think, our exercise was good if it can bring the departments to us to give
us the current updates because the information we can work off is only as
good as the information that we get. So, I, I, I think, for us this was, this
has been a benefit. Thank you very much, Chairman. Thank you,
Mr. Young.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? I, I do have one. The person that is TA'd right now to the GIS
position?
MR. YOUNG: Not, we don't, we don't have a GIS position, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Or someone that...
MR. YOUNG: The Cartographic, the Cartographic Drafting Technician, yes.
That, that position currently does exist and is being temporarily assigned
to, to a person.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, who handles that person's job, or was thatTA'd?
MR. YOUNG: We have several low, lower level mapping assistants that are
being functioning in different capacities but currently the supervisor for
those mapping assistants is actually TA'ing to that Cartographic Drafting
Technician
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, you have supervisors during the work then?
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MR. YOUNG: Yes. The work needs to be done because as we all know the tax
mapping for real property tax is the impetuous for all assignments of tax
map keys. So, we cannot do without that function. So, someone needs to
be doing that whether by TA or through an assignment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing
none, thank you, Kalbert.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Jocelyn Bouchard.
MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Members.
My name is Jocelyn Bouchard and I'm honored and privileged to be the
CEO for the Maui Humane Society. I have handed out some written
backup for this testimony, but I wanted to take this opportunity to clarify
the situation with the Animal Management Revolving Fund. What you
have in front of you is basically what I'm about to say, plus I attached the
past two years of deposits that we make to this fund so you can get an idea
of how much goes into it and, and what, and what goes into it.
What, what I want to make sure that, that I communicate today is that I
have been working with Grants Management staff to access monies from
this fund for three major items since early in this fiscal year. These items
and the anticipated costs are: conversion from our current cesspool to a
septic tank, about 83,000; modular building to address space issues, about
190,000; and replacement computers for about 25,000.
Unfortunately, we were held up in accessing these funds as we were quite
frankly trying to have to avoid going through the sealed bid process in an
attempt to keep the costs down on these projects. These funds would have
been expended long ago were we able to access or, or not go through that
process. However, we did have to go through that process and we actually
just closed the acceptance of the bids recently and are moving forward
with these, actually recently on Friday and we're moving forward with
that, those projects.
We also could have made these purchases in a more economic manner and
it was a little bit frustrating to us because I believe that the County
contracts with nonprofits. One of the reasons why is 'cause we can do
things usually more economically and more expediently and we were
really held up with this process basically having to do just what any
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County Department would do. And I understand that there's reasons for
that but that was a bit of a frustration for us.
So the computers are currently being purchased through the County's MIS
Department. The cesspool conversion must be completed by August and
the modular building is being purchased as a temporary solution to address
program and office space issues in our 30-year old facility after we
decided to delay our proposed capital campaign given the current
economic climate.
The current balance of the Animal Management Revolving Fund is some
where around 277,000 as the staff reported yesterday. But the Maui
Humane Society as you can see submits quarterly revenues to this fund
and we still have the third and fourth quarter deposits to make. On
average, we deposit about $65,000 to $70,000 a year into this fund, which
is actually set up to address one time emergency or unanticipated costs
related to our contractual obligations with the County.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. BOUCHARD: And so, if you do the math on these numbers, you'll see that
the fund will pretty much be drained by the time we complete these three
purposes, purchases, excuse me. And at best, when, with our continuing
deposits to this fund, we might sit about 70,000 to 80,000 at the end of
Fiscal Year '10.
If we take this full $150,000 cut and we can't get it out of the revolving
fund, this will make layoffs inevitable and we will have to look at cutting
hours, programs, or services. At a time when we are seeing increased
demand for our services, increased intake in the animals, that obviously
has great concerns to us to, to take that kind of cut. And we did offer a
voluntary cut of 4.3 percent, which was in the Mayor's proposed budget as
recognition as Lori said earlier, Ms. Tsuhako, from Housing and Human
Concerns, that was our best attempt to address the funding issues that I
know are before you this year.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MS. BOUCHARD: And, thank you, again, for all your dedication and service to
Maui County.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Jocelyn, so, what you're saying is that if
I just read your summary sheet here these are more capital kind of
expenditures, like your 83,000, the 190, and then the 25,000, and you
ordinarily don't tap into that fund because of the, I guess, just for your
normal operating expenses?
MS. BOUCHARD: Correct, we try to do it not for what I call a cumulative
expenses, like operations, salaries, things like that, rather for one time
things like the computers or something or emergency or unanticipated
needs, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you're, you're pretty much going to wipe
out then with those three things the money that's currently in there and
then if we cut you 150,000 that would come directly out of, you know,
your, your grant monies.
MS. BOUCHARD: That's correct. At best, as I say, we might be back up to
about 60 or 70,000 by the end of the next fiscal year. So, we would be
short if you decided to take that 150 out of here, we're not going to get it
all out of there unless we cut out one of these purchases.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right and then in regard to your, I guess, it
would be your reference to the animals and the number of intakes in
increases that you've had for calls, do you have like a ballpark
percentage?
MS. BOUCHARD: Fourteen percent is the increase in intakes and I don't have a
percentage for the spay/ neuter, which is the other area that we're getting a
lot more requests for that sort of assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, alright, thank you very much, Jocelyn.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Bouchard, good morning.
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MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Did I hear you correct, correctly that the elimination or
the reduction by 150,000 off of your budget could result in, in layoffs?
MS. BOUCHARD: Will result in layoffs. Yeah, I, I don't see how we would
take that kind of a hit and, and still preserve all our staff.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And, and this is from a budget of, the resulting budget
will be $1,320,000. You still will end up with a layoff of individuals at
your facility?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, because a lot of...I mean, really the only other things,
what could we cut? Food for the animals? You know, the, the trucks that
we drive in? The electric, you know, things like that? We've already
done our best attempt to trim all of that with the 4.3. So, at this point,
we'd really be having to look at our staff and, and cutting, and we've also
frozen positions as they've opened, which has helped us to, to project
some of those decreased spendings as well. But at this point, I, I think,
that we would be looking definitely at some staff people because they're
kind of interwoven with the programs.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. So, out of your $1,333,000 remaining
budget, what percentage of that is salaries?
MS. BOUCHARD: Oh boy, I should have that figure for you, shouldn't I?
Because it's the County portion, I believe, it's somewhere around
800 to 900 of that is salaries for animal control, animal caretakers, front
office staff, et cetera. So, quite a significant amount of that is paid out in
salaries.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, about 90 percent of this figure is salaries?
MS. BOUCHARD: Is that right, 8, 9 out of, yeah, sounds right, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, $1,300,030 -MS. BOUCHARD: You know, I would, I would...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --30...1,330,000, 90 percent of that is salaries?
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MS. BOUCHARD: If you're going to take that as gospel from me, Member
Mateo, I would like to be able to send something to you to confirm that.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, It's not gospel. I don't take it as gospel from
you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Okay, alright.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So, ballpark it, about 90 percent.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? I, I do have several questions in regards to the Grant
Management staff. And you say that you've been working with them to
do these three projects.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know the cesspool to septic tank that is a
requirement. Replacement of computers, I don't know how old are, are
your computers. But the modular building to address space issues, can
that be delayed one fiscal year?
MS. BOUCHARD: It, it, it basically it could be delayed but right now we're
already working on top of each other. And so, we were really looking to
alleviate with the capital campaign and it, it does, it, the Animal Control,
specifically, there's nine staff working in, in a room that's about, I don't
know, 12 x 12. And you know, they deal with people, clients, they need a
private place to talk to people. So, we were moving them so they would
have more space, private areas to talk, and also, the lobby, which becomes
very full. So, yes, if we had to, we could, but it would severely impact our
ability to continue to provide service to the community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, your capital campaign, I assume you, you do a
capital campaign to -MS. BOUCHARD: Rebuild the whole facility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --feasibility your space requirement?
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MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, your capital campaign for the next fiscal year, I
don't know how much money you got. I, I know you do fundraisers. Can
that supplement this modular building?
MS. BOUCHARD: I'm sorry, can you ask that question again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The capital campaign that you just completed, can that
or you anticipate to have, can it complement the addressing of space
issues?
MS. BOUCHARD: It will address that but the capital campaign has been
postponed. We haven't even started it, let alone completed it, because of
the economy right now. We didn't feel it was a good time to go into a
capital campaign. So, it is absolutely going to address space issues,
productivity issues, functional issues, et cetera.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, your previous capital campaigns then you don't
have any funding in?
MS. BOUCHARD: That's correct. The facility that we are in, we have been in
since 1989, with only band aid improvements. So, we have not had a
capital campaign since that time, I guess, which is long before me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lynn Krieg.
MS. KRIEG: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Chair Mateo.
This morning I was just trying to provide the Council Members with an
updated list of vacancies because I found out late yesterday afternoon that
you may be working off of the 3/11 vacancy list, which actually
was...well, the list of vacancies is a very alive document and it's pretty
much outdated as soon as it's printed sometimes. So, when I learned that
you were possibly working off of that document, I felt that it was very
important that the list be updated for you as you progressed on your
proceedings. So, what you have before you is something that my staff
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worked on beginning about 4 o'clock yesterday afternoon and they
completed it as much as they could right before we started, came down
this . . .(end of tape 3A).. .
One of the, one of the positions in your Exhibit 1 that I was able to or that
I did notice, and I did have some concerns about, was in the Parks
Department and on the vacancy report itself it is on Page 6. And that is
the Parks and Recreation District Supervisor III. This is the South Maui
District Supervisor. I have a notation there and it's just for your
information. This is a temporary vacancy. It's actually a limited term
vacancy. You have it earmarked in your Exhibit 1 as to delete the funding
and actually I just wanted a point of information for you. The position has
a permanent incumbent. That permanent incumbent is temporarily
promoted to the Aquatic Chief position with return rights to this position.
The return rights can be prompted either by the person not passing
probation, which I doubt very much because she's doing an excellent job
right now with the filling the Makena position and then filling the
subsequent vacancies with the pool positions, et cetera. It can also be
prompted by just her decision to return should she want to return. If that
occurs and there's no funding that would be devastating to the South Maui
District operations because they would have to come up with the $53-plus
to fund the position. That's just for your information.
Also, for your information or just...I noticed that in your Exhibit 1 there
are some other deletions for funding or reduction in funding for vacant
positions.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. KRIEG: I would just like to ask your consideration for positions that have
already had lists sent to the departments or that have had recruitments
recently completed because these positions, the departments will be ready
to have the positions filled either by July 1 st or within two or three months
thereafter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Ms. Krieg, the reference that you just
made about us being careful about cutting those positions. Would you be
able to specifically look at the list of positions that we intend or that are
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proposed to be eliminated and then could you alert us to which of those
fall into the category that you just mentioned?
MS. KRIEG: On your Exhibit 1?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. KRIEG: If I, if I'm able to consult with the departments because your list
doesn't have position numbers. For example, like Public Works testified
the Tractor Mower Operator position. If I go to the vacancy list, it is
notated on the vacancy list, I believe, Page 16, that the Tractor Mower
Operator position, PW-0207. It is listed there that per the Department that
was an unfunded position. So, what Mr. Arakawa stated to you is correct
that if you delete funding you will actually be deleting funding for an
already filled position.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that's where we need your
assistance because we're doing the best we can -MS. KRIEG: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --as Chair Mateo said off of the list that we
have -MS. KRIEG: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --with current information. So, we just need
to know which one of those positions if you've already got candidates,
you've gone through recruit, if you have that position about to be filled,
you know, at least separate that from those positions that are already filled
where you've indicated like on this other return position that it would
create a problem contractually.
MS. KRIEG: Right. Unfortunately, yesterday due to a server glitch, I didn't
receive the Exhibit 1 until late yesterday afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, well, I, I look forward to seeing that
and then fmding out how we're going to come up with the money. And if
you fmd any of that, let us know too. Thank you.
MS. KRIEG: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Krieg, fast, fast question. As far as the
vacancies on the reports that you, you give us, and I, I know there's
movements within the Department, so when there's movements there's,
you create funding because of another vacant becomes filled, another
position becomes vacant. Do you know how many of those type of
movements that have occurred or going to occur that will provide some
funding to fund some of these positions that now being requested by the
Departments?
MS. KRIEG: I cannot say right off. I know what you are referring to that as far
as the delayed funding of positions that the departments do have leeway
in, because of the program funding they can, you know, they can make the
decision on where to have savings and they can make decisions as to
where to allocate funds and make those priority type decisions, especially
the larger departments. But for smaller departments they don't have that
kind of discretion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, Chairman, if, if I could. Ms., Ms. Krieg,
some of the departments that have come forward because of at, at this
point deletion or reduction in, in positions. Some of, some of the, I guess,
the, the shortcomings all go back or refer back to your Department not
being able to process it on a timely, on a timely basis. In addition, some
of the positions are just aged. They're, they're just old positions and when
I, when, when I hear that and when I take a look at some of the areas in
your own submissions for your targeted savings, you recognized in your
own Department savings both in salaries and in operations. So, I don't
know how to justify the, the slowness say in getting the positions actually
described or redescribed. Is there actual...actually a problem in your
Department with getting the so-called positions either processed on a
timely basis or described or reallocated? What seems to be the hang up
because you can recognize savings in both salaries and operations from
your Department?
MS. KRIEG: We have had problems or we can identify certain problems. Some
of the problems depend on specific classes or specific positions that are
being requested to be classified. We've also had problems in terms of new
employees that are untrained to handle the, the type of classification work
that, that needs to be done whenever new positions, new classes of work
need to be created, or reclassifications of work need to be created. And
the, you know, recruitment, if it's an already established class is no
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problem. If they come in to ask for an already established class to be
recruited, we'll just take a look to see if there's any change in the position
description. If not, then we can just go out and recruit. But if it's a new
class or if it's a position and the position description comes in and there's
a change, then we have to take a look at whether or not it affects the
classification, and if it does then we have to reclassify the position, and all
of that takes time, and especially if it's a new class that has to be created.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: What would the turnaround time be for a new class to
be created?
MS. KRIEG: Again, it depends on what the class is but that can take anywhere
from six months to a year. It depends again on what the class is.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That's not acceptable, six months to a year is not
acceptable for a system that you, you participate and you run, that is a civil
servant position that gets civil service classifications by means of
consistency in your own computer systems. You're hooked up to the civil
service system. One year for reallocation or the description of is not
acceptable for this County. Hence, we get into these problems.
Mr. Chairman, thank you, I'm done. Thank you very much, Ms. Krieg.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing,
seeing none, thank you, Lynn, for being here. And, Members, forgive the
Chairman, I'm giving the Department Heads some ability to explain, you
know, the needs for some of the deletion of funding as well as expansion
positions, and, I think, we've heard good answers this morning as
compared to our deliberation the last several weeks. Next testifier is Tom
Blackburn-Rodriguez.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Good morning, Mr. Chairman -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: --Members of the Budget and Finance and
the County Council. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez and I'm
testifying as an individual. And I would like to first of all thank you,
Mr. Chairman, and the Members of the Committee for your continued
support and understanding in the difficult choices you're having to make
in supporting the need for rental assistance.
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I think the term now that we hear increasingly and sadly we've moved
from the concept of working poor, now we hear increasingly the concept
of the working homeless. I know that this will only be a problem that will
increase. Economists like to talk about us regular folks as lagging
indicators. That means that unemployment will continue to increase. That
means that there will be less and less money there and also, of course, less
and less tax revenue. But even though the term lagging indicators may be
a term that economists are comfortable with, I know that you are not. And
so, I would just simply like to say, mahalo, for those who are not here
today, who a part of that working homeless, the working poor, who rely
upon you and all of the tough decisions that you have to make.
And I'd like to conclude by saying that there's something that I've been
thinking about. I just wanted to share it and then I'd like to, to, to say
thank you again. Now, when the budget is passed and so much will have
happened, it's obvious from what we're hearing so often is that we still
need to take an additional step and that really is to take now a
comprehensive overall look at the economic resources that the County has,
the private sector has, the non-profit sector has, the faith community has in
order to address the problems of the economic turmoil in Maui County.
And, I believe, that we need to establish an emergency economic recovery
council. We need to look at an economic recovery plan for Maui County.
We need to look across the board at all of the myriad of resources, both
fiscal, non fiscal that are there, and come up with an economic recovery
plan for Maui County.
And so, I am suggesting that the Council put in a line item in the budget
for $1, and that the recommendation be to the Administration that they
seek out an individual, and pay that individual $1 a year in order to help
administer and begin the process of the economic recovery for Maui
County. We cannot wait for the Federal government. We cannot wait for
the State. We need to be able to look at our own resources, our own
bootstraps, and once you commit the millions of dollars that are necessary
to run the County, and we look at all the resources that available, I think,
that is the time not to have a meeting, not to have a Council meeting -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: --of, of a group, thank you, but actually to
come up with a very specific action plan of how all of these funds will be
used in the next, in next fiscal year. And so, I'd like to thank you again
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for supporting rental assistance for those in need and suggest a $1 line
item budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Tom, and
thank you very much for your suggestion. I think it's a very good one.
You know, the revenues forecasted for next year, it's going to be worse
and we are, as you stated before at a crisis point, for many, in regards to
housing and other issues. Do you have someone in mind that would
accept the $1 nominal fee for this, 'cause, I mean, I can think of one right
now and I may be looking at that person?
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: I, I think that, that given the, the history of
service of, of many people in this County that there are any number of
people who have the expertise and the intelligence and the heart and the
ability to carry out that position and I would leave that up to the Council
and to, and to the Administration. But, I believe, that there are many
people here committed to public service who are successful in business,
successful in other areas, and that would be the kind of person that I would
look forward to seeing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Tom. Well, I think that
the time to implement something like this, you, know, we can't sit on this
`cause it's only going to be forecasted to get worse, and so.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: I believe now is the time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for being here this afternoon, Tom.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you very much, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier, testifier is Zach, Zachery Helm.
Members, we, we got two more after Zach.
MR. HELM: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla, and Committee Members. I'm
Zachery Helm and I'm the Deputy Director for the Department of Parks
and Recreation. I just like to say that I appreciate your hard, hard work
and support for not only going through a very difficult situation here but
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throughout the years that the, the work that you have compiled and put
together. I just like to extend my appreciation.
As you know, our mission statement for the Department is to provide safe,
satisfying, and cost effective recreational experiences for the residents and
visitors of Maui County. In order for us to maintain that goals and be
efficient we, we would like to continue to provide the, the services that
we've been providing for, for these years.
First of all, I'd like to go on Exhibit 1 regarding vacant positions. On
Page 11 of 18, I'd like to cover some of the positions that you have
recommended to freeze. This is the Pool Guard, PR-0271. It's a half-time
permanent position and it's, we're waiting for the list from DPS to have it
filled. Position, Pool Guard position, PR-0304, we've already made a
selection for that position. And PR-0295 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, Zach, that's the, what's, what's the date on,
on your list? Is that the one that was...
MR. HELM: This is the Committee Members proposals. Yeah, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gotta use the Chair one. Get one different
one. That's why I couldn't find the page.
MR. HELM: I have, I have that page. Yeah, I just want to make sure that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Zach, yeah, I think, if, if you could review Exhibit 1
from the Chair Some of the items that you addressing weren't deleted.
MR. HELM: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, as you look through that, you know, try to
. . .(inaudible). . .

MR. HELM: Okay, thank you. So, let's go on Page 16, 16 of 50, okay. I'd like
to also mention what Lynn Krieg says from DPS that the District
Supervisor position for South District, we're temporarily assigning
someone because the individual that had that position is on, she's our
Chief of Aquatics now so she has return rights.
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So, I'd like to also mention that there is the Recreation Leader II position,
and, I believe, this is the PALS Recreation Leader II in, in the Central
District. Just to comment, we, we don't want to lose this position.
Currently, we have someone TA'ing into that position. And as you know,
the PALS Program has increased due to the fact that the State is
eliminating the A-Plus Program. So, it really has increased this year and
we, we really need all the help we can get. And we, we average about
3,000 youths a year and so, we, we did have an increase in, in
participation. So, I would urge that, you know, you restore that position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Zach, all of the positions in the Parks in that one area
that you looking at, we just deleting the funding. The position still
remains. In regards to some of the, like the last one that you mentioned
TA'd, you know, that position is still, still there.
MR. HELM: Very good. And then I know there's some concerns about some
half-time PC-1 positions that is possibly being deleted. As you know, the
half-time PC-1 positions are, are needed for the evening and the weekends
coverage because, you know, it's a 24/7 job that we need maintain the
restrooms, the parks, and eliminating any of these PC-1 half-time positions
will, will be devastating for us at least.
Also, regarding the General Fund, I believe, CIP, I know, there's talk
about possibly, I'm not sure if this is true, but talk about eliminating
maybe the, the funding for War Memorial Football Stadium, that
$300,000. I urge that we keep those, those monies intact because we
really need to improve the stadium because it's really falling apart. So, I
urge that we support that, you support that.
And the other thing is that the, the tree trimming budget for the
Maintenance Division. I believe there's a proposal of deleting some of the
funding for that. As you know, we do, do street trimming, street tree
trimming and parks, and every year the price, the funding, the cost of tree
trimming goes up. So, I think, the biggest concern is the liability. So, we,
we would urge that you would support the tree trimming funding. And, I
know, I know, there's a few dollars that you folks may consider cutting on
that. But anyway that's pretty much it and I thank you once again for, for
your support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Zach, thank you. Just to let you know, I
don't think we cut the funding for the War Memorial. I don't think we cut
the funding for tree trimming. Those are essential stuff that we need to do.
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In regards to all of your positions, although we deleted the funding, you
know, it's a program budget. You have the ability to look at other
savings, hopefully, on the Fiscal Year '10 Budget to accommodate those
positions. So, thank you, Zach.
MR. HELM: Thank you, thank you for giving me the opportunity, you know, -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HELM: --for sharing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yes, thank you for
being here -MR. HELM: Thank you, Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Mr. Helm. You know, on the South Maui
District Supervisor's position, that person got elevated up to Chief of
Aquatics.
MR. HELM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that correct?
MR. HELM: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But, so, the person that filled that District
Supervisor's position is on a LTA, limited term appointment?
MR. HELM: Yeah, yeah, he, that person is also on limited term.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, the person that got elevated up to the
Chief of Aquatics, where was the incumbent? Where did the incumbent
go? Because to elevate up, somebody had to leave that position. Did they
retire? Did that person get elevated to another higher position?
MR. HELM: Now, what, what, what is this position?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You have a temp, you have a person in Chief
of Aquatics.
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MR. HELM: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That was the South Maui District
Supervisor.
MR. HELM: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, where was the incumbent? Where's the
incumbent of the Chief of Aquatics? What happened to that person?
MR. HELM: Working with the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, my, my concern is if, if that's
available to people that get promoted that ties up everything all the way
down the line and pretty soon, you know you have an open...
MR. HELM: Including myself.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, you have a open vacancy that will sit
there for a long time. I didn't realize that was available to people except
in promotions. I know the return rights was available for people that left
the County but had a right to return within two years. So, that, that's new
to me, and that's interesting to hear that because it really ties up a lot
positions and funding. But, thank you for that, Mr. Helm. Mahalo,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Helm? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Helm, also in the
Department's targeted savings just out of salaries alone, the Department
recognizes savings of $1,126,000 that could also be appreciated. So, in
terms of addressing some of the positions, I believe just the Department
also has the ability to recognize addressing the need that your, you're
citing just through the savings that the Department has also recognized as
well. So, I don't think we have a problem with positions at this point.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for
Mr. Helm? Seeing none, thank you, Zach, for being here. Next testifier is
Warren Watanabe.
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MR. WATANABE: Thank you, Chairman and Members of the Committee. My
name is Warren Watanabe, Executive Director of the Farm Bureau. I just
wanted to thank you for your past support and your, hopefully your
continued support of the Farm Bureau.
I just wanted to make some clarifications and I appreciate Mr. Mina
coming down to explaining what his proposal is. So, now, I have a better
understanding also. But I also want to say that, you know, we, the Farm
Bureau grant consists of different commodity groups, and they have their
specific budgets, but our Farm Bureau budget also helps them as a whole
because our budget we try to incorporate everybody. So, like our Grown
on Maui Program, Ag in the Classroom helps all of these groups also. So,
it kind of supplements their budget.
Also, I wanted to, there was a question about why the commodity groups
are under Farm Bureau. As I recall, and I...maybe Councilmember
Nishiki may be remember, Council's in the past had actually decided to
put the commodity groups under Farm Bureau. And, I think, I believe the
purpose was to kind of streamline the process and getting the grants
through. So, that is kind of a history of why, why we're all incorporated
into Farm Bureau.
And, I think, basically, I wanted to maybe address, you know, I don't
know if it's related to budget but, you know, our farmers are struggling.
And I have mentioned in, the past, it's not just in Maui County, but across
the State, in fact, across the nation. What, as Farm Bureau, I think what
we could, we would like to say, and it may not be a monetary expense to
the County, is to have policies that address what Vincent brought up, food
security. That deals with water, land, labor, research and development,
and by, by addressing those issues, that assures that the farming
community will stay in business, and that's to me how you achieve food,
security. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for
Mr. Watanabe? Seeing none, thank you, Warren, for being here. The next
testifier and the last one to sign up is Kathleen Ross Aoki. But, Members,
we do have Mr. Ellis coming back after Mr. [sic] Aoki.
MS. AOKI: Good afternoon, everyone. I thought I was last and you guys would
get to go eat. My name is Kathleen Ross Aoki. I'm the Deputy Planning
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Director and I just wanted to provide a couple of comments for some of
the items that you have suggested to be revisited.
First of all, the MRA was one of those that you looked at and we are
requesting $90,000 for the MRA, the Maui Redevelopment Agency. This
represents a 10 percent decrease from last year's budget. We understand
the $400,000 for the proposed Wailuku Municipal parking lot was
inadvertently put into the budget twice and the Chair has recommended
that it only be placed in the CIP section. This indicates the Chair's desire
to keep the project funded, which we really appreciate.
Having said that, it is critical to keep the MRA's funding at $90,000 in
order to allow the Department to secure a project coordinator for this CIP
project. Nearly half of this 90,000 is proposed to be used for this
coordinator. The Department does not ordinarily do CIP projects, and
given the complexity of this project, the expertise needed, the time and
effort it will take to see the project through, and the fact that this project
has been under the MRA's purview for many years, it is necessary to have
a coordinator on board to not only manage the project, but to be involved
in fundraising efforts for the actual construction of the project. It is
important to note that the EDA grant for the project also includes funds to
cover personnel costs. This is an indicator that they supported and
understood the need to hire personnel for the planning and design of this
project. In addition to that, the MRA has existing contractual obligations,
such as trash and cleaning services in Wailuku Town. If these are left
unfunded, the Department will have to some how absorb the costs of these
programs, which we have not allocated for. . . . (end of tape 3B).. .
We are requesting 75,000 for the Socioeconomic Forecast and the Land
Use Forecast. With Council's adoption of Bill 53, Maui County Code
2.80B.030(H)(1) states, in part, at least every two years, the Planning
Director shall propose a new Socioeconomic Forecast pursuant to this
chapter, et cetera, et cetera. The Socioeconomic Forecast was done in
June of 2006 and the Land Use Forecast was completed in November of
2006. The Department is required to update these technical studies and
which are now approaching three years old. The new forecasts, again,
required by law, will be used for updates of the Community Plans. The
Department expects this task to cost an estimated 75,000 for the both of
them and failure to fund the project will affect the County's ability to
provide for effective and legitimate planning of our community areas.
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Lastly, we just wanted, I just wanted to make a notation regarding the Sea
Grant.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. AOKI: We are requesting just over $86,000, which is, which funds
80 percent of Zoe Nu'u-Norcoss's position. Twenty percent of that comes
from Hawaii Sea Grant, which is Federal funds. Reducing the funding for
this program will directly affect the Planning Department's ability to
preserve coastal resources and damages caused by coastal hazards. Zoe
provides a critical technical, provides critical technical assistance to the
Department as well as the County as a whole. And not funding her
position would be detrimental to Maui's shoreline. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Aoki at
this time? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Aoki, can you tell me how
your out of Planning, how your projected savings in under salaries at
69,700 and out of operations, 300,000, the Department's recognized
savings, how, how that cannot be applicable to consideration of those
issues you just bring forward?
MS. AOKI: When I, looking at our budget from last year to this year, if you take
out the 400,000 that was doubled counted, we're actually proposing a
budget cut of nearly $600,000 from last year. So, that's, that's pretty
significant. I do have some suggestions 'cause I don't want to come in
here just one sided saying give me, give me, give me.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: You are.
MS. AOKI: I, I don't, you know, and I understand that. I'm been going that,
through that for the last six months in my Department, and it's not fun,
and it's not easy. There was a suggestion from one of the Members to
freeze the GIS intern. I would support that. There was a suggestion to cut
back on the HAEBS Program. I would, I would accommodate a
10 percent, I think, that's reasonable. I would also accommodate the fact
of cutting back on the incentive program for the positions, which was, I
believe, about $20,000. Because like I, like I mentioned to you before,
you know, we have better lists now, the, you know, we have more
opportunity to hire people. I don't think we need that incentive. I was
told that the Police Department suspended their incentive program. So,
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you know, I don't know how you can look at that but I do offer that for
your review.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank, thank you very much, Ms. Aoki, because in
addition to what we're looking at as the targeted savings directly from
your Department, we can also add on those incentives that you have just
added to it. So, we do know that there is additional savings from your
Department at this particular point. So, thank you very much.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At, at least you come over here with some
suggestions. So, I appreciate that. Members, any more questions for
Ms. Aoki? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just maybe some
information from you, Mr. Chair, before I ask Ms. Aoki. On the revisit
items, on Item 18, which I'm sure she's talking about, it should be
Planning, right, not Parks and Recreation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Ms. Aoki, so, the funding for the
Maui Redevelopment Agency is allocated to your Department and in turn
you allocate it to the MRA?
MS. AOKI: Correct, we, we are, we manage the MRA. So, if the MRA, as an
entity comes up with an idea, say for First Friday, we want to implement
First Friday. They'll talk about it. They'll come up with a decision.
They'll ask about the funding and then we will in turn do what we can to
provide grants. We've provided grants to Teens on Call to come in the
next day after an event to come in and clean. So it's little projects like that
to help revitalize Wailuku Town. What happened last year and what
we're proposing this year was to hire this coordinator with part of those
funds and we do have an RFP out. We do have funds for this fiscal year,
so, we do plan to hire somebody. So, we do need somebody on board and
it would be a shame that if we don't have funding for next year to continue
with the project, you know, that could jeopardize the Federal funding.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, the MRA, MRA doesn't get a specific
amount. It's what the Planning Department feels is important funding on
different projects? Or, or do they have a specific amount that's provided
like in a proviso of your?
MS. AOKI: Right. It's a specific line item-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. AOKI: --correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So, it would be this year we're proposing 90,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And your testimony had some very
good information, some more technical and specific information; did you
submit your written testimony?
MS. AOKI: I have it right here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Can you submit that for -MS. AOKI: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --copies for the Members.
MS. AOKI: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Aoki.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Aoki.
My question relates to that Socioeconomic study, the $75,000
appropriation. How did you folks come up with that figure for 75,000?
Was that through . . . (inaudible).. .
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MS. AOKI: It was through past, yeah, past consulting firms that we've used, how
much it cost for us to do it back in 2006, what we estimated. What I've
done in the past is I've actually called consulting firms and kind of talked
to them and ask them, you know, what do you think we did that for the
Puunene Master Plan as well, just to get an idea.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Now, you have the Tri-Isle Main Street
Association that works with various consultants that donate their services.
Have you networked with them as to maybe getting, you know, some
assistance to talk to consultants and maybe get a better price because I'm
considering either eliminating this study for this year or reducing the, the
appropriation because, you know, I, I know you mentioned based on
Bill 53, you're required to get this done within a certain time. But,
Mr. Chair, you know, with our Community Plans, it's supposed to be
updated every ten years and we all know very well in this County, in spite
of the ordinances, departments never get to achieve the, the goals and
objectives. So, for me, you know, I have no problem if we have to sit on
this for a year. But, but my, my point being, so, I, I would like to you, for
you to consider working with Tri-Isle or whomever, to see if maybe we
can get a study done at a, at a lower price than that, or we can just totally,
you know, consider eliminating it. But, anyway, I'm like Chairman
Mateo, I thank you for bringing us additional suggestions on how we can,
you know, provide our taxpayers some savings through at least with this
Department and also consider other departments. But, anyway, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Again, Ms. Aoki, thank
you for being here. I guess, the question I have for you is for the MRA,
there is no specific amount. It's just required by law to have that line item
there. There is no mandated amount, is there?
MS. AOKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, in other words, you put 5,000,
you've got it, right?
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MS. AOKI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, you kind of base it upon whatever
projects in Wailuku.
MS. AOKI: It's, it's a grant, so it would be the same thing for the Wailuku Main
Street, you know, for any kind of grant that we give there's, there's,
there's sort of a basis for why you come up with the numbers that you do.
But you're absolutely correct, there's no mandated amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, 'cause I wanted that cleared,
you know, I think the question was asked but you kind of went around -MS. AOKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --saying it was the line item and that may
have been a misnomer. And again, the question, the other question I have
is and I missed it, what was the project coordinator's expense out of this?
MS. AOKI: We're looking at approximately about 40 to 45,000 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --out, out of the 90.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, no.
MS. AOKI: So it's about half.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, no, thank you, 'cause another
Council Member give me another number so, I was like all confused
already. So, I figure I'd ask you the question, get the answer. Thank you
very much. Thank you, Chair
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. AOKI: Thank you, everybody.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Spencer followed by Mr. Ellis.
MR. SPENCER: Realizing it's lunch time, I'll be brief. Good morning, Chair,
Council Members. I'm here for the last time to speak about the
completion of the Northshore Greenway. I left 18 copies of a letter with
the Secretary and I believe they have been passed out to you already. I'm
just going to read the first sentence and then I'll be on my way. I'm
writing to follow up as promised at the Paia Budget hearing and later at
your Committee meeting in the County Building. And again, this is
regarding the completion of the Northshore Greenway and a request for
some funding, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the
Mr. Spencer. Seeing none, thank you. Oh, Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Spencer, so,
after the discussions at the Paia Community, Paia meeting, and then in
Chambers, we, we at that time asked Public Works what would be the
potential as far as the funding. And it was requested that you contact
Public Works, see what the talk was about. Anything come out of that?
MR. SPENCER: The conversation with Cary was that Engineering will support
this process. Milton will support this process. Sandy got his board at
MEO to approve them, the money being funneled through their
organization. So, we've got all the pieces in, in place we believe, and
we're prepared, myself and the other three individuals that are mentioned
in the letter, are prepared to do on a volunteer basis to see this through
completion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Spencer, for that update.
MR. SPENCER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for
Mr. Spencer? Seeing none, thank you for being here.
MR. SPENCER: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ellis?
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MR. ELLIS: Thank you for the extension. When I concluded my earlier portion,
we got to the point where we were talking about the, the equality of the tax
system in Maui and that continued on until 2005.
In 2005, the powers to be decided that they would discontinue that system
that had been in place for a long time in the United States, particularly in
the Washington Territory and the State of Washington. It was the same
system that was being used in Maui. Part of that change was the biggest
loser in that change of the system was timeshare. And timeshare owners,
which are given the highest rate of all the property tax owners, $14 per
1,000. In that there were discussions and many releases to the press that
told the reason that timeshare was going to be taxed high. And I just
wanted to share some of those things that appeared in The Maui News.
Number one was the statement that came from the then mayor that said
timeshare owners make more profits then hotels. This statement is totally
false. Timeshare owners is a non-profit organization so there can be no
comparison.
The second, second item was that timeshare owners pay only a small
maintenance fee when they actually use the unit. That is wrong again.
Timeshare owners pay maintenance fees whether we us the unit or not.
For the Year 2009, the dues on my unit are more than 3,200 for 28-day
usage. This equates out to $114 a day. A large amount of this, of course,
is due to the effect of the $14 tax rate that has been given to us. The total
tax for the year on my unit is about $7,800.
Another comment that appeared in The Maui News was Councilmember
Jo Anne Johnson led the charge for a higher rate saying anything less than
21 is coming on the backs of the people of Maui County. Absolutely
false. The statistics show that timeshare owners pay more than seven
times the rate of what the residential property owners pay. I've heard her,
I find her analysis of who was riding on whose back is a reverse of her
claim. And that's on the $14 rate not on the 21 that she had suggested.
County Finance officials said a property tax of 21 would equally amount,
timeshares would pay -MS. REVELS: Three dollars, three minutes.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
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MR. ELLIS: --if they were taxed like a hotel operator for the rate of 9.50 per
1,000 would equal the County, the amount the County would share in
these taxes. My question is why was the timeshare given a $14 rate when
the County's share would only be 9.50 from the hotel tax rate.
I don't see it being, being a need in our County to have timeshare says
G. Riki Hokama. That is not the visitor I want here. My response is first I
was shocked that an elected official would openly insult the class of
property owners that have been loyal visitors to Maui for nearly 30 years.
Even when the economy is, has it's down turns, timeshare owners -MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. ELLIS: --are still coming here, renting cars, eating out at restaurants,
attending and worshiping in the churches. Let me compare for you the
attendance of visitors 2009 versus 2008, I think this was through January.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ellis, can you conclude in one, one minute?
MR. ELLIS: My, I'll do it one minute.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ELLIS: Total visitors to Maui County this...compared to 2009, compared to
2008 is down 18 percent. The visitors who plan to stay in timeshares is up
9.7 percent, almost 10 percent. The domestic visitors to Maui County is
down 21 percent. The domestic visitors who plan to stay in timeshares is
up 6.5 percent. I know that we're all going through hard times.
Timeshare owners are going through hard times as is everyone else is.
But, I think, it is time for the Council to take a look and rid itself of the
misconceptions that have been included in their thinking over the past
years in establishing the $14 tax rate.
MS. REVELS: Five minutes.
MR. ELLIS: And give us equal tax treatment that they're giving to the residential
owners.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ELLIS: I thank you all very much. It's been a pleasure being here with and
seeing you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Ellis?
Seeing none, thank you, again, for being here.
MR. ELLIS: Okay, thank you very much again.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is there anyone that hasn't signed up to
provide public testimony and would like to do it now, if you can come
forward. Seeing none, if there is no objections, Members, the Chair would
like to close public testimony. No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Public testimony is now closed.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we're going to recess until, let's see, how
about 2:30, Members? Two o'clock? Two fifteen?? We'll recess until
2:15 this afternoon. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:45 p.m.
2:19 p.m.

ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 09-59 and 09-88)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Committee meeting for
April 21 st is now reconvene, reconvened. Members, before I go into our
deliberations, just for your information, on Wednesday, April 22 nd, I have
the agenda schedule for all of the bills that's going to be heard in
Committee and House Bill 1744, but these are all the bills that's going to
be heard at 2:45 tomorrow afternoon and H, House Bill 1744 is one of
them. And to let you know, the House Conferees are Representatives
Oshiro, Chong, Troy(?), Lee, and Pine. On the Senate side it's going to be
Kim, English, Galuteria, Hooser, Kokubun, and Tsutsui. So, on the Senate
side, we do have four--one, two, three, four--neighbor island
representatives. Thank you.
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Okay, Members, when we left off yesterday, we went through the first
pass on Exhibit 1 and what Staff had done was create a listing of all of the
revisit. And, Members, if you can turn to the, I think, the back side, some
of the designation for Parks and Recreation actually is Planning. That
would be the Maui Redevelopment Agency, Grant to University of
Hawaii —Maui Sea Grant Program, and the Integrated Socioeconomic
Land Use. Those are all in the Planning Department. Okay.
So, we'll go page by page again. Okay, Members, I'm going to skip the
first page and, I think, we'll come back to that later, if there's no
objections. Okay, we'll start off with the Civil Defense, that's on Page 3.
Again, Members, we didn't eliminate any of the positions but we deleted
funding as well as reduce fundings for several positions. I understand that
yesterday's first pass we had some questions. Member Victorino, you
have any questions on this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright, Chair, thank you. You were saying
we're not deleting any positions but you're deleting the funding for the
Civil Defense Tech II?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, in other words, that position cannot be
filled as classified? Is that how you...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we removed the funding but it can be filled. As
you noticed that there are two other positions that we reduced the funding
by 50 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, if they, if they chose to not fill the other
two and fill this one as a full-time or at that thing, you'd equal up to about
$42,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, or it actually comes out to a little
more, 44.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, also, you know, because it's a program budget
they have the three accounts that...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They can, they can use.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair. Again, I'm okay with that.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no questions with it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know what, I've got a question for
Administration. You know, Danny was looking and I was looking at the
targeted savings. Okay, this is where my question is. You asked the
departments to look at where we can target savings to address carryover, I,
I guess. Okay. So, today we had different departments coming in, and
when we look at different areas seems like they were going to suck off
only the, the salaries or their operations, the area that you targeted for
carryover savings. So, what is occurring to me is shall we toss this
because this doesn't really make sense anymore? Or, each Department
that has come today, did they first contact Administration or are they now
coming on their own?
MR. PABLO: Okay, let me, let me try to clarify this. We're looking at two, two
different things. In Fiscal Year '09, we asked the departments to target
savings but we also had some, some, I mean, parameters. We said that it
should not cut core services, nor are we looking for cuts, furloughs, or
layoffs. So, some Departments were able to do six, 15 percent savings.
Some were not able to, especially the Departments which were high in
personnel costs. Once you start cutting more than 10 percent, you'll
probably will have to furlough somebody in order to achieve a greater
amount.
Now, the, the Fiscal Year '09, which you have before you, the targeted
savings, that's Fiscal Year '09, and that was, we were asking the
Departments to identify areas where they could possibly cut. And then
this money would roll over for spending in Fiscal Year '10.
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Now, Fiscal Year '10, you can't throw away what you looking at
Fiscal Year '09 'cause it no longer applies. Fiscal Year '10, most of the
Departments in the General Fund are operating at a level below
Fiscal Year '09. For example, Civil Defense here, right before you. The
Fiscal Year '09 budget, I believe, was like 545,000 or something. We cut
it down to five or the Department reduced it to 526 and with this further
reduction, we're now down to 439. So, we've actually brought this
Department from 546 in Fiscal Year '09 to, to 439, which is quite a sizable
amount. That's about 25 percent cut. And even though it is a program
budget, once you've trimmed the fat, and you're down to the bone, there's
not much program budget that you can leave off. And, and that's the
concern that the departments had. I didn't have a chance to converse with
them yesterday. I, I did provide this information on the Exhibit 1, so that
they could determine whether any of these cuts will bring them back down
to, to an area where they will have to cut core services. And that's a
concern that a lot of departments have. So, thank you for that question.
The Fiscal Year '09 targeted savings was an exercise but the
Fiscal Year '10, when you look at their starting budgets for
Fiscal Year '10 under the Mayor, these are actually below the
Fiscal Year '09 levels, with the exception of about four departments,
Police, Fire, because of their equipments, they're above the
Fiscal Year '09 levels. Housing and Human Concern, they're above and
that's only because the transfer of 1 6 million from the affordable, the First
Time Home Buyer's Fund. We transferred it there, so, all of a sudden it
seems like Housing and Human Concerns has a big budget. But once you
take that out, you see that they're operating below Fiscal Year '09 levels.
Then the other Department was Department of Prosecuting Attorneys.
They seem to have an increase in Fiscal Year '10 but that's because we're
funding previously grant-funded positions. And again, if you take those
positions out, their budget for Fiscal Year '10 is actually below
Fiscal Year '09 level.
So, in, in summary, the Administration has asked the departments to trim
their budgets to as low as possible without having to furlough or layoff
people or to cut core services. So, when you look at their Fiscal Year '10
Budgets compared to their Fiscal Year '09 and, and you'll see that the
Departments have followed that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, thank you so much, Fred.
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MR. PABLO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Director, I have a question. In, in the
carryover savings that you projected that were savings that we expect for
'09, with the vacant positions that are available at this time, positions that
are unfilled are considered carryover savings, the dollars?
MR. PABLO: That's correct, whatever hasn't been spent in what you refer to as
the A account, B account, or C account will be carryover savings and that
will be reflected as a source of revenue for the subsequent year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, looking at the vacancies that we have
moving forward, without making any adjustments to your projections in
regards to the vacancies, so, those numbers also reflect that 2010 Budget?
MR. PABLO: The, the vacant positions, yes. They would be.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What's that total?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If you add it up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If we add it up? Probably about $10 million or more.
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I just wanted
to clarify on the Director Arakawa's, oh, I'm sorry, I mean, on Director,
Administrator Iinuma, he said that the Administrative Assistant II position
was filled through internal transfer. So, does that mean that the other half
of that budgeted amount if there was one, is now available? Maybe
Budget Director, you want to answer that?
MR. PABLO: Could you rephrase that question? I was trying to follow it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I'm looking at Exhibit 1, Page 3, under
Civil Defense, we're talking about the revisions which were reductions
and under his personnel he has the description is reduce Administrative
Assistant II position by 50 percent. But Administrator Iinuma said that
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position was filled through internal transfer. So, I'm asking our Budget
Chair if, I mean, our Budget Committee Chair, if there's funds available
now because of that. Because 50 percent was reduced, but what happened
to the other 50 percent, if any?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as the 50 percent for both positions, what
Mr. Iinuma had said that he filled that vacancy, that position with an
internal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Right that was the Assistant II,
Administrative Assistant II position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right, internal upgrade or promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, in this case here what, what you're seeing is
50 percent less of the total funding for those two positions. You have an
upward movement, you also have dollars for that position that . . . (end of
tape 4A). . . aided. So, that dollars along with these dollars can fund that
position.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then the position above that,
which was the Staff Specialist position, he said the test was given and a
candidate is being selected. So, what's the status become of that one also?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, you know, whatever funding that he has
available can be utilized looking at the, you know, the A, B, C accounts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, okay. And then the top one was your
suggestion to remove funding only, not the position, correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. This is one
item that I had made a recommendation for expansion in, in terms of
positions and my reason for doing that was to look at the inclusion of
Lanai and Molokai as part of the, the staffmg of the Civil Defense. When
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you talk about coordinated efforts to try and look at safety in times of, of
disaster, here are two islands that are not tied in right now to Civil
Defense. So, my, my recommendation was to look at perhaps a half-time
position in each of those locations to give them some kind of connection
to the entire Civil Defense operations so as not to leave them out. But my
question now would be based on your recommendation is whether a
proviso would be in order in this line item to, to at least make a request
for, for that kind of consideration, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You, you can include a proviso but presently I
understand that both islands are covered by the Police Department on one
island and Public Works on the other island, along with Hana. Because
we don't know the workload for all of these three areas, you know, a half
position or a full-time position or even a quarter position for those three
areas, I, I really don't know as far as the workload being enough to
warrant some kind of a position. But, you know, tell me if I'm wrong.
Have we had any problems in, in regards to any problems in, in this three
areas regarding Civil Defense issues or exercise that these three areas
don't get represented. I think they all do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, I know, in the recent fires
on Lanai where the hotels were being evacuated from the island of Lanai
there was perhaps at that moment, depending on who you talk with, some
challenges as to how to take care of this fire disaster on an island, and
which you had people now disconnected or dislocated from, from the fire,
and then moving people off an island in one case, and then trying to
maintain fire control from another location on the island. That, that seem
to have been, you know, a challenge. And again, depending on who you
talk with, you'll get various interpretations of what took place on, on the
island at that time. But, when the, when the Director was here, he
indicated that that is something that, you know, he would like to have
some position on Lanai as well as another position on Molokai, and
perhaps Maui ideally. So, I'm just trying, trying to see if that's something
that could be accommodated, so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I just like to make a comment. I, I know, Mr. finuma
was here in regards to the Civil Defense and, you know, the plans that he
had in regards for coverage. And it seems like, although he didn't say that
he had any plans, but there are plans for him to consider and put in writing
because he works with the Police Department, he works with Public
Works, and he works with the Fire Department. So, there must be a plan
in place in regards to any emergency operations that we need to cover, that
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wasn't sure. And I, you know, like I suggested to Mr. Iinuma that he
needs to do one so that, you know, what you say in regards to, you know,
people being asking this question where, where do I go? Those things can
be answered with some written policy or guidelines regarding Civil
Defense activities on, at these three locations, Hana, Lanai, and Molokai.
And then when it warrants a, a half-time or full-time body then he can,
you know, return to this Council and, and request for that. But, you know,
when you hire someone you want to make sure that there is enough
activities to keep that person employed. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I've asked the question of Staff and she's
looking for it and I apologize if it's somewhere but I have not seen this.
We keep referring to the departments having carryover savings and I don't
have that papers so it's very hard for me to follow. And it's been
mentioned by yourself and by Chair Mateo, but I, I don't have one and if I
don't I'd sure like to have one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa, for that question. What
I'm, what the Chair is looking is actually Page No. 2, Carryover/Savings.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But that's just a lump, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and that's a lump sum but because of, you know,
except for the enterprise funds, you know, all of the other, all of the
departments except for those are in the General Fund area. So, when I
look at the vacancies for this area, you know, that's where I say there are
savings for vacant, vacant positions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right, but what would help us if there was a
breakdown of this because the, the individual departments are addressed is
that well you had carryover savings here, and you have carryover savings
there, and I cannot relate to that 'cause I don't have that list, and the
decisions to delete a lot of them are being based on that. So, I'd like to
have that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. We'll try and get that information for you.
But when I look at this four vacancies that has been there for over a year,
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because this budget is based on carryover savings, those vacancies are
actually carryover savings for the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I hear what you're saying but then we have....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as the list.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Then you have the Department saying well, you
know, we're in the process. We just about ready. We've done the tests.
We picked the person. We waiting for a process to be completed. You
know, I'm trying to get at the bottom of it and it's very difficult when
you're on the periphery of this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Budget Director, do you have that information
available?
MR. PABLO: Let me try to see if I can explain this. Except for the Special
Revenue Funds, whatever's carryover doesn't go specifically to a
department or a program. In the General Fund, we have 15 Departments
under the Mayor and two under the Legislative Branch that share in the
General Funds. What it means is whatever carryover is for the General
Funds is that amount there that you see on Page 2 and this is added on to
real property taxes, TAT's, and so forth, and that's a total revenue source
for all the 17 General Fund Departments. There's not a specific amount
allocated per se from the General Fund to each department. What you see
here for the Civil Defense, for example, the Mayor's Proposed Budget is
526,000 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. PABLO: --and that's what they get for the Fiscal Year 2010. Where they
can get funds is if they have a vacant position then they could use those
amounts but sometimes they will use those amounts to, to fund overtime
because they don't have that, that position filled yet or they may use it for
what they call temporary assignments, payment at a higher grade. So,
even though that position may be vacant, the funds could be used during
the year to, to cover overtime and temporary assignments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, all of you got the transmittal from the
Budget Director dated April 17, 2009 and on that sheet Exhibit A it tells
you how much savings on the salaries for every department for the County
of Maui. I understand that Member Baisa doesn't have a copy of that.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It may be in my office, Chair, but if it came out
on Friday, we were here, and then we were gone for the weekend, came in
yesterday, and sat here, and have been sitting here, so, haven't seen it. So,
I'll look for it and -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I'm sure it's around somewhere, but it will be
very helpful because everybody keeps referring to it but I have not had an
opportunity to look at it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I get the same problem, that's why I flipping pages all
over, all over the place. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no further questions on Civil Defense but
just one, Chair. So, are we making a decision then on it right now in terms
of what you're proposed recommendation or are we just at this point just
Q&A during this round or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair would like to have fmal closure on this one
here, if there's no consensus then, I guess, we got to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, well, Chair, just for, I'll follow your lead
on this, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, do we have consensus on the
Civil Defense?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, okay, Page 5, Page 5, okay. This is
the net appropriations for the Landfill Disposal Program, Solid Waste
Management. Mr. Victorino, you had questions on this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, a couple of, that they came today and
my concern was the indication that the deletion of the dozer, the water
truck, the two dozers really may inhibit their ability to comply with EPA
and that's what Ms. Okuma stated today. Now, as far as the positions, you
know, I, I feel that, again, our neighbor island County members should not
be derived, but you know better than I do. I'm not, I don't know this
system that well but do not have working supervisors, I don't know how

-
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much that would inhibit their ability to conduct their jobs and the proper
procedures to be followed, yeah. You make a mistake that's an EPA
violation that could be fines and could be exceeding. But my concern
beyond that one really is the deletion of the equipment for which
Ms. Okuma strongly indicated that was really needed to continue to
comply with EPA requirements. So, that's my concern, you know, that
positions, and I know you're making them...I, I, I think, I believe, you
made them all six month, if that...am I correct? Or, you just, yeah, so that
you would reduce 'em to only six months, Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, was it six or three?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, it was your office that gave the numbers, I'm not sure
of what percentage they are. I can look it up if you like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, yeah, I, I think, it's for three months, if, yeah, can
you check with my office? It's between six and three months.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, so, again, that's my concern
and between, you know, because Molokai and Lanai and Hana does not
have the ability to have others come around and, and help and assist, I
don't know if that's not and waiting six months or even, or only having
three months of the year covered may, you know, in my mind may not be
the way to go. And then, of course, the equipment as I stated earlier. So,
those are my concerns, Chair, and we can discuss it a little more detail.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, it's six months.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six months, okay, six months.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six months, okay, thank you, thank you for
the clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chairman And I share, I share
Mr. Victorino's concern. At this particular point in time, I'm going, yeah,
I think I'll just listen for the rest of this, rest of the discussion. I think the
Director made it real clear that the need for, especially, the more costly
equipment, the dozers, was primarily based in getting the job done and in
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complying EPA compliance or the lack of our being able to comply with,
with their requirements. And, of course, the water trucks is, is something
of, of utmost concern as well. So, myself, I can wait until the discussion
continues so we can see end result whether or not we can somehow find
the, you know, I'm sure we're going to fmd the monies to, to fill these
things.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. When the Chair did his
budget, one of the things that I, I removed was the heavy equipment,
which I know would support the Departments. If any savings is found, is
found that was my number one priority as far as restoring those funding
for purchase of equipment. I also had a talk with Ms. Okuma in regards to
2011 budget, the possibility of going after CDBG funds. I know the
Police Department as well as the Fire Department do utilize CDBG funds
to purchase equipment for either Molokai or Lanai and Hana. So, she's
aware of my comments in regards to utilizing CDBG funds and, I think,
she said it may be available. So, hopefully, going forward, you know, we
can utilize that funds, not only to purchase Fire as well as Police
equipment, but also Public Works type equipment. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You're going to come back for provisos, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're, we're not going do anything fmal until everyone
is satisfied, so.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, because my provisos has no money in
them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I have no questions.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Glad to hear that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I just
want to follow up on our Exhibit 1 in the far left, far left column, that page
number comes from where?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Your Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I tried to look. I didn't' find that, which, you
mean in the Details?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In the Program Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The proposal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I thought I saw Police or something, okay,
that's, that's where that page number comes from?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: 'Cause I wanted to know under what we're
discussing where was the DO, D-8 dozer, the water truck, and the other
D -8 dozer for I, I understand one is for. . .the water truck is for Molokai?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You know where the dozers are for?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think one is Central Maui, one is Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Molokai, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Molokai and Hana...I mean, Molokai and
Central?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Molokai, Central, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and, we would get that information
from that page number on the left column?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, alright, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No discussion, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please. I'm sorry to return to this carryover
thing but I have to understand this. I have a copy of the sheet that was
passed out and it shows a total in the General Fund from all the
departments and it shows $10,385,519. On Page 2 of Exhibit 1 that we're
working on where it shows Carryover Savings General Fund, it shows
$24,250,318. What's the difference?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget Director?
MR. PABLO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. What you see there is just a
projection. The, what you see there is what, what this, what the
Administration put together based on what the departments said they could
target as savings. It's not the actual amounts that, that actually flow into
the Fiscal Year '10. When we actually do the carryover savings, we, we
start from two years ago, actually Fiscal Year '08, and see what the ending
balances were at that time from the CAFER and that, that's the, that's the
audited statement. So, we would have that beginning balance. Then, we
would add on the carryover savings from the subsequent year, its Fiscal
Year '09, the projections, and any type of amendments. So, what you see
there, there before is only a part of it, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When I, when I see what is a part of it?
MR. PABLO: This, the Fiscal Year '09, I think, is that what you're looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This, this sheet, yeah.
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MR. PABLO: Yeah, the targeted savings, that is what the departments estimated
would be their targeted savings at the end of Fiscal Year '09.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But what you're looking at on Exhibit 1 is a
cumulative figure?
MR. PABLO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause there's a $14 million discrepancy.
MR. PABLO: No, it, it covers through two years, that's why. We, we, you
actually start with Fiscal Year '08 what the balance was back, back then.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, but we really don't know what it is.
MR. PABLO: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is it 24 plus this ten?
MR. PABLO: No, the, the ten would be included in that 24.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, prior year probably 14 million?
MR. PABLO: Yeah, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Any questions regarding the Landfill
Disposal?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, well, of course, I have concerns about, you
know, the lack of equipment, and I'm concerned a little bit when we talk
about using the CDBG money to replace all this equipment because the
CDBG is so tiny. It's less than 2 million unless we get a bumped increase
and you know how fast that goes. We usually take about half-a-mil for
ADA, so that leaves us less than one-and-a-half-mil. So, it goes really fast
and a lot of people count on CDBG, so, it's a very lean source. I'm, I'm
sorry, but, I, I am sorry but, you know, I am really having a lot of angst
about all of these cuts that we're making and I don't know what effect it's
going to have on our community. And I have an alternative but we'll get
to that. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. No, no questions, other than
the fact, that I presume we're going to come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Because I, I know, Ms. Okuma stated that she'd
put her concerns in writing, and I'd like to wait for that. But, I think, this
is a good lesson and a message for all the departments that if there's
something related to your equipment request, related to EPA concerns,
Department of Health, I think, it's good to let us know ahead of time. So,
you, Mr. Chair, I know, you, you know, I was operating along the same
lines like you, Mr. Chair, to fmd ways we can $18 million. But had we
had known that these equipment requests are so critical and related to
Department of Health concerns then by all means, I'm sure we would've
reconsidered our proposals to have these adjustments made. So, for the
next fiscal year, I think, I'm hoping the departments get the message that
if the equipment is so critical, let us know ahead of time, so we don't have
to go through the trouble of, you know, making these adjustments. Then,
all of a sudden told today, like we had a flood of testimony from all of our
department heads, and in my tenure here on the Council, I've never seen
this many department heads coming out here and expressing their
concerns. And I know you too as well, Mr. Chair, yeah, so, so, just for
the, the department heads' information, get us that information as soon as
possible and don't wait till now until after all of us have submitted our
budget proposals. So, but anyway, I'll, I'll just wait when we do another
go around on this, Mr. Chairman. And, I, too, now after hearing the
concerns related to the need of this equipment because of, you know, any,
to avoid any potential violations with the EPA and Department of Health
and, you know, I'm willing to reconsider putting this back into the budget.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know there's other ways too, yeah,
like leasing equipment, you know, of that nature. They got to be open to
those things too. Oh, we'll come back to that one.
Residential Collection Program deleting...well, anyway...some Members
had some issues regarding this and that's the reason why it's here.
Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think the concern I had with this fund, as
Ms. Okuma, again stated, I think, the deletion of all funding for the
96-gallon green carts, you know, she was indicating that that may be a
problem as far as our plans as, you know, looking at reduction in our
landfill. And, I think, I know, Chair, you're doing your best and this is the
real challenge we face. Do we take something out that can really benefit
us in the immediate future and I'm talking in the next year or two in
diversion or continue filling the dump until we get to a point where we got
to do it and that's a hard, hard question. And, and I, I'm torn. I cannot
totally disagree in what you're doing but yet on the other side there's the
part of me saying if we get green waste and we can start diverting that in a
much bigger manner, we don't have to buy more land, more work, more
equipment. I don't know, I'll hold up on that one, Chair. So, I'm sorry,
Mr. Chair, just one of those indecisions I have on this one. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, I, I do support diversion, but I
think what Ms. Okuma had mentioned this morning that we still need to
work with the UPW and it's going to take, I don't know, upwards of six
months to do that. But her main concern at this time is to provide
replacements for existing receptacles as well as receptacles for new
customers. So, we, we, we will take a look at that because, yeah, those
barrels do fall apart.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, they do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But again, as far as the green carts, and, and the
recycling of green waste that still need to be negotiated with UPW.
Okay, on same page on the bottom, the Accounts Program. We heard
from Mr. Young in regards to the Accounts Program. Member, I'm sorry,
I, I skipped Member Mateo on the last one on, on the Residential
Collection, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, I had, I had no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Was that figure for the replacement 100,000 for
1,300?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, according to Ms. Okuma, we need 100 of those
cans at $100 a piece.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Somehow I got 100,000 that's all. Was that for
the replacement?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, $100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One hundred thousand?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. That's the only consideration that I
would see -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --to put back in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, under
Residential Collection Program delete funding for vacant Refuse
Collector. And that's because it hasn't been filled for a long time or we
just thinking of reducing some funding? And, and maybe I can say why
I'm asking this, Mr. Chairman. You know, having worked with refuse
collection for a long time in the County. If you don't have enough
workers, they got to hold the other crews back to do a second route, and
that ends up costing us more money to do that. So, I, I'm just wondering
if that reduces one person by delete funding or is that a position that they
couldn't fill?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Some of the positions in that area, and I don't know if
this is one of them, that had no request for funding. Staff?
MS. REVELS: Yes, Mr. Chair, the one that you deleted the funding for is
Position No. DE-0178, and there is no request to fill. The vacant date on
the Vacancy Report is December 8, 2008.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And this is for the Refuse Collector
position?
MS. REVELS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, if the Department and Division didn't
request funding then fine. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And then the Solid Waste Collection
Supervisor, there is funding to fill that position.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But, but you reducing that one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going from nine months to six months.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay, thank you for that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Same, you know, feelings that other people have.
I'm concerned about not being able to move the Green Waste Collection
Program forward because we have to. We don't have a choice but to do
recycling because in the end it's going to cost us more money and that's
not funny. And I know, we're trying to balance this year but, you know,
I'm really scared what we talk about this year about what we're going to
do next year. All we doing is deferring the agony 'cause next year is
going be worse.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you next year going be worse.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, when we say wait one more year and
then we'll replace your truck.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're going to have less money next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not a matter of one more, you know, wait one more
year. You know, negotiations still need to be completed, so ...Member
Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions. Just a clarification, the
Director stated it was $100 per cart, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, she, they're requesting 400 of these
containers?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One hundred thousand dollars worth.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, 100 not, you deleted, I know you deleted
400,000, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, but they now want only 100,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One hundred thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you for the clarification, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Until, until the agreement is completed, which they
haven't started, then once that's completed then if it's in this fiscal year
that they want to move with the program, hopefully, hopefully, we get
some carryover savings or come in with a budget amendment to do that.
Okay, we'll come back to this again.
Accounts Program on the bottom, this is the one that Mr. Young had come
in and provide some public testimony. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We heard Mr. Young's concerns, so, Chair
. . . (end of tape 4B). . . I'll wait and see. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, and as we, we heard earlier the positions that
we are looking at, one is a deletion and the other is reduced funding.
These are positions that through the, the audit of the Finance Department's
records it was a determination of their need to have additional help in one,
making, making fiscal information more readily available, and two, in
being able to more quickly be able to respond to the audit questions and
reviews of which this Department right now is currently lacking because
of the lack of personnel to, to do it. I do want to support the Chairman's
position in retaining as the Chairman is recommending; however, this is an
item that I think needs further discussion and continued review as we
complete the process. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I'll support Chairman
Mateo's.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I really think that the positions if
they're going to assist us in compliance and they're going to assist us in
revenues then those are positions that we just have to fmd the money for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Agree with Member Johnson.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I'm along the
same lines based on the audit's recommendation. But, Mr. Chairman, and
just for how we're going to proceed the rest of the way so if we, any
Member states that they want to reinstate something then at this point you
want to hear from us where we're going to get the money -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --either...or where we're going to cut? So just
to help us along then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This round is, you know, looking at all of the
ones that we reviewed yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And if we have consensus then we'll come back to
those that we have problems with.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that we hash out whatever, the ones that we can.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. So, yeah, I'm along with the
lines of some of my colleagues too who are looking at maybe reinstating
these positions, and at a later point we'll see what we can come up with to
find the monies for this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. As far as the audit, audit report by the
Department, I understand that we're going to take it up soon as we
complete our Budget. So, Members, I don't think any of you saw that
report yet. Thank you. Okay. On Page 6, Supplemental Transfer to the
Golf Fund. Member Victorino, you got questions on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chair...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: And again, before you answer that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --again my position is in regards to the Golf Fund and
you've heard my statement -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that we will not increase the golf fees and I think
that's where you're coming from.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and, and the reason to that is last year in
November we had an audit report that recommended that we don't
increase the fee until we have improved the golf course. And he had set
up a program for the golf course in regards to improving the golf course.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I can, I truly appreciate what you've
just said, and, and I went over the report like many others and felt it was a
good report. But I don't think anybody, when that report came out,
realized the immense downturn in the economy and the shortfalls we
we're going to face. We used to have Peter paying Paul. Well Peter is
basically broke at this point in time and Paul can no longer take Peter for a
handout. And I'm just putting it very bluntly, Chair. I respect you, I
respect your ideals, I like to play golf once in a while, not as avid as you
or many others out there. Many seniors enjoy it for exercise, et cetera.
But we're going to start charging for lights at our softball fields and other
areas, we got no choice anymore. We, the reality has set in, we cannot
afford to keep subsidizing all of these activities. Somebody's got to pay.
So I have to disagree with you that just because of the audit I'm not going
to raise it, because to me this is one area that we need
to. . . (inaudible). . . and the Mayor recommended that change and I kind of
concur with that. And I will, I'll be very honest, I will not back off on the
fact that I think a little raise here, a little increase here, because we're
raising sewer fees, we're raising water rates, we're raising refuse. Then
by golly we got to raise it here too. I cannot accept that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, Chair, I, I, I'm so vehemently
opposed to your idea but I thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. That's, that's your prerogative.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Perspective right? Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When we come to rates and fees you can make that
determination at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And even transferring I, I just cannot.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: (silence)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The one thing I would like to see put in this
area, which I don't think we have really talked about that much, is the
feasibility of actually farming out and, and just, you know, leasing out our
whole golf course. I mean the State does it, they have an operational
situation which I would like to see some money put in actually. If we're
going to not increase fees, we got the study already, I would like to see the
cost benefit analysis on the other side which is, are we going to continue,
`cause all the time I've been on this Council I've heard recommendations
exactly like the recommendations that were reiterated in the last report.
We're never going to get there from here. So if we can't then let's do the
sensible thing, look at the realistic benefit of farming out this operation
and see where we go. Because if we're not willing to do it within our
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County Budget, then separate it and have somebody else manage it for us
`cause it's not working this way.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That will be done in your Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I'm more than happy but I'd like a
little bit of money so that we can actually pay somebody to do this study
and do it independently.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I share some of the feelings of my
colleagues about, you know, whether or not I don't think we want to raise
these fees, I think we have to. And like I told the Deputy of Parks when
he was here, I think we need to, as soon as our contract is up, take back the
golf cart income so that we not only have expense but we have income.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I reserve my comments on the golf course ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --about taking over. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I just want to make a statement just
because our different island counties have municipal golf courses. But
what I find is that with the amount of personnel that they have they can
keep up on keeping that golf course in shape. My question is with what
we have in personnel why can't we? Because I heard weeds and stuff of
this sort. But to me it all goes down to who's running the show and who's
managing it. And there's no excuse why we can't do it here in Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you, Mr. Nishiki. And, and when you look
at the recommendation and the, the audit report and the recommendation

- 116 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

that was, that came up out of that audit report what you say is what they
had written in that audit report. Okay. Any more questions on the golf
course? We'll come back to that because we're not...we probably will do
some changes the way Members are saying in regards to the fees. So we
will revisit. Okay. Insurance Program and Self Insurance. Members, you
notice the $1,014,986. When the Chair made the first pass that was the
savings that came about after looking at all of the different areas. And if
you want to utilize that self insurance then it's going to be the prerogative
of this Committee. And if equipment is your number one priority I would
suggest that you use that. Okay. We'll come back to that. On Page 8 this
is Housing Program, deletion of funding of, it's there. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Now we heard Ms. Tsuhako's
explanation and I'm not really sold on the whole explanation on that
housing part, right, the first part. We're not on the grants yet?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just on the housing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the housing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Now I...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That whole area what you see, net appropriation of -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --$589,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm fine with that now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I can support Chairman's proposal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Same.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Likewise.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Same.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I'm fine. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Grants and Disbursements for First Time
Homebuyer's Program. Reduced by $200,000. I'm sorry, reduced by
1.4 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. More than 200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I, I'd like to have the
body reconsider that figure, that reduction. While I'm in support of
generally reducing it, I think we can add a little bit back, more monies
back to it. I was conferring with my staff. We're looking at, I know in
your proposal, Mr. Chairman, there was no reduction for replacement
vehicles, and I think we can reduce some of our replacement vehicle
needs. You know like, I'm trying to look for a win-win situation because
in all fairness the program was implemented--what?--three years ago at a
$400,000 a year appropriation and it's never gotten off the ground. And
I'd like to see the program get off the ground. I believe the Department
can get out this first 400,000 at least, at a minimum. So maybe at a later
point if we can return I can give you the figures as to, you know, where we
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can, you know, make adjustments. So I'm looking at that area,
replacement vehicles, because there may be some departments that don't
need all, can maybe wait on replacement vehicles till next fiscal year.
Because you know we, this is an opportune time for a lot of families and
as I stated it's an investment in our community. The first time, you have
families, young families, we want to keep them here and then they can be
part of the real property tax revenue stream. And by golly, Mr. Chairman,
next term we're going to need a lot of, we would like to certainly have a
lot more people paying into the system, you know. It's a win-win
situation, you keep our young families here, not having to move to Las
Vegas or wherever. They become homeowners, they become part of our
community. And whichever way, shape or form whether we do this as a
grant or continue to keep the program as a revolving fund, the bottom line
is we need to keep our families here, give them an opportunity and
ironically with the downturn in the economy, you have homes, you have,
that are within reach for a lot of these families. So that is in general my
proposal for the time being, and I'll, I'll get figures at a later point when
and if we come to final decision-making on this, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, just give me a
minute, I want to confer with Staff.
NOTE: Pause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. The next one down is the Grants
and Disbursements for Supportive Living Program. Same page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant number four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is that all? We're not going to discuss it
any further? That, that's it? On the housing? On the grants? The first
time?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. You have any questions to that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I don't know, you've been going
down and now you just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry. You just stopped and I...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I go from right to left and I forgot that I, I went...
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? On that first one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sorry. I was distracted. On the first time
homebuyers?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I agree with Member Molina, it deserves a second
look.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If we can do maybe at, I was thinking maybe at
least a year's worth. You know, that's 400 which is what we started that
fund out as, that maybe that would work.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I agree with Member Baisa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I would agree. And then I
think the other consideration was we talk to the, the Director about the
qualifications and that we will be looking at it. If we're looking at a gap
group that perhaps that needs to be given consideration and changed so
that more people will have access to this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Fine. Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. I agree somewhat that, you know, we
should have a minimum of at least, as mentioned by Member Baisa and
Member Molina, about 400,000 to keep the program somewhat, well, try
start it. The, it was mentioned that it's an opportunity for people to
purchase homes and it's true, but it is also a time when people are making
less money because of less hours or out of work and stuff. But I think for

- 120 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

those who can qualify we should keep this opportunity available to them.
So I would agree that we, maybe we at least have 400,000 in that program.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This money of 400,000 each year is it a, it's a
grant? So that the money just stays in this area or as I heard from another
Member that we can go and put it in another area?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The $400,000...$200,000 that, that is here is
going to be a grant and the...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Rather than the 6, $1.6 million, just the 200. But other
Members are talking about now raising that amount to $400,000 as a grant
for first time homebuyers.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. But that, the Mayor's original million
six, was that an accumulation of -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --many years?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Many years.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So in this fund now that we have it isn't
there any kind of conditions on it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the reason why none of the...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It was an ordinance or something, right?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the reason why none of the monies went out in
the previous years. There was no. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So now that we say we're going to use
400,000, that was the number picked, that extra money that we have in
there, how can it be used?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well it goes back to the First, First Time Homebuyer's
program area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So it can't...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: See this grant is, yeah, the grant that you're looking at
going be administered not by the Department but by a non-profit entity.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They're going to farm it out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That was their...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Now I'm just wondering about the rest of
the money, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It still remains in the First Time Homebuyer's...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In that fund?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair, Chairman, I can do, I can do two things. I can
support the Chairman's recommendation, or based on my own proposal I
would move the whole thing to Self Insurance and protect this County's
ass. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for being so blunt. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Someone once said after that I got nothing
much to say. Okay. I can support because in my original proposal I did
minus some out, but what I'm confused and maybe you can clarify this for
me, Mr. Chair. You just stated to Mr. Nishiki that if we, whatever figure
200,000, 400,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'm sorry. I didn't mean to
interrupt.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I guess my question is, you just
stated to Mr. Nishiki that if you take out or if we use 200 or 400 as the net
appropriation to the first time homeowners as a grant, which I have a
question about the grant part but that's another issue, that, that money will
still stay there so there's no real savings? I'm confused because you're
minusing [sic] out in your proposal 1,400,000 which we use for other
items, and now you're saying, no, the money stays there. So how do you
show me a savings?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to have Staff explain. Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I was confused and I
apologize.
MS. REVELS: Yes, Mr. Chair The Administration has taken all of the money
out of the First Time Homebuyer's Fund. In fact they've given us a bill to
repeal the fund. So there's no money in the First Time Homebuyer's
Fund. They have taken all the money that would have been in the fund
which is 1.6 million and put it in as a grant in the Budget Ordinance. The
Chair's proposal to reduce that amount by $1 4 million then makes that
money available in the General Fund to be used anywhere in the General
Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. But wasn't, and again I'm sorry,
wasn't an ordinance passed that we put that much money away every year
for that specific purpose and that money cannot be used for anything else?
So can the Administration arbitrarily, I know she said we're going, it's
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going to come back to us. But right now shouldn't that 1 6 million still be
in that fund and that fund only, Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They did a Budget Ordinance and they took the money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And we agreed to it?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair? The ordinance -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: --putting money automatically into the fund is the Affordable
Housing Fund not the First Time Homebuyer's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, this one is not...
MS. REVELS: --Fund. The First Time Homebuyer's Fund is created by
ordinance and is, there is no mandate to put money in that fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, so we just put in 400,000 each year?
MS. REVELS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But once the money went in doesn't it stay
there or can it just be pulled out anytime? Question.
MS. REVELS: It can be pulled out at any time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It was pulled out, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'm not fine with all of this but I'm
fine with this. But I'll recommend, I'll listen to the rest and support
whatever we come up with.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're going to come back to that. Okay.
Grants and Disbursements for Supported [sic] Living Program.
Mr. Victorino? Same page, Page 8.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is on the affordable housing,
supportive living?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants and Disbursements for Supported [sic] Living
Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That one also I, I can support your
recommendation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: I believe Member Baisa said she had a concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You had a concern, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to be reminded again where this goes. We
have so many funds and they all have funny names Does anybody know?
Who are we supporting?
MS. REVELS: This is a, a fund that the Director of Housing and Human
Concerns can use at her discretion to do grants. It's not reviewed by the
Grants Review Committee and she would be better to ask where the
money is used.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In previous years, Member Baisa, part of the money
was used for MECC.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay. Well that makes my concern even
bigger. They're an agency in trouble that needs help.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You want to revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Grant to Hale Mahaolu for Homeowners and
Housing Counseling Program. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is the one that I was concerned about, and
the reason I'm concerned about is I think I told you guys after I attended
the FACE meeting and listened to people that deal with pending
foreclosures and mortgage modifications, there is an avalanche of that
kind of clients at the programs that exist. And one of these is this Hale
Mahaolu Program, and I think it's really a bad thing to be lessening the
funding for this right now. Because even the director who came to testify
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told us that she has incredible increase in the amount of clients that are
coming to her for assistance. And I hear from Cameron Center that
Consumer Credit Counseling, who is housed there, has a line outside the
door all day, every day. So I'm really worried about this. You know if we
can stop people from being foreclosed and put out on the road we're going
to save ourselves a lot of grief and money, because when they become
homeless then what do we do?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: How much money did we cut from this?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know for $5,000 I agree with Member
Baisa, I just don't think we should argue about it. The demand is up there,
just look at the newspaper. I'd rather work with people, have them
transition through this, because if they're, if we can help them that way
then they're not a problem on the welfare end, hopefully, or in our, in our
homeless program. So we're going to spend the money, Mr. Chair, one
way or another, so I would ask the Members to really consider $5,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I know there's other organizations that
do have the similar. . . (inaudible). . .Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I agree, you know,
having talked to the principals of Hale Mahaolu about this program, at one
time, you know, they had a contract with the County to do part of this
programs, and they were doing it and not getting reimbursed for it so they,
they had to put out money on their own. And as has been mentioned by
the other Members it's a really important program especially now. And I
think part of this program is they've been trying to help seniors in reverse
mortgaging and so forth. So I, I think we should maintain a level funding.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit and take hard votes. Next page,
Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'? Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We missed or did I miss Na Hale 0 Maui?
Did we talk about it or did I just speed by?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Na Hale 0 Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was that...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That wasn't . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Never mind. Never mind. I
apologize. I had it marked down as a revisit but I guess we got, okay, I
apologize. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I had it marked down as a revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Grant for Services to the Frail and Elderly.
Member Molina, question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, if we could back up. Did we, the
last item we were discussing was that for the Hale Mahaolu Homeowners
and Counseling Program, or was that for the Personal Care Program?
`Cause I see on your list here -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --a return.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The 150,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm, I'm just looking at the ones that we say that we
want to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Because I saw on the list here.
Okay. Well anyway, for the 150,000 I can support your recommendation
on that item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And on the next, frail and elderly, no questions
on that one, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I wish it were more because, you know, I know
where we're going with elder care, but I am real happy that at least we
have 150,000 to help out because this is an area of unquestioned need.
You know it's no fun to be the senior sitting in your bed unable to get up
and even brush your teeth, and what this does is prevent people from
having to go to Hale Makua or to Kula or even to our hospital. And we all
know what that costs us as taxpayers when they wind up there and they are
not able to pay. So, you know, I'm just real, like I said, I'm very happy
that we at least put aside 150,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa, we on Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Nine.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Page 9.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I thought we just talked about that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yesterday we had consensus on the one, I just talked
about . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was following Molina. I guess I'm following
him on the wrong line. That's okay, I'm glad I made my speech. You
heard it again.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant for Services to the Frail and Elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, that one. Okay. Is that what the one, now
you want to hear about that? Do you want to hear about that?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. That 651,000 is another one which has
been cut from $720,000 and that's another very vital area of help to the
seniors. This one is not so much personal care, this is more for chore
service and other services to the frail and elderly. And the same story, you
know, it helps people to remain independent, remain in their homes. And
it's very critical money and we got $651,000, it's nice to have that, it's not
enough. If there were money to go around I'd like to put more but, you
know, you got to be realistic.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I had put money in restoring this
section, but it, if we can restore the, the meals and some of the other
services which you have recommended I think it's a tradeoff. Because as
long as people who are frail and elderly do benefit from those other
programs I think it will be of some benefit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, I just wanted to, to
make sure that the item that the, the Hale Mahaolu for personal care that
was put in, that was to accommodate the, the funding that was taken...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From the State of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. From the State. So this,
okay, so this supplements that then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Continues the program -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Continues the program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to make sure that the elderly are taken care of.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the 150,000, that
was my question about whether or not that was the amount that they
were...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It was much more than that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Two thirty three.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Two thirty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two thirty, but they said whatever we can provide
them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (end of tape 5A).. .
hopefully, hopefully trying to restore their funding to that amount, and
that's why I included an item in two sections in our proposed budgets.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well if Members, well, you all agreed yesterday but if
you want to revisit then fine, fine with me. But remember Mr. Katsuda
said that whatever the County can provide.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Well that was my
intention in terms of working through our budgets was to restore it. And
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then I'm trying to make sure that I'm not missing it throughout this as
we're moving across this, 'cause there are many that have similar kinds of
terms and I want to make sure that we're acting appropriately for the items
that we do want to support, you know. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. This, this actually supplement, not supplement
but also does the same thing as Grants for Service to the Frail and Elderly
which is another program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a different program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, different?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I? Chair, that, these are different programs.
This 200 and...or 150,000 that we have for now would be going to Hale
Mahaolu to do personal care, and as the Director stated when she came
what they do with personal care is they go into the home, they help people
brush their teeth, take a bath, make their bed and do activities of daily
living. Whereas the frail and elderly services are a different spectrum of
services and they tend to be more homemaker and chore service and those
are different kinds of services, those are the people that come in and do the
laundry and clean the house and, you know, do more chore type activities.
And so, or cook even a meal. The personal care tends to be caring for the
person themselves so it's different -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and they go to different agencies, not Hale
Mahaolu.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros? Oh, Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then just to clarify,
the frail and elderly also dealt with the disabled adults?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So that was the two -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --categories. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes, Mr. Chairman, thank you. I'm glad we
do have money in there because again this is a very important program
and services. And I, I think as Member, as described by Member Baisa
what actually occurs, I think the real important thing to remember is as
people, you know, age and especially when they get elderly, losing their
independence is really, kind of impacts them heavily. So for us to be able
to keep them independent by keeping them in their homes and, and
providing services I think is very important and I support your
recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson, just for your information
we increased the funding for Congregate Meals and also the Meals on
Wheels Program, two other full . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And that's what, that's kind of why
I'm, you know, I'm happy we're going this direction because I know we
can't do everything this year, but at least those are things that are really,
really essential to the survival of the frail and elderly. So as long as we
can keep that at a level and increase the funding to that I'm, I'll, I'll
support the recommendation. I don't want to be the holdup.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, you want to revisit this or
are you...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, should we fmd some wonderful money of
course I'd come back but for now it's okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'll just say consensus. Finding money is going
to be a problem. Maui Community College Cooperative Education
Program. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I think that one also I made a
reduction and even though I know that's fairly important. Where we got
to take care of the basic needs of our community, our elderly and our
youth, some of these programs may have to take a backseat if nothing else
for right now. So I can support you, Chair, and your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, this particular program is primarily a stipend
program. This is a program with Maui Community College that the
students receive credit for work practicum. I do not think it's our
responsibility as County government to fund this particular program which
is why I eliminated it from my own budget submission. Chairman, I still
have concerns whether or not this is the kind of program we should be
supporting when obviously we looking at the elderly, we looking at the,
the, the keiki and this is really a stipend program that is really a Maui
Community College function. Thank you, Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support Mateo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I support your recommendation however maybe
tomorrow we'll change our mind.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I'll support your
recommendation which by the way is the same as the Mayor's which is
already a 20 percent reduction. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we'll revisit this and tomorrow we'll
do the voting. Okay. The Maui Farm on Page 10. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well this one I would like as much as
possible to trying finding, find funding back in this, and, you know,
there's so many good programs and, but this is one that I'll look for
$22,000 somewhere else. And hopefully, I saw you increase others and
this Maui Farm's one really is an important component. It helps, as you
heard, many families in that transitional period and I, I'd like to discuss
this more. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO:
Chairman, I can support the Chairman's
recommendation. You know kudos to this particular program for
everything they do. They're working with six families, six families at
$230,000 plus additional funding that they have secured. The $22,000
reduction at this point based on our, our own needs to my, to me is
appropriate.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes, I think it's a great program too. And
but, you know, these economic times everybody is suffering. And hope,
wish we had more money to give them, but I'll support your
recommendation, Chair
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA:
recommendation.

I'll support your

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Like Member Victorino I'd like to revisit if we, if
things get better.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I'm like some of my
colleagues, I'd like to revisit this and I think there may be some room
where we could kind of restore the Mayor's recommendation which was
already a, I believe there's a cut, 10 percent cut from the Mayor's
recommendation. So I could live with that should we be able to find the
available funding. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll come back to that. The next one is
National Kidney Foundation of Hawaii. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm not going to be difficult but this was one
of the programs and some of you were not here when this first came. This
was a program that was to be funded for no more than three years at the
most and here we are many years later. I realize it's an important issue but
to me, you know, this is not an absolute necessity. It doesn't, you know,
provide housing, it doesn't provide food, it's an educational thing and
there are many brochures, there is a much greater awareness. I think
Akaku and all these other programs, it is a national program. We should
not be putting money into something that basically asked for funding for
just a very short period of time. So, you know, this money in my view
could be put in other programs that everybody else wants to support. So I
think you should look back at the minutes, Mr. Chair. I, it's not, I, I know
it's an important issue but, you know, we're talking about peoples lives
and providing food and providing clothing and, you know, at this point I, I
just say I'll go along with whatever the majority want. But I just wanted
to say my little piece.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is the third year by the way, Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is the fifth year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fifth year?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I thought it was the third.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I remember something about that when I came but
I support your recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, I'm open to adjusting down. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll revisit. The Salvation Army.
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hard one for me, I'd certainly like to give them
more money. Like I said this morning, you know, this is the agency of last
resort that handles the problems in our community that nobody else wants
to deal with. And so again, you know, should things work out I'd like to
come back to this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I would like to support the
restoring.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see, next page. Keiki Kokua.
Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is a hard one for me too. You know they
were very gracious about the cut that was originally proposed and have
really tried to take matters into their own hands by opening a re-store or a
thrift store, or whatever you want to call it. And I'd like to help them
maybe one more time and by next year maybe they won't need any help,
because if that store goes the way I think it's going to go they should be all
right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I support the idea that Member Baisa
brought up and the reason is I know some of the foster parents, and I know
what they go through and what they provide for children not in their
regular homes or not wanted in their regular homes or a danger to be in
their regular homes. So I think this is a really important program. They
made a lot of effort to try and generate revenues themselves so I, I would
like to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We're going to revisit that again. Maui
Economic Opportunity, Inc., for Youth Services. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support your recommendations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hard one again because I know that the kids that
the MEO Youth Bank serves, and I think we've all seen them, are the
children in our community that really need help. And many come from,
you know, very low-income homes or homes that have special challenges,
and it's kind of hard to reduce this program. But I know we're making
choices here and I can go along with it even though, you know, it kind of
bothers me 'cause I know this program and what it does. But, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we do have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Great.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 12, Youth Centers. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well if I, if I can remember them this
morning Ms. Tsuhako said there was a mistake as far as there really
wasn't any kind of savings. Am I correct, Mr. Chair'? Or carryover?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Tsuhako.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Director she said that they made a mistake as far as
the numbers on Page 10-27 of the Program Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I'd like to revisit this one. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Youth Programs. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit. Grant to J. Walter Cameron for
Facility Improvements. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, Members, it's hard, hard
choices.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep. You got that one right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time the Chair is going to call a ten minute
recess and we'll reconvene at 4 o'clock. This meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:50 p.m.
4:04 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, we're going to move forward now
with, we're at Animal Management Program. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support your recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki? Animal Management.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I just going to leave this open for a while until
Member Johnson and Member Baisa comes back. Page 13, University of
College or University of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and
Human Resources for Extension and Research Projects in Maui. Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think I'm, this is one of the funds I
originally, when I suggested was a 20,000 cut so I think I'd like to revisit
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and why the cut?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well actually the monies can, were to be
used in other programs. Even though this is a, a great program for our
agriculture industry but I just felt like this is one of the areas where I think
if we had to, to cut this is someplace I would look to. You know being a
State responsibility which we have contributed a lot too but when times
are lean there are times when we got to look at some of these programs.
So that was my rationale, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I support Chair's recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Return.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Why?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I want to cut.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. This is. . .(inaudible). . .Member
Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah. I want to return to this
one, Chair. Return.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, return. Oh, okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support your recommendation however I'll be
certainly open to hearing other considerations to adjust downward.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member, Member Johnson, we're on
Page 13.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And we're on the agriculture?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that's the Farm Bureau?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. This is U.H...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, CTAHR, yeah. I definitely want to revisit
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'll just wait for Member Baisa to come. And
we are on Page 13, CTAHR.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Back to Page 12, Animal
Management Program. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which, the Animal Management Program on
Page 12?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Humane Society.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 12.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Middle. Middle of the page.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: How come we're going backwards?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because we weren't here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You weren't here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 'Cause we're backwards, right? I always
knew something was fundamentally wrong. All right. Yeah. I don't
know why, why do we revisit this in the first place, Mr. Chair, under
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Animal Management? Was that...oh, is that, that's the revolving fund for
the Humane Society?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, definitely. We need to revisit that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Likewise.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we'll revisit that. Okay. Now we're on
Maui, Maui County Farm Bureau. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support for now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is the one where I, I wanted to separate
out by removing a portion of the money and give it to Maui Aloha Aina to
have their own line. So I, I guess revisit would be my recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And Maui Aina Aloha [sic]...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aloha Aina.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aloha Aina.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maui Aloha Aina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha Aina. Is that a non-profit or, or they going to go
to a third...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They are? Okay. Thank you. Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit. And the reason for that is that's
where I was looking to take 20,000 from the ag and put it there. So that
was my rationale.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Molokai Livestock Coop...no, I'm sorry.
That's it. Next page, number, Page 14, Maui Fest. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This was the one that I wanted to put an extra
5,000 in, because I was concerned that they may not be able to go to
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Molokai. So I, I did visit with Mr. Burgmaier so I don't know if we, if an
extra $5,000, I just wanted to restore that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, question please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. The Maui Fest Hawaii, LLC, can you
give me a little more information who they are and what, what their
function is?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Their group what they do as a, I understand that, oh, oh.
Was the program on the, on...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, you want me to explain it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That's Ken Burgmaier and now the
deceased Boy Kanae. They started this basically for local people to have
entertainment at either a minimal or low or no cost, and they basically do
most of these outreach programs they match almost everything. KPOA
gives all their kokua, all the advertising, you know, they bring in. So
particularly I felt that the success that they had on Molokai, I know Henry
and Sharon Allen(?) went there, it was really a good program. And
particularly now when people can't afford a lot I thought, you know what,
they just sometimes need to blow off steam and had, you know, have this
program. And they also do the drive-in theatre at Maui Community
College. So to me I just think it's, it's something, it's a small amount of
money for a lot of benefit that they do bring. So that's what the program
is about. And especially since Boy is no longer there I thought, you know
what? He really started something very --
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --very fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. East Maui Cultural Economic
Development Program. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll come back to that one. Friends of
Old Maui High School. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think I was the only one and I just want to
explain, and then if somebody can tell me differently. What had happened
was I reduced this slightly because they had not accessed the money even
in this fiscal year yet, and so when I upon questioning I believe of the, this
is under Economic Development, they felt that they would not even run
out of money by the, I guess the end of 2009. So I just reduced it
somewhat because they wouldn't need the money right away. I don't
mind putting it in again next year but that was why I reduced it. So I'm
trying to maximize, you know, just like how we fund positions for only six
months, that was kind of my thinking and not that I don't support it but
that was my rationale.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I have a question. I'd heard a lot about
this program and how wonderful, you know, they're doing with the old
school. But the funding is to what, continue the revitalization of that old
school? Is it for operations? What, what is it for?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They, it's just a, Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Mr...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: He's a Maui High grad.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. For, for Member Medeiros'
information I, I served on the board before, I'm not a member of it
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anymore. But I guess the, the land was conveyed to the County and they
want to establish I believe a Patsy Mink, a center there for, an educational
center and named in honor of Patsy Mink, who was a graduate of the Old
Maui High School. I believe the County department had at one time, the
previous Administration had considered that as an area to house the
homeless. Of course now we have a new Administration and I think the
direction has changed there. But for the time being my understanding it's
supposed to establish an educational center out in that area, and I believe
they had Chris Hart, they hired Chris Hart, an architect to look at
establishing some type of design. And I think some of those monies that
they had in prior fiscal years were used for that. And, and also if Member
Medeiros would like to contact Barbara Long, she's been the person that's
been spearheading this revitalization of the old campus. And at a later
point I can get you her number, Mr. Medeiros, if you would like to talk
more about it, that with her as well as the Housing and Human Concerns
Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Molina. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Incorporated.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair And this is the one if
I'm not mistaken you took money, where did you, you did something here
and I cannot recall.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. From Housing and Human Services we moved
$35,000 into OED, OED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I can support that. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I support but I want to return to the
previous one, because I believe I was the only one on Old Maui High
School that had a question. And I'm not going to stand in anybody's way
because, I mean, I support the program but, you know, I'm, I was just
trying to be a little bit more prudent fiscally.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we have consensus on Old Maui High
School?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. How about the next one down? Ma Ka
Hana Ike [sic]?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I'm...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have no problem -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --with that and...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus? Thank you. Maui Community College for
Long Term Care Partnership. Member Molina? Hard, yeah, when you go
first?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That, that, there's, I'll support -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --your recommendation for now, Chair, but I
am open to hearing other considerations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The same as Member Molina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I do support this since I've been a
member of it for a long while. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know in this, this funding I, I
think what would be good is to find out exactly how much we're talking
about, you know, cumulatively in support to, to, to the community college.
`Cause as we separate it out we're looking at individual programs, it
doesn't give us the total picture. So maybe this is an item that we should
try look at consolidating and see exactly what we're talking about.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can revisit. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, Staff, I think the ones that we're
going to be revisiting tomorrow, if you could have either the director
that's in charge of the program or the program, who going run the
program. Okay. We'll come back to that. Next one is the Maui
Community College for Nursing and Dental Assistant Program. Member
Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Revisit.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support . . . (end of tape 5B).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next page. Maui Economic Opportunity
for Microenterprise Program. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit. I'd like more money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a good program and it was lauded very loud
in Molokai and everywhere about the effectiveness in helping people find
jobs, and in, in this area that's what we need, fmding jobs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think we just left two programs that also
provided -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --jobs to this community Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I want to revisit this because I do
believe it warrants more money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Food Technology Center, Inc.
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. This one I go, I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I would like to revisit this item as well. It's
my intention to, to remove. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Unanimous on that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants and Disbursements for Renewable Energy and
Energy Efficiency Programs. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let me see, I, I think I was
looking at increasing that amount and that's why...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(Whispering). . . Just go support.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(Whispering). . . What?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(Whispering). . . Just support it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll support your
recommendation.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sorry, I was prompting him
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We have consensus on that one. Thank you.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants to Maui Visitors Bureau for Visitor Industry.
We'll go with Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Which one are we on now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MVB, the one on the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(Whispering). . . Support.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, MVB. Oh yeah, that one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That one!
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We're pretty far apart on that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: She didn't hear me, I guess. I'll,
revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, revisit. But if there's consensus to revisit
can we deal with it today?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I going revisit too but tomorrow is fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We were on Page 16 of 50, Members. But
on the 81/2 x 11 sheet we're on the second page, I think, back page. Okay.
The next one is on Page 17.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had, I, I got an email and this was on an item
on Page 16 for Park Maintenance, and it was from one of the workers
about the tractor/mower operator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tractor...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is, is that one or is that in a different one? Oh,
I'm sorry. That, that's in Public Works. Sorry, wrong page. I made my
note on the wrong spot. Scratch that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, I, we on Page 16.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I had made a note on my file in the
wrong spot. I see my little tab now, it's up on Page 20. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Under the Administration Program we had a
request to revisit. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thanks, Chair. This was a
request that I made, and the reason I did that was to find, I wanted to know
where within the Department of Parks would we consider looking at the
possible positions of pool or aquatic staff, and you have another item
below that. But that was my reason for it, I wasn't sure where I should
plug in that so I wanted to make a hold on, on Administration if that's
where it was appropriate but if not we'll take it up in another, so...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Probably in Aquatic, Aquatics.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then, then I'll support
your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. The pool that you reference is the pool on
Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It may end up in two side.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well see that's, if, that's why I
was trying to make sure that we didn't lose an opportunity and I raised it
at those two points.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Those two sections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well I'll just keep the two side open and then have the
Department come over here, because it does involve some, some
negotiations between the County as well as Lanai Land Company. I, I
don't know if you found the agreements in regards to the utilization of the
swimming pool, but if you had that documentation that can help us also,
yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Lahaina Restoration Program, oh,
Foundation. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We didn't finish Admin.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Admin, Member...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aquatics.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, this way.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Johnson.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I think, am, am I correct, Sol, that you,
you're okay with that on Admin?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, the Chair's going to leave
. . .(inaudible). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going to leave this open -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and come back to this and Aquatics because I think
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --what Member Kaho'ohalahala is, you know, intention
is to look at the swimming pool or leasing it out or purchasing and then
aquatics of course would be the ones that would . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah. Well I'm, I'm fine with your
Administration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. No problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then Aquatics Program, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit. Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: For that, for the same reason.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We're in Aquatics Program, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Since we're going to revisit Administration
Program regarding the Lanai pool Chair is recommending then,
recommending that we revisit the Aquatics Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any objection, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next page. Waiehu Golf Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Next page...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, that's the one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think I've said what I needed to say.
Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . . (Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. We down to Grant to Wailuku Main
Street/Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Tell me the number again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Page SevenCOUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's, it's Wailuku Main Street?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm okay with the money that you've got
there. That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 18, Maui Redevelopment Agency.
. . .(coughs). . . Excuse me. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Grants to University of Hawaii Maui Sea
Grant Program. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: As was raised earlier by the -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --Planning Department that this
funding was reducing the, the position of, so is this sufficient to, to cover
that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: According to the Department this will cover the
operations for Zoe Norcross -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Zoe.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to continue doing the mapping, I think, of the
shoreline.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I just, I just think it's an
important position for the information that we need to have. So if that's
going to be sufficient then I'll support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Likewise, support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we have consensus, Members? Thank
you. Integrated Socioeconomic Land Use. Members, again, Planning
Department was here this morning indicating that this is something that
the County needs to do. So, make it easy. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Still I'm going to revisit. I don't think we,
like, like was said by another Member, we have a lot of things we need to
do like our community plans and all that that take longer than the time we
need, our solid waste. Let, let me not go into plans 'cause we have many
years behind many plans, so at this time I think I would wait and take that
money -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and put it in some of the areas that I think
needs to be more or less funded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I support your recommendation, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is that a mouse over there? I, first of all I
want to ask one question. You know what, I mean I do support this but
when Ms. Aoki was speaking she also talked about cutting, you know,
perhaps like the incentive. I think there was an additional 20,000 or
something. Remember when they were doing recruitment and the
incentives? Where is that, Mr. Chair? Is that in their admin or in
positions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me read what she has here. And, Members, you got
copies of this right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We are requesting $75,000 for the Socioeconomic Land
Use Forecast. With Council's adoption of Bill 53, Maui County Code
2.80B.030(H)(1) states in part at least every two years the Planning
Director shall propose a new Socioeconomic Forecast pursuant to this
chapter unless the forecast is included as part of the Planning Director's
proposal, propose this annual revisions to the General Plan. The
Socioeconomic Forecast was completed in June, 2006 and the Land Use
Forecast was completed in November 2006. The Department is required
to update these technical studies as required by law and they are now
approaching three years old. The new forecast gain, again are required by
law, will be used for updates of the community plan The Department
expects this task to cost an estimated $75,000 and failure to fund the
project will affect the County's ability to provide for effective and
legitimate planning for our community areas.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, and I, that's why I do support this. I
think that, and I can't remember where Ms. Aoki said that, and maybe it is
in the minus $20,000 in the premium pay on the previous page on 17
about the incentives. Because I know she did mention, so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. I, I kind of remembered because of the -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: They were recruiting off island.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --recruiting and the incentive was to include incentives
at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. I just want to make sure that that is
addressed. So I have no problem with funding the Integrated
Socioeconomic Land Use. And, you know, my justification, Mr Chair,
too is just because we have been unable to keep up in one area it's not
justification to let other areas languish. So, you know, I, I really feel it's
not right. If we know what the law is, if we pass ordinances let's make
our best attempts to at least comply with them and not, not have more
meltdowns like we have, so I, I think it's important. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit, Mr. Chair. And just a comment, I
know there's been talk about, you know, while maybe we need to follow
up if we can, you know, meet our deadlines. But at this point in time I can
think of better usage of this 75,000. I mean yeah the study will be needed
but, you know, I see nothing wrong with either reducing the amount or
maybe considering this one next fiscal year. But personally I see better
usage of this 75,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, Staff, I hope you caught
Ms. Aoki's comments regarding the removal of $20,000 that was provided
for incentives. Thank you. Public Works, Engineering -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Page 19.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before we move on, on that same page right
below that Socio-Economic Land Use study, she mentioned also in her
testimony that it was possible that we could reduce this HAEBS/HAER or
whatever this is, cultural resource management. And I don't know how
much of a reduction she was suggesting but she did mention that, and
since we're desperately looking for money I thought we might want to
take her up on it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Cultural Resource Management? Is that the one?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, that's Item 9, right under the Socioeconomic
Land Use.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What we'll do, we'll follow up with her -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to this item. And I don't know where the
incentive, probably in Administration so we'll follow up on both and we'll
come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, this was also the area too where I
had replaced the Pioneer Mill money that... `cause our building is falling
into a serious state of disrepair in Lahaina. And so I know that they had
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taken that out and they actually withheld the money out of last year's
budget which we had actually funded and I think it was like $125,000
so...or 150 rather. And so I reinserted that, but even if we're going to
eliminate some of these things I really would like to at least try and keep
that building from deteriorating further. And we just can't leave it. It's
just completely irresponsible and they did not get their CDBG grant even
though they applied for it. And it's just, you know, it seems very
irresponsible to do that. So I know when Colleen Suyama was with this
Department she was very supportive of doing that initial stabilization. So
I just say whatever money we can put in there, I would just like that not to
be forgotten.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well we'll revisit that one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page, Page 19, 19. Public Works. Engineering,
Engineering, where's the Engineering? Okay. That was an issue. On
Page 19, Engineering Program, General Fund. I thought we had
consensus but I guess not.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought so too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I didn't mark that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I didn't mark that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I didn't mark that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't mark it either.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I had consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's a...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Which one is that?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's the Engineering Program, General
Fund, 19.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So Page 19 is okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 20 is okay. Okay. We're on Page 22.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr Chair, this was the one where I wanted to
go back to 20, Mr. Chair because of the, it was the tractor/mower operator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tractor/mower, oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I don't know, I guess some
of the Members, I'm not sure which ones got this, but the vacant position
tractor/mower operator there seems to be some concern about whether that
is or is not funded. And I was asked to reconsider that because apparently
the program, now especially if we implement any parts of the bypass
we're going to be responsible and I guess they, this Division is going to be
responsible for maintaining that. And I just really would like to have
some information then from the Department before we gloss over this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll bring 'em back.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll bring 'ern back. And then, Members, on
Page 19...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just to add some information to Member
Johnson. I spoke to Deputy Director Miyamoto because of my concerns
about that same position, and he indicated and this can be confirmed if we
need to that it was a position in Makawao. So but, you know, if you want
you can confirm it with the Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see, Page 22. Grant and Disbursements to
United States Geological Survey for Stream Monitoring and Studies.
We'll start with Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This was the one I think that I had for the,
you're on Page 22, that was the proviso on grant No. 8.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grant . . .(inaudible). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that was the one where I wanted to put
in, I had additional information which I was able to get. It wouldn't mean
adding more money but I wanted to put a proviso in with regard to the
Kauaula in-stream flow, because that project is not completed. And if at
some point the Members want the information, if they want to consider the
proviso I'll be happy to hand that out. But that's the only reason I wanted
to return to that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So you want to put the proviso in here, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I want to put the proviso in No. 8, right, WS
21-11 and it's grant No. 8.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then, Mr. Nishiki, on Page 19 I think you
wanted to put a proviso also.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not sure on that one now. I'm going to talk
to Public Works, Milton.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Plus that one's got money in it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So Public Works, Members, remember that
Mr. Arakawa mentioned that there is $3 7 million for, in Public Works for
permitting, building permitting fees, and he was hoping to utilize some of
those fees for employee expansion. Okay. Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah. I want to revisit that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Revisit.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's all we have for Page 22. Page 24.
County Emergency Management Center. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I was one of those that wanted to
eliminate that and so I will stand on that even though I know how
important everyone has come to testify to us today. These are hard times
and we've got to make hard decisions so revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, let me remind you after this
morning's session that of this $290,000 there, there's an 800-somewhat
dollars grant tied to it, so...Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And I, I want to revisit it too but I just
want to say that I did have an opportunity to speak with someone from
Economic Development on this. And my reason for not supporting this is
that long-term costs and the increase in our operational budget which will
not be paid for with Federal funding. That's my reason. It has nothing to
do with the matching, I mean that's fine but, you know, who's going to,
who's going to pay for it over the long haul? That's my concern. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I tend to agree with you but I, maybe we should
think about it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Parks and Recreation, the bottom one,
Paukukalo Beach Park Master Plan I know we haven't even negotiated
for the, the, the land at this time. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think I'm the one that brought the issue up
and because I thought...but in checking with Parks I did fmd out talking
with Tamara and some, and her, her people planning path that this not, you
know, you're absolutely correct it's, it's a ways down. So I can live with
your recommendation at this time. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, I'm going to support but I just want to
make a few comments, because I've also gotten a lot of calls from people
that utilize that area and they would like to see, you know, a master plan
so that they can contribute to, you know, what is needed and what is
wanted by the communities and the people that use that park. So, thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
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I'm reading my
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Budget.
little. . . (inaudible). . . Yeah, defmitely I support this budget item -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --being removed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I thought you guys were going to say
support with reservations but I guess not. Thank you.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gotta get some humor, yeah? Page 25.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty six, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Try ask and make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair? Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that a revisit or is that a consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 25.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Twenty five?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which one is that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I know you guys don't . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think, this is, this is something
that I had asked for a revisit because of the -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Countywide swimming pools.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the Countywide swimming
pools.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Again I was trying to plug in to
the appropriate places.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll, we'll get the Department here because it
can fall anywhere amongst the three areas so we'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty six, Page 26. Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Road
Improvements. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was supporting but I, I want to put a proviso in
there to do it or more information I wanted about the repairs on Polipoli
Road and the bridge. We were going to check on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, I completely forgot to ask
Mr. Arakawa this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just leave it open.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 28. This is the Countywide Safety
Improvements. Okay. We increased the funding by $150,000. So now
the net appropriation is 750,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is Countywide, Members, Highway Countywide,
yeah. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well if I'm correct, wasn't the discussion
between speed humps, speed impediments? I kind of remember the
discussion, speed tables, trying to...wasn't that the discussion? I think
Mr. Molina was the one that brought up the subject about the differences,
et cetera. And I think that's what we were really trying to figure out. Am
I correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe I can ask Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman Mr. Victorino is
correct, I did want to revisit 'cause I have a proviso I wanted to propose.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you want to propose a proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I think Staff can . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Any more questions to this particular
item?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, we'll come back to that. Page 31.
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, Eddie Tam Gym Lighting. Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's 30, that's the park assessment funds for
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah. That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support for Kula community
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we got consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: I believe this is where Member Baisa wanted to add the Kula
park.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, Chair, Chair, you were going to check on
something to do with the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Monies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --the payment by the developer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because of I think he had some questions
about the payment to...for park assessments, I guess, for his subdivision.
I don't know if the subdivision was approved or if it's not...I don't know if
the subdivision was approved or not. Staff, do you have any more
information regarding that?
MS. REVELS: No, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I would appreciate it if we could check into
this because I'm under the impression that this money is going to be paid
very shortly and the development is all pau.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's that, it's that development on Maha Road that,
that David Goode put together?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well the people are in the houses so I'm hoping
they're pau.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What we can do is find out from Park, the Park
personnel.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could we, could --
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --could we have them come tomorrow and take a
look at it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I hope they're listening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sure they are glued to their TV.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Park Assessment, West Maui Community Plan
Area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think I was the only one, Mr. Chair, that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and Gayle is, she's helped me, I'm going
to put in a proviso, but I'm going to add 450 as...I'm not sure if the grant
monies . . .(end of tape 6A). . . be received and then my proviso will
generally read the 450 would be only if the grant monies are not received.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But it's going to come from park assessment
so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we'll come back to that later on
. . .(inaudible). . .

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I've got it ready so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see, Page 49...oh wait. Page 49, the
bottom of the page. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think this is the one we were going to get
clarification as far as the monies from the, the fund. I don't know, Chair, I
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mean, Member Johnson brought this up so I'd like to hear the explanation,
`cause I kind of forgot what we were talking about.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I think -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know we...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the representative, Ms. Bouchard provided us with
some information in regards to some, some of the fundings in this Animal
Control area that they were going to do a replacement of cesspool with
septic tanks.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then also the modular, I guess, office renovation
and there's one more item.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A building, a modular building.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The modular building.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A modular building.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And what was the third one? There's three, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There was, there was a modular building,
there was the septic tank, and the last one was the, I have it here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well we, we got it, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Anyway it's in the testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. But anyway it would have eaten up -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --it would have eaten up all the money.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll, we'll revisit because the other -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It was computers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --side.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Computers, six...the computers that she said were
over six years old.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Affordable Housing Fund, Page 50.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support your recommendation, Chair.
I don't think I had a, no. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo? Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support, Mr. Chair. And I did have a proviso
and I believe also Member Nishiki at a later point so I'd like to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. But the number is okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, the number is fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. So we'll come back to those
that we say we're going to revisit. Members, it's almost five o'clock. The
Chair is going to take a dinner recess. We'll come back at 5:00. . .6:00?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: At 5:00.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six o'clock?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 6:00.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 6:00.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 6:00.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This meeting is in recess till six o'clock
this evening. . . .(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:54 p.m.
6:09 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, this evening we have Deidre
Tegarden as well as Jo-Anne Inamasu from OED with us tonight. We're
going to review the areas that we don't have consensus or we do have
questions in regards to the Economic Development Program. So,
Members, if you can turn to Page 13. And the first item is the University
of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources for
Extension and Research Projects in Maui. Members...Member Victorino,
if you have any questions for the Department regarding that particular
grant?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The 120,000 as presented to us by our Chair
what was the, was that the Mayor's amount, 120? And what was last
year's amount?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. The previous fiscal year was
$133,000. CTAHR actually came in with their own, with $120,000. They
made the, the cut before they had presented their budget to us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and let me ask you, if we cut
another 20 percent what part of the program would be lost if anything?
MS. TEGARDEN: I don't know exactly what part of the program they would
cut. The funding does go 100 percent for programs, there's no salaries in
there just to clarify. They do, you know, 4-H, they do home farming
programs, so I'm not exactly sure which, which food safety, I'm not sure
which portion would be cut, which program would be cut.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros, questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala, Members [sic]
for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, I'm looking at their
presentation or their, that they brought to the Council and looking at all the
programs that are being funded here. And you're saying 100 percent of all
of these amounts go specifically to the program?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And in the program then what
does it provide for? You have a leader, you have an amount, and let's take
the first one where it, improve economic opportunities in the production of
fruit and vegetable crops on Molokai and Lanai and then the request is for
16,000. So what is that 16,000 used specifically for?
MS. TEGARDEN: I don't have the sheet that you are looking at, and I, I would, I
don't have the exact answer as to what that 16,000 goes for. I do know
that in their economic outreach programs they do talk about, they do a lot
of the home farming, so they do outreach to backyard farmers to let them
know, you know, how to create a backyard, successful backyard garden,
what kind of soil you would need. I would assume that that would be part
of their, the program you just stated, the economic outreach.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So I'm, I guess I will just
assume then that all of it goes specifically to...there's a description of
each of the programs that he's provided for here...(long silence)...like
education and research programs for landscape and golf course industries
on Maui and Lanai...are these programs all fixed then so that what they
are presenting to us with the 120 request then these are all programs that
are fixed with, with CTAHR?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Do you have any flexibility as the
office that oversees this?
MS. TEGARDEN: We can certainly encourage the grantee to, you know, to look
at one area more than another area.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. You know the, the only
concern I had was that, that, what's the gentleman's name?
MS. TEGARDEN: Harold Keyser.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is it Keyser?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. In his presentation, you
know, with the GMO crops that, that becomes an area of concern for me,
because he, he makes testimony here not supporting things that the, the
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Council is trying to be very responsible for. And then at the same time
comes here and says but I want you to support all of these things. And
I'm trying to understand in here what it is that we're supporting in his
projects that he cannot have a broad view looking at the need for,
especially I mean in light of the taro issue that came forth that, that it
appears that as long as there's a research component that comes to the
university that that becomes the more important part of their program is to
be able to ensure that research projects are coming forward. And they're
all dealing necessarily with big funding sources that are dealing with
GMO. And then at the same time we're here now asking to support all of
these other programs, and then we get very little support when we want to
talk about curbing on GMO research perhaps so. So I want to fmd some
balance and that's why I'm trying look at these programs and ask you then
what oversight you have in the programs, is this proposal then a proposal
that you have also and you're, you're checking off on this and saying that,
you know, this is all fine and that's what the 120,000 is, is used for? So
I'm unclear about how this all works but your, it's under your Department
and, and I'm trying to, you know, just look at each program specifically.
But it's one good thing that you've said it's not going to go to salaries.
Okay. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department, if you could?
MS. TEGARDEN: Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?

If you could provide some comments to

MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. Thank you. You know we, we do still have scrutiny
and input when it comes to in the end what is being funded. I will also,
you know, let you know that we, we do not fund any GMO research
projects or anything like that. So we understand, I understand what you
are saying and we can, you know, we certainly look at all of the, the
applications that come in. Even, even when they are line items and the
Council and has approved the, the fmal line items that get funded, we still
make sure to look at them and make sure that the organization has
everything intact before we award the funding in...and make sure that it, it
stays within the vision of the County.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: You know if, if the Council
moved, this is just a, if the Council moved to direct in a proviso that some
study be made to ensuring that the, that the native taro will be protected
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from any potential crosspollination...because even that there was some
contention about well, you know, taro doesn't have spores of pollen so
that's not an issue. I mean even if we supported a project like that, and
then here's the same agency that would be directed to do that, and at the
same time that same agency would be in opposition of our ability to try
and retain, you know, something like taro. How, how do you handle that?
Because, you see, it's one thing wearing different hats, like you say, we
don't do GMO things, but the same agency wears that other hat that does
GMO. And then if we would direct you in one direction that would say
look at preservation of taro, and at the other side of that same spectrum
you have the same agency that would be now doing research projects to
continue GMO research, how do you, how do we decipher or balance that?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well I, I think that one thing we can do is dictate where we
want our funding to go and where we don't want our funding to go. I
mean you can, you can certainly say, I think, that, you know, this, this
funding is specifically for research that does not involve GMO or
crosspollination. I mean I think that that's one way to address, address the
situation while still providing funding for the programs that, that the
County does support.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I guess the thing is it
wouldn't be so bad if that entity would not take necessarily a position.
But it's coming to this same body, taking a position on one side, and then
in another way coming back and saying by the way we would like your
support on this. You know and, and then that's where I'm finding some
conflict in having to take a position that, you know, and all the
information brought forth when taking a position was based on reams of,
of citings of support or, or research information that was trying to make
stronger their position. And it's that kind of, I guess, participation here at,
at our level when we're trying to be fair about what it is that we want to
support and make appropriations for to have a person wearing two hats
and say well today I'm going to wear this hat and I'm against what you're
doing and then tomorrow I want to wear my other hat and say I need your
money to help support all the programs that aren't in that vein, you know.
So, so it's that, that conflict that I see that's inherent in an entity or, or an
agency that really is trying to get the best of both worlds, so to speak. And
so I want to be sure that, I want to be responsible in making sure that I
don't support that kind of position to get the best of both worlds. So, so
that's why, Chair, I'm asking these questions about this particular
program, because it seems to me to, to be in, in conflict, inherently
conflicting itself where you're trying to do two things but wear different
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hats and it's the same entity, you know. I don't know, is a proviso
necessary within your, your office to clarify that or to make clearer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, it, it, we could add that proviso as
suggested by OED -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if, if you feel strongly about that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I mean I think I would like
to send a message to make clear with whomever that entity is, but we
happen to be dealing about, with the same entity and that's why it's, it's a,
it's a concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we'll add a proviso to this and Staff will
work along with Corporation Counsel on the wording on that proviso.
Any more questions, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. But just that it was handed to
me, CTAHR's statement here in breeding new taro through
crosspollination is another thing that they're doing. So here again we're
conflicting in, in terms of what it is we're trying to preserve and what it is
the entity. So this is their publication.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, when CTAHR gets its funding
you make the payments to what, the, the college?
MS. TEGARDEN: Right, yes, the University of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: University of Hawaii. And then does that go
to like Manoa or?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. It's the office of, their fiscal office, Office of Research
Services.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And what kind of, is there ever been a
matching component required in this area?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I don't know that there has been a matching component
required by Council. I know that some, some of the grants you do require
a, a match. The funding is supported by the college as well. It's just that
the 120,000 goes specifically to, to the programs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, I have a breakdown too as well
that, you know, for the various things that, you know, for their County 4-H
Youth Development Program, Educational Research for Landscape and
Golf Courses. Now my question has to do with, okay, largely what we've
done is we've looked at is a providing workforce development, is it
providing for sustainability of the island? And while some of these things
may, I'm, I'm not really sure of, do they give measurable outcomes like
other grant recipients receive? Do they have goals and objectives? And
then they give you a measurable outcome showing that they've achieved
that goal?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, yes, they do. We require that from all of our grantees.
But, yes, CTAHR...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. What would, what would be some of
the, the criteria then? Just...
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh, for instance number of farmers that have been served,
number of students through 4-H that have been served. You know they let
us know ahead of time what their goals are, and then through their reports
they show, share with us those numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I, I think that I understand that
`cause we used to do that with the youth center too, number of kids served.
But, you know, we had other goals and objectives, like if you were trying
to reduce dependence like one of their things where they're building soil
health and reducing dependence on imported fertilizer through use of local
or recycled local soil amendments. Well, okay, if that's one of their
programs then what is their goal and objective in that program and how
much have they reduced the dependence? You know that's, that's the
kind of thing I'm looking at that when you do a program how is it
benefiting the wider community and not just by number of people served.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. And just to comment on that they do have a number of
different goals and objectives. I just don't happen to have -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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MS. TEGARDEN: --them in front of me. But they do and, and we can certainly
get you that information if you would like it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I„ I share Member Kaho'ohalahala's
concerns because even in the publications that I've received through
CTAHR and through the, Monsanto, you know, Company, a lot of it's
paid for by the Monsanto Company and they have these other brochures
that they mail out. I, I look at the 4-H Youth Program and I go well is one
of the goals and objectives that you're being indoctrinated into accepting
GMOs as part of how you, you know, view agriculture? 'Cause that to me
it's, you know, it's something I don't agree with and I don't, I don't want
to advocate for that either. So, Mr. Chair, some of the programs I can see
the merit to them, some of these programs I don't see. I, I really don't
support full funding for this particular program. I think that there are too
many conflicts that I see at least from the materials that have been
produced and, as Member Kaho'ohalahala said, the testimony. I think
sometimes we're working at cross purposes so I, I don't look at this as
helping to really develop the workforce, and I've seen some of the
demonstration projects too with the different grasses and I, I, I don't
know. I mean when you have to solicit for people to actually come and
participate in these projects and even show any interest, I don't know
how... if this is money well spent or not. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I will be supporting your
recommendation on this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have some thoughts about the next.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Question for the
Department. How much of the, what kind of support do they give to the
4-H? 'Cause in our region Member Baisa and I, you know, we have the
kids that do 4-H and cattle and so forth. How much of this funding goes
toward that? Do you have that?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I, I think their 4-H is one of their larger programs, and I
would...this isn't a very good number but a substantial amount goes to the
4-H project and again we can get you exact amounts. But it's, it's one of
their larger ones.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, Member Molina, Maui County
4-H Youth Development Program, $4,500.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, the Chair will proceed in
this manner, I will call for a motion to accept the Chair's recommendation
and then we'll vote on the Chair's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time the Chair would like to recommend the
funding of $120,000 to University of Hawaii College of Tropical
Agriculture and Human Resources for -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So move.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for Extension and Research Projects in Maui. Moved
by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Baisa. Any more discussion,
Members? All in favor of the motion, oh, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Ready to vote.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All in favor of the motion please say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any oppose?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes aye. There's five ayes, four noes.
Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Baisa, Molina, Victorino,
Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair Pontanilla.
Nishiki,
Councilmember
Medeiros,
Kaho'ohalahala, and Johnson.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to the University of Hawaii
College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources
for Extension and Research Project in Maui at
$120,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Your comment about
provisos.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And how, how is that going to be
handled in the light of the motion already passing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good question. We'll...Corporation Counsel, can we
revisit this before First Reading to put in a proviso or can we do it right
now?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Yeah. Either way.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll do it right now. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, so you want a proviso right
now then? Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So we'll take care of this and we'll just go down
to the -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Now 'cause your earlier
statement -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --13 items.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --proviso, proviso later is what
and then you went for the motion. So my question's then when are you
going to deal with the proviso and now it's come back, do it right now so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We'll take it at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm, I'm not prepared to,
to spell out the wording for a proviso but can I present that and I wanted to
know at which point you were going to do it. I didn't expect to do it -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then you can provide it tomorrow. So as far as the
motion, the motion has been carried to accept the Chair's $120,000
funding for University of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and
Human Resources for Extension and Research Projects here in Maui.
Okay. Next item, Maui County Farm Bureau, Incorporated. Member
Victorino, if you have any questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Ms. Tegarden, I guess my concern
here is this is lump sum funding for the Maui County Farm Bureau, yeah?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then they decide where their monies
are allocated for the various parts of their operation and as well as other
organizations that they assist?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, yes. They, they provide, they let us know who they,
where they want to put the money, and they do provide it to the five
commodity groups.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So would this be another area if we put a
proviso that "x" amount of dollars would go to a specific group that's
working within their group, can that be also done as far as this is
concerned?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, I guess it could be.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: If they, if it's already one of the five commodity groups
then -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --it's already in there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so if it's one of the five commodity,
thank you. I couldn't think of the name that's why. I, I'm brain dead, and
I'm brain dead at this juncture. So one of the five commodity groups if we
wanted to put a proviso say that "x" amount of dollars of this money
would go to that proviso group we could do that?
MS. TEGARDEN: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then at a later date, Chair, I
would like to put a proviso on that, okay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support Chairman's recommendation.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support with proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, just a question. At Maui County
Farm Bureau, Incorporated it says, you know, it's separated by a line, is
that the intent? There's two Maui County Farm Bureau, Incorporated, one
with the proviso. So is it all in one box or this is separate?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (Inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because the second box has no money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're on Page 13?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, we're on 13? I thought nine.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I was looking at nine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You special again, yeah, I tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thirteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was like where that two lines, I was
looking for that too.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'll pass for now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. You
know what I would like to support, Chair, is that we separate MAA from,
from this funding and then take their portion out and then allow them to,
to be a line item so that they may have an opportunity to also advocate and
promote their idea of, of farming that may not be in the traditional Farm
Bureau and then take them out of the idea of them being a commodity. So
I think that's what was testified here today and was clarified as to what the
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Maui Aloha Aina would like to have done. And so I want to advocate for
that, that we take out a portion of the 425 and do a line item for Maui
Aloha Aina.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: For 25,000...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Two hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Two hundred.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty five thousand, two hundred dollars, something
like that. Okay. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That would be, I think what it would
do is remove some conflicts and I did have an opportunity and I thank
Deidre for, you know, saying that it wouldn't be, for their Department it
would not be problematic. I, I just personally feel that when anyone is a
member of a group if their missions, goals, and objectives are not clear
and uniform throughout the whole spectrum of the, whether you want to
call it commodity group or an agricultural sector, it's very difficult. And,
you know, for me I just would like to see that separated, and I do support
whatever the amount of funding is but at a minimum 25,200. I had put in
so much for their body and soil conference and then one for an ag summit.
But I'm supportive of doing that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I totally support
what Member Kaho'ohalahala is recommending. I have an email from the
former president of the Farm Bureau and that was his suggestion that in
order to make it clear that the Aloha Aina take the amount of money that
they would normally receive through the Farm Bureau and that it go
directly to them. And then we'll have two separate and distinct groups,
philosophically more or less doing what they do best. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Chair, I can support the suggestion from
Member Kaho' ohalahala. I think this way too it prevents any potential
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in-fighting that could occur within the Farm Bureau and, you know, make
it cleaner, I think, in my opinion. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, the Chair's
recommendation, Maui County Farm Bureau, Inc. is $425,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by
Member Baisa. Members, any discussion? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Move to amend to separate $25,200 to
go to Maui Aloha Aina.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Second that motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Kaho'ohalahala. Members, any
more discussion on that? Seeing none, the Chair will . . .(end of tape
6B). . . All in favor of the motion as amended -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --no, all in favor of the amendment please signify by
saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got to go to each individual Member or?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, if you ask for a no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, ask for a no.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, just ask for the noes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any noes? Motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to the main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, going back to the main motion. Any
more discussion? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I, you know, the last question or the last vote
was quite difficult, not because I don't support the intent. My difficulty is
in the continuous supporting of the creation of additional lines to our
budget. To, to put the proviso provides virtually the same thing because
they wouldn't be able to touch that, that money set aside specifically for
their use. And I thought that would have been the easier way. I will
support the majority. When we continue to add lines to our budget,
Chairman, it'll continue to increase the amount of non-profit organizations
or social programs that continuously will come forward. Projects like this
if it is not a line should go to the GRC, and we need to increase that pot to
make more funds available to that source. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Just two
things, one is that I think in his testimony Mr. Watanabe also came
forward and said that he has come to understand the position of MAA.
And the second part of this is that I want to hope that we will advocate for
any direction that's going to be supportive in producing food in our
islands, in our County. And this is a program that is offering an
alternative to the, the traditional methods of farming or producing of food,
and I think it's, is in our benefit to look at an industry that we know right
now that is in dire need of help and support, so much so that the State of,
the State Department of Agriculture has already acknowledged that
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90 percent of the food that we consume in Hawaii is, is imported. So in
light of that direct, in light of that understanding I think we need to give
some, some credence and some support in the area of, of food production
and anything that's going to help to nurture the soil and the aina in the
process of growing food is something we should take a closer look at. So
I want to add that to support the, the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And, and I totally agree with Chair
Mateo in terms of, you know, line after line, I know it gets onerous. But
then I think we have to seriously look at the goals and objectives for all of
our programs, and my fear was that in putting one program under another
line or as a, I guess, a proviso still fundamentally going under the Farm
Bureau, what it does is it creates the image in the community that all of the
tenants of the Farm Bureau or all the principles are being adhered to by
Maui Aloha Aina as well. And that's not the case and I don't want to
mislead the community. These, their goals are all, they're, they're both
honorable but sometimes you just have to separate it so that distinction is
made and so I, that, that's my justification too. And I do appreciate Chair
Mateo's concerns though, so I think we'll just have to take a look at that
and particularly next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Just one question for Corp. Counsel,
if I may. Corp. Counsel, so is there any difference between putting the
proviso right under Maui County Farm Bureau or making it a separate line
item as far as that entity receiving that funding?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Well I haven't seen the proviso language so I'm
not, I'm not sure exactly, you know, what that says 'cause that, that may
affect it. But basically the difference is that the funds, the check that the
County would cut would go to, to the entity that's on the line. So if you
have two separate line items obviously there will be two separate checks
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made out. If you just have one line item with a proviso just one check is
going to be made out to that, to the entity on the line item.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. My question was more so the
disbursement of that funds to the entity on the proviso part. They still
receive it, right, whether they're a separate entity, I mean, separate line
item or they're on under the main line item as a proviso?
MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: If the entity is complying, again, well the County
has direct control over obviously the checks that it cuts, right. But if, if
you're putting the proviso in then it's up to that, the granting, the grantee
agency to disburse the funds according to the budget. And I'm assuming
that they have, you know, grant reports that have to be done to the County
so that the County can follow up to make sure that the money is being
spent properly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Corp. Counsel. Because,
you know, I want to see, you know, Maui Aloha Aina get their funding
and whichever way works best, but hopefully if it was the same I agree
with Council Chair Mateo that, you know, it be a proviso under the entity
receiving the funds, the grantee. But thank you for that information.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member
Nishiki followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question for the Director. Did Maui Aloha
Aina get money from the Farm Bureau last year?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. They did in the amount of approximately 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So then, Mr. Chairman, it is my
understanding that if we're going to do a separate line that we're going to
subtract 25,2 [sic] from 425 [sic]?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just wanted to make one more comment because
I think it's very relevant to this, to the discussion as to one line or two
lines. The difference is that and this is coming from again the former
president of the Farm Bureau, better known as John "Bobby" Brooks, and
Mr. Brooks was informing us that he was in support of doing what we're
planning to do. And what he says is "I've been a farmer for the last 20
years and recently I have seen a new respect and appreciation level
developing within my fellow farmers and ranchers for more holistic
methods of farming and ranching". And so I think the difference here is in
philosophical orientation and where the, where the emphasis is. And, you
know, I come from agricultural company and I, I represent those folks, but
I also am aware that there's a new idea about sustainability and, you
know, we've all sat here for hours and hours listening to wells that are
polluted or runoff in the ocean or whatever. Now there are these folks
who are trying to develop ways to grow produce and not have to use
maybe chemicals and fertilizers that cause damage later on. I think we
need to provide them with that opportunity, not to downplay the
importance of what is being done right now by our traditional farmers but
I think we have to be open to new ideas. In my own family my husband
has started a very large garden and he asked me the other day having met
Vince Mina, he said would you please ask Vince how I can get rid of the
snails in our garden because, you know, he didn't want to put fertilizer, I
mean chemicals on it. And Mr Mina was right away to suggest, you
know, some of kind of thing that's organic to put on the vegetables so they
don't get eaten by the snails. Now why not try to do that if we can? It
might help our traditional ag people too if they don't have to spend all this
money on chemicals. And they, they came and told us it's one of the
biggest problems they're having with agriculture is the cost of all the
chemicals they have to buy. So I think we ought to give this a chance and
that's why I'm in support of it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? So all in
favor of the motion as amended please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Seeing none, motion is carried. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So Maui Aloha Aina will have $25,200 as an item.
Next item is Maui, Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. The Chair's
recommendation is $100,000. Mr. Victorino, any questions for the
Department?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I guess the question I have for you,
Deidre, is they have continuously been cut as far as, what was their budget
in 2008?
MS. TEGARDEN: One twenty, from the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, 2008, last year.
MS. TEGARDEN: One twenty five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they, and, and this year, 2009?
MS. TEGARDEN: They asked for 125 and we recommended the, the cut.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To 100?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. You know they do a lot of good
programs and I, I've got to go find some, somewhere we can fmd the
money. But okay, thank you, Chair. That's, that's all I wanted to ask.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?

- 207 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support Chair's proposal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support Chair's proposal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'm going to be with Victorino in trying to
find money to restore this. Because I believe it's an important program,
an important process of saving our native plants and protecting those that
we are losing by propagating some stuff that only have one member in the
wildlife now. So for me it's very important and so somehow I got to find
some money too. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I want to support your
position, Chair, but I also wanted to clarify. Can I, can I ask -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the Department? I think in
testimony they presented that of the 100,000 that nearly 90 percent of this
was in salaries?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct. Actually the, the entire 125 goes for salaries
and -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, all of it.
MS. TEGARDEN: --TDI benefits. I had, TDI benefits.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and this always bothers me
because I know that they bring in a lot of people particularly, you know,
your AmeriCorps people and that has really added value. So I, I'm really
torn on this one, Mr. Chair. I, whatever the majority wants, if the majority

- 208 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

goes with your proposal fine, but I, it just really bothers me that I guess
the work that Mr. Sylva and some of the others who really support saving
seeds and promoting agriculture and many of our endangered plants,
there's nobody else that I really believe is doing that kind of work so it
troubles me. If we can find the extra money, fine. I, I would just say, you
know, this is one area that I would really love to be able to provide the
funding if we have it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I share the sentiments of my colleagues that are
concerned about the cut. I'm looking at the grants in this particular
session, section and I notice that this is a 20 percent cut for them, and, you
know, the guideline was ten and so it is kind of a double whammy. I
would be trying to restore at least half of the 25,000 but we'll see where it
goes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. At this time the Chair would like to
recommended the proposal of $100,000 for Maui Nui Botanical Gardens,
Inc.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Mateo, second by Member Nishiki.
All in favor of the motion please say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll have a roll call. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes aye. There's five ayes, four noes.
Motion is carried. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Kaho'ohalahala,
Molina,
Councilmember
Nishiki, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
Councilmember Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros, and
Victorino.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens, Inc. at $100,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see, Page 14. Maui Fest Hawaii, LLC. We'll
start with Member Molina, yeah. Any questions...oh, the Chair's
recommendation is $25,000. Mr. Molina -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question for Department? No?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Deidre, the, the explanation, I don't know if
you were listening before when I gave the explanation of what this
particular program does. But anyway, could you just in your own
understanding explain what this program does and that it does serve all of
the islands?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. It does serve all of the islands and it takes movies to
communities that may not otherwise be able to, free movies, to
communities that might not otherwise be able to go out and see them.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And when you had your festival on
Molokai do you have any idea, from your recollection, what the
attendance was?
MS. TEGARDEN: I don't remember what the attendance was. I, I know that it,
they had a very, they always have good attendance, you know, at their
events.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they go to Hana?
MS. TEGARDEN: They do, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they bring entertainment as well -MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that's my understanding.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: They do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When, when you make your recommendation
I'll just make an amendment and if it flies, it flies; if it doesn't, it doesn't.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA:
recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?

I'll support your

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chair would like to recommend
$25,000 for the Maui Fest Hawaii, LLC.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Molina. Any more discussion, Members? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Move to amend to add an additional
5,000 to keep their funding level at 30,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'll second for discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I think I made my arguments pretty
well before. But my fear was that after visiting with Mr. Burgmaier and
some of the other people because Sharon and Henry Allen(?) had also
contributed their time, and this supports not only the various communities
but there is a small stipend provided to the entertainers. And I'll tell you
right now it's very, very tough out there for entertainment. It's not, it's
not easy. So for me, you know, I just support this and particularly, you
know, with support from I guess or, you know, the radio station where
Boy Kanae used to work. I, I just really, I believe in this program and if it
flies, it flies, but I would like to see it continue on all islands. And it was
told to me that the, probably the one area that would have to go would be
Molokai and that was my biggest concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson, where are, where are you thinking
about getting the 5,000?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: MVB because they have a lot of events so I
would just propose, you know, taking 5,000 from MVB then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, all in favor of, or any more
discussion, Members? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah, no. I just want some
clarification. You said that they're, without the additional 5,000 that
Molokai would be taken out of the, that .. (inaudible). . .?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In, in my discussions with Mr. Burgmaier
because when they looked at their budget it's not quite as expensive to go
and take, you know, because I guess of the attendance. They would more
than likely because of the expense of getting to Molokai and, you know, a
lot of that, that's probably, I can't guarantee, you know, I mean they're
going to try to provide it, but I, I think it was going to be very tough for
them in this economic climate. So that would more than likely be the one
that would go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could we ask the Economic Development
Director for any comments?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Comments, Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: I did not have that conversation with Mr. Burgmaier. He
didn't, he didn't share that. However I do know that he does take the
event to all areas of our County and I don't have their budget in front of
me. I'm not exactly sure what portion goes to East Maui or to Molokai.
But when we made our decisions, again, I mean these decreases that we
recommended were very difficult to make, and, and the decreases by no
means are to insinuate that we don't think that the programs are good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion, Members? Member
Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Perhaps if the, if the Department
could follow up, because I would hate to vote on this one if there is any
consideration of any elimination. I believe the inclusion of Lanai and
Molokai in particular more or less justifies this kind of an expenditure
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because of the limitations--we have no theatres, we have no prime
entertainment. So if, if any, if there is any intention of leaving out the two
neighbor islands, you know, because of the shortage of funding, funding
then let's do them the favor of eliminating the total funding. So I suggest
we hang on, have the Department do the follow-up before we can, before
we make a decision on this one. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo and Member Johnson, if Molokai is a
concern you can add a proviso to this particular line item so that Molokai
get service and have Mr. Burgmeister [sic] work with OED on how he's
going to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And, and, you know, I have no
problem, I mean if it's a question of throwing out funding for the whole
entire thing I would just as soon say then I will withdraw my motion
because this is a very worthy program. And I will try to find on a personal
level contributions for the, to make up the difference so that no area gets
cut.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Mr., Chairman Mateo, if you could
make a proviso so that Molokai doesn't get left out.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Molokai and Lanai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Lanai. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion, Members? Okay. All in
favor of the amendment as proposed...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no. I withdrew it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you withdraw? Okay. The motion has been
withdrawn to amend. So at this time the Chair's recommendation of
$25,000 to support Maui Fest Hawaii, LLC. Motion?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair, would...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We have a motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We're already on...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Already had a motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Going back to the main motion all in favor of the main
motion...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It, it's just one motion.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Chairman, is this the time to add in our proviso
on this item prior to the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you have the language and you can provide it at this
time.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: The language should be simple enough so that both
Molokai and Lanai segments of their program must be included in the total
amount allocated to this organization.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second. Oh, you made, that's not, that's a
proviso . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry. Sorry. Sorry. Every body tired
. . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Back to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the motion with the proviso. All in favor of the
motion please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Motion is carried with nine ayes, zero noes.
VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to Maui Fest Hawaii L.L.0 at
$25,000.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Okay. Going down the line, East Maui
Cultural/Economic Development Program. Chair's recommendation is
$25,000. Any questions for the Department at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Department, on this particular line item here,
what has been the past history on how this is, benefit the East Maui
Cultural and Economic Programs?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. Through this line item we're
able to support cultural projects in East Maui. In the past the line item
amount has been $75,000, and actually it has been that since
Fiscal Year '05 when it was 50,000. I think when it was proviso'd this
fiscal year for 50,000 to go to Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike when the budget
deliberations were happening and, and we, and that 45,000 was taken out
because Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike was getting its own line item that's why the
amount went down to 25,000. But the history has been it's been a $75,000
line item since Fiscal Year '06.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And can you tell me maybe what events or
programs this has supported in the past as far as East Maui?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. We've done the Hana Canoe Club, we've done the, the
Keanae Hoolaulea, we have, or the item has done the, the kitchen, it has
done lots of different festivals, and also bringing students from East Maui
over to Central Maui for soccer tournaments, things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Department. Chair, can you
give me some rationale on the revision for 45,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, I believe you cut the amount by 45,000 because they
were funded 25,000 last year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Could she say that again please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, with the proviso last year from Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike,
East Maui Cultural and Economic Development Program had 25,000 in
Fiscal Year '09. So you had made a cut to make it consistent with
Fiscal Year '09.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and that was from the Mayor's
Office, right? If Staff can say? That money that was taken out of '09 to
bring it down to 25,000...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That was the Chair's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I'm sorry. Your recommendation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Somehow, I don't know how I can do
it, but I'm, I'm, you know, going to look for restoring that in any way I
can. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member
Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question. The different programs that you've
stated that this grant was provided for, are these going, in anyway going to
be eliminated now with the deduction?
MS. TEGARDEN: The way that the money in, in this area works is that we let
the community know that there is funding available, and then the
community organizations will apply for the funding. It's not necessarily
the same organizations every year, and it's, it's not as if, you know, we
give "x" amount or we award "x" amount every year to the same people.
It's, it's, you know, usually one-time projects.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no. I'm just trying to
understand what this, this program actually does, that's why I asked the
question, you know. It would seem to me it's cultural and economic
development programs so this would be supportive of anything that's
culturally related or anything that's going to create any kind of potential
economic development?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So then my, my other
question would be, not that it's pertinent here, but is there a Lanai
component or a East Lanai component to this?
MS. TEGARDEN: For, for...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there a East Maui component,
East Molokai component?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So is the Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Molokai.
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MS. TEGARDEN: There is a Molokai...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: There is a Molokai?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So there isn't a Lanai one
then?
MS. TEGARDEN: No. I, I don't know the history on -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --on why that is but there is one for East Maui and there's one
for Molokai and...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Well then I'd like to
amend the motion. No, I mean, I think it's an important, that's why I'm
trying to get some understanding, because if they're provided for and
they're going to be supportive in the kinds of programs that, that the
Member from East Maui is talking about. And then also the idea that
you'll be spurring any kind of economic development potential. Here's an
island that's in dire need of economic development, and of course we can
always be assured that cultural programs are maintained on the specific
islands and districts. . .(inaudible). . .so it's important. So, so I was just
wondering where the Lanai component is of, of this and, and why not for
the island of Lanai that is dire need of this kind of support?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, again, I don't know the history on that. These were already
in place when I, I took the position. I will say that when we don't have
pockets of money for a specific area for instance like Lanai and projects
do come up we have our small business promotion money, we have the
agricultural promotion money, we also have the money in there for the
special events programs. Also a lot of our HTA programs, well a number
of our HTA programs also help to fund Lanai projects. But I don't have a,
a good answer to your original question. I don't know why there's not a
Lanai economic or cultural development line item.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Am I going to be so bold as to
amend this motion? Okay. Right now, Chair, your recommendation is for
25,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It creates another problem here if
I were to suggest an amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before you start, in regards to the next item or two
items below, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, we increased that particular line item
from 45 to $35,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're getting 80,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. But coming back to your question.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, if I could, if I could just interject for a
moment. Several years ago Hana had their cultural fund and going
through this process after we had heard of Hana having funds available to
do economic development and cultural activities I asked for the creation of
the Molokai Cultural and Economic Development Fund. And the purpose
of that was to help us promote economic and cultural activities that are
small in scope, that at times when they only needed $500 or they needed
$1,000, the requirement of going through the bureaucratic red tape was,
was too overwhelming. This particular fund provided that vehicle for us
to provide those considerations for the small events and organizations on
my respective community. That was how the Molokai, actual program
started, Chairman. Just wanted to share that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair Then I
would like to amend your motion to include a Lanai Culture and
Economic Development Program at $25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Kaho' ohalahala, second by
Member Nishiki. Member Nishiki, discussion? . . . (end of tape 7A).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA.
I think it's a, it's a good thing
that it's in place. I was not aware that Lanai had not been given an
opportunity perhaps to, to have the same kind of opportunity. So in light
of getting an explanation on what the, the intent of this is for I think here's
a small community that could sorely use this kind of support that wouldn't
require them to have the kinds of requirements for large agencies or
organizations. So for that, for that reason I would like to give Lanai an
opportunity to have some funding to do these small kinds of projects that
are economic development related and culturally related.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, you know at our last budgeting
hearing on Lanai in speaking to the people there I was really amazed to the
fact that very little is being done in agriculture, and the reason is, is
because, as one member of the community told me, the major landowner
owns practically all the land. And I think you've got maybe Alberta
DeJetly that is the only one that's going there and is fortunate enough to
see her operation. But we've got to make inroads in Lanai, I think I heard
of the many members of the community really having to leave Lanai and,
and, and that is really sad. And it is because and I don't blame anyone but
I recognize how this island is run and it is run by one major landowner,
and we need to try to get people if they want a parcel of land to farm on.
And I don't know, Sol, whether Hawaiian Homes has any land there, but
this would at least give them the incentive now to perhaps as a community
try to find something that they can do. Even if it's sufficiency kind of
farming that means that they don't have to buy so much in very little that
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they have right now in, in jobs and always working for the hotel. So
anyway I think this is a good point to start with in helping Lanai. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. You know I want to
support Member Kaho' ohalahala's motion for the reason that, you know,
small areas like Molokai, Hana, and Lanai this little bit of funding really
helps the community, because I think all three areas are pretty similar in
that we have major landowners, we have a major employer. And so we
don't have the diversity for people to enjoy the little things as cultural
events and stuff unless there's a little funding to help that along. So that's
why, you know, for us in East Maui it's really important and I would
realize too that Molokai and Lanai also this is very important. Not to say
other areas of Maui are not important as far as these cultural and economic
development funds. But in Hana there's a lot of small businesses trying
to, you know, start up and then sometimes they need a little help to do
that. And so I, I'd like to support to see Lanai, you know, receive some
funding too. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala, can -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you clarify your amendment? Is this to replace -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I would like to -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --East Maui with Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --amend the motion to include a
Lanai...hold on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's a new line item that you want to present?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is it appropriate here or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not appropriate here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, please?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, there is a motion on the floor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To amend, yeah, yeah. The question is, is this
appropriate to be in this line item to remove East Maui or to create another
line item to add Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: My intention was to be clear that
the funding goes directly to the island of Lanai as it does go to Molokai
and as it does go to East Maui through the Office of Economic
Development.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr Chair, the way I heard the motion was that you
wanted this line item to read, for example, East Maui and Lanai
Cultural/Economic Development Program. So if that's not your intent
then I think that, that there should be a separate motion.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: A separate motion?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah. Because it would be, if your intent was to
have a separate line item I think that should be handled separately -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Separately. Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --aside from this one.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then, Chair, I'll withdraw my
amendment to the main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I withdraw my second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? So the
Chair's recommendation is $25,000. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There is a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was, it was done already.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There is a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Call for the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All in favor of the motion please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any oppose? Motion is carried with nine ayes, zero
noes. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho'ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to East Maui
Cultural/Economic Development Program at $25,000.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next item is Maui Community College for
Long Term Care Partnership. Questions, Members? Now we'll come
back as soon as we complete everything. Questions for the Department,
Members? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Questions for Maui Community College for Long Term
Care Partnership?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, we do have consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On that one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next item is Maui Community College.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair? Excuse me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I know we're, since you're on
the, the MCC amounts I had asked earlier, Chair, about some cumulative
amount for all of these and I, I did have a chance to, to get back to my
computer but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, the cumulative amount for MCC is 740,000. There is
however a grant to the University of Hawaii College of Tropical Ag and
Human Resources for 120 which I believe the program is at MCC but the
money is not directly for MCC.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then, and the seven...
MS. REVELS: Seven forty directly to MCC, that's 450,000 for nursing and
dental, 40,000 for cooperative education, and 250,000 for long-term care.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then is, is Sea Grant a
part of that? U.H.?
MS. REVELS: No, I don't believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's a separate?
MS. REVELS: It's a separate thing, the money does not go through MCC.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
NOTE: Pause.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, my, my only reason
for asking that I wanted us to also know that while we're looking at small
parcels along the way that we should also have a larger view on what that
total, you know, funding is, is to this and so that's the reason why I asked.
But we're at what 800, almost a million dollars in, in supplementary funds
to programs that are coming through the community college. So, so I
think we should look at that across the board and not just isolate them all,
because it would be much easier if we just look at a section that's Maui
Community College and then, but this is all coming under -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --all different departments-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --this is different programs -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and different programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that's the reason why it's like this here.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay. But anyway I, I
think we should not, be mindful of the fact that some of these things
should, should matter in terms of how much money we actually give to, to
one entity, you know, for their programs even though they're many and
across the board. So, so that was my only concern there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Coming back to Maui Community
College for Nursing and Dental Assistant Program. Members, any
questions for the Department? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This money's breakdown, and I'm not
talking about the sum total, just this program alone. What is this all
directly for tuition and other financial for educational purposes, or does
some of this go for operations like staffmg and all that?
MS. TEGARDEN: All of the above, a portion of it goes for salaries, some goes
for tuition, some of it goes for operations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So when you say salaries what portion of
this would go for salaries if I may ask?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, I want to say about 25 to 30 percent goes to salaries.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty five to 30 percent goes to salaries?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So in other words we're augmenting the
State institution by helping pay some salaries there? I mean that's -MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the simplest way to put it right? Okay.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And I, I, I believe that
portion for salaries was considerably higher, and, Mr. Chair, this is, this is
one of the programs that on my own submission of my budget that I cut.
And I believe I cut it down $250,000 because of the sheer responsibility in
meeting the TAT. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I want to support the Chair's
concern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I support your recommendation.
And I think one of the things that I want Members to focus on is that each
one of our communities depends on a medical care delivery system.
We're on the verge of getting our West Maui community hospital. We
have continuously imported nursing staff from the Philippines, from
Guam, from the mainland, wherever we could get it. And one of the
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reasons why we had a 300 student wait list for nursing was that we didn't
have enough teachers. So when your loved one is sitting there in a
hospital wondering whether they're going to get the care and attention that
they need and believe me I've been there with my husband and he had to
be shipped out of that hospital so that he could get rehabilitation therapy.
I don't think I feel comfortable reducing this because this is a life or death
situation. So for me even the oral care, the dental hygiene, some of our
citizens and the poorest of the poor, if this program did not exist they
would, they could actually die from some of the severe mouth infections
that some of these students see. So I totally support your
recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I support your recommendation, Chair. I too, you
know, feel very badly about the fact that we really need a lot of nurses and
it's been great to have more dental assistants. But I think 450's a fair
amount for this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support with reservations. Open to hearing
other considerations, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair's recommendation at this time is
to move forward on the funding for Maui Community College for Nursing
and Dental Assistant Programs, net appropriation of $450,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Johnson, second by Member
Medeiros. Any more discussion, Members? All in favor of the motion
please say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aye.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Aye with reservations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye with reservations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No with reservations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The motion is carried with six ayes, three
noes, Member Victorino, Member Mateo, Member Molina. Motion
carried.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho'ohalahala, Medeiros, Nishiki, and Chair
Pontanilla.
Councilmember Molina, Victorino, and
Vice-Chair Mateo.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to Maui Community College
for Nursing and Dental Assistant Program at $450,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one is on Page 15, Maui Economic
Opportunity, Inc. for Microprise [sic] Program. The Chair's
recommendation is $200,000. Members, any questions for OED at this
time? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support your...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just one question, Chair, for the Department.
So when we see or, or maybe for you, Chair, 200,000 Mayor and 200,000
Council. The 200,000 comes from the Mayor's executive budget that was
handed to us on March 15 th ? Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so you're concurring with that amount?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'll support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is the one when you make the motion I'll
make the amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I will, I want to help Member Johnson with an
amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, at this time the Chair's
recommendation for Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Microprise [sic] Program is $200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Molina. Members, any discussion? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, move to amend to add 50,000
to the 200,000 and that would come from MVB.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There's no second. I don't know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. There's no second. Okay. Thank you. Motion
dies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to try another amendment. I'd like to
increase this by $15,000, and the part that I have a problem with was
taking the $50,000 from MVB. I think that we can find that money
someplace, I'm not sure, it's not a big deal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can come...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We can come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well we can move on this motion and, and if there is
any, can we come back? No?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, once you vote you would have to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What's your amendment, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to, I move to amend the amount that
you're suggesting by adding another $15,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any second?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any discussion, Members? Chair would like to
know where you -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chairman, question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --going get the $15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Oh, I'm sorry. I was going to ask
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I thought my understanding was if we do an
amendment that changes the amounts that we would have to say where
that money is coming from.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. It become...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that true or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

It becomes an unbalanced budget

. . .(inaudible). . .

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So my question is...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I want to keep it balanced.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So we have to say where the money's
coming from -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --if we recommend an addition?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well then I'll say it, I'd like to take it out of real
property tax, an increase somewhere, somehow.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, you heard where the
money is coming from. For the Chair, the Chair would like to provide his
comments. I will not support any increase in the real property tax. So at
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this time the Chair would like to call for the vote, or is there any more
discussion on the amendment at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are there any other areas where we, you
know, like I guess our insurance. 'Cause I think you put in additional
money into the insurance as a temporary holding place. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's not a temporary . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well I know but I mean we don't know
what's going to happen, so that was one of the areas with, with regard to
moving money in and out. If Member Baisa would propose maybe taking
the money from that area it might help some of the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where? Where?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's from Self Insurance program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, the Chair...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair had come out with some savings and, and we
know Self Insurance, Self Insurance is an important area that we need to
increase the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I know in previous meetings, budget meetings
we've been taking money out of the Self Insurance. But our Self
Insurance money, number is so small that I'm afraid that, you know, if
anything happened to the County, you know, will that money be enough to
protect this County.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have a question. If we were to take it out
of something that we already approved earlier, from another fund that we
approved earlier, that's inappropriate?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's very inappropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, just asking. I'm asking the
question, you know, so, thank you. I just wanted to know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, Chair is going to call for the
motion on the amendment at this time. All in favor of the amendment
please say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. All Members that is opposed to the motion
please say no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion dies, with two ayes and seven noes.
Motion dies.
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VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Baisa, and Johnson.
Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala, Medeiros,
Molina, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo,
and Chair Pontanilla..
None.
None.
None.

MOTION FAILED.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If this fails can we try one more time with another
idea? We'll use your idea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What was my idea?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Taking, we got to get it somewhere.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, back to the main motion. All in favor
of the main motion as...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's not amended, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, not amendment, not amended. But the motion is to
move $200,000 for Micro [sic] Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Microprise [sic] Program. All in favor of that motion please say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to Maui Economic
Opportunity Inc. for Microenterprise Program at
$200,000.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the Chair is going to call for a ten minute
recess.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been a long day. So this meeting is in recess till
7:40. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

7:30 p.m.
7:42 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, the next item is on Page 15, Maui
Food Technology Center, Inc. The Chair's recommendation is $35,000.
We have the Department here if you have any questions. Questions start
with Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm sorry, Chair. Where were we again? I
apologize.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Page 15.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Fifteen. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second one, Maui Food Technology.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, Maui Food Technology. No questions at
this time, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. You know when this entity
came forward and testified, in the testimony given they talked about their
program and how they were assessing fees to anyone interested in, in their
service and, and quite substantial fees. And, and so I had a question about
why this particular entity is being supported when it in its own way is
almost to me a full-on business that is self sufficient in its own processes
of, you know, conducting a service and, and having people pay quite a
large amount of money for the service?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. When this entity first came to us, they, they are a
startup organization, they are a non-profit agency. They do provide a
service to our individuals in the community who are interested in getting
into this food and value-added market. Their overall budget consists of
both the County funding as well as the fees that they charge, and there is
no other organization, no other non-profit organization that does this sort
of, this sort of work in the State. And they base their fees on, you know,
they wanted to make sure that they are being competitive with other
similar agencies, private agencies. But, you know, when we look at
agencies becoming self-sustaining we do look at, you know, what other
funding sources they are getting in. So we felt that it was a, it's a valued
organization, they're providing a good service, we were helping them, you
know, get set up, and the fact that they are charging fees and making their
own money we also thought was, was good. Because that means that they
are one step closer to becoming self-sustaining and as, as the years have
gone on we have provided less and less funding.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And I believe we asked
the testifier to provide information on their operations and was any of that
provided?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, I don't remember seeing it but I'm not 100 percent
certain. If you could give me a couple minutes to look just to confirm.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Any more questions? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well I'm trying to understand
because I think he was a little unclear in his testimony when he came
before us. And I believe that we asked to find out what his total
operations were like. . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Staff is trying to fmd out right now.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and -CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the reason I'm asking these
question is because I think if this is an entity that's doing fairly well and is
ready to fledge then this is one area that perhaps we might call it a success
if, if that's in fact what, what is happening. That's why I think asking for
that kind of information was something that I wanted to get some
understanding of.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I have here a correspondence that we received
and all of the, all of you must have a copy of this. Dated April the
10 th , 2009 and it says "Aloha, Council Members: Responding to a request
during recent testimony delivered by our food scientist Eric Wilson, we
are enclosing our 2009 cash flow projections for your review.
Additionally the following is a list of our funders: Economic
Development Administration, Department of Commerce; Tri-Isle, Inc.;
County of Maui Office of Economic Development. We also receive
revenues from a growing list of clients for our food science laboratory
services that include Coffees of Hawaii, LLC; Flavor Waves, Inc.; Pacific
Product Development Company. Most importantly, we have been blessed
with a hands-on board of directors that have contributed thousands of
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in-kind hours of time and expertise to assure MFTC accomplishes its goals
and mission. These hard working members include Mike Abrams,
President, Flavor West Aid...Ways; Jeanne Skog, President and CEO,
MEDB; Jeff Bennett, President, Digital Splash; Alexa Betts Basinger,
Program Director MEDB; Chris Speere, Administrator, Maui Culinary
Academy, MCC; Luana Mahi, President, Hawaiian Isles Unlimited, LLC;
Susan Teton Campbell, President, Chef, Chef Teton. Mahalo, Mike
Abrams, Chairman of the Board."
NOTE: Pause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: While Mr. Kaho'ohalahala reads his letter, Member
Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman And for the
Department first of all I'd like to know when did we start funding this line
item?
MS. TEGARDEN: It would be last fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so -MS. TEGARDEN: So Fiscal Year '08.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --this is the second fiscal?
MS. TEGARDEN: The Fiscal Year '09 is the second and -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, so...
MS. TEGARDEN: --what we're proposing...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We're looking at the third?
MS. TEGARDEN: ...in '10. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. What part of this funding goes to
salaries if any?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, of the 35,000 that we're proposing for Fiscal Year '10, I
would say that 17 to 20 percent of it goes for, actually 20 to 25 percent
goes to salaries. What they are hoping to utilize the funding for, for
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Fiscal Year '10 is more of a marketing, more of a marketing effort. And
also they're looking at bringing five new valued-added Maui nui
agricultural products to market.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And are you, I'm sorry, are you done?
MS. TEGARDEN: Sorry. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are you aware of what their total revenues
were if any?
MS. TEGARDEN: We, actually the grant for Fiscal Year '09 has just recently
been encumbered, so we have not been able to see all the reports yet so I, I
don't have that information.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So does that mean if they have other funding
sources the Department is not made aware of that?
MS. TEGARDEN: We will be made aware of it. I know that they have their,
their fees, they are looking at going after some different grants. But as I
said their, their Fiscal Year '09 grant was only recently encumbered so we
haven't gotten to their reports.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Fiscal Year 2008?

Is there any records of their

MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. And again that was County, that was primarily County
funding. That was the first year, it was $100,000 if I am, if I'm correct.
And that went primarily for salaries, getting them set up, supplies,
equipment, things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And so what has been, I think you
said it but if you can briefly summarize. What has been the benefit
. . .(end of tape 7B). . . from this program?
MS. TEGARDEN: Again they, they work with individuals, a lot of students in
our community, who are looking to get more involved with valued-added
products, doing their own, they started doing their own recipes. For
instance they have, one of their services is, is actually recipe formulation
so working with individuals who perhaps want to become chefs or again
sell their, sell their products. They, they help with recipe formulation.
They also do nutritional analysis, they do testing services. So it's a really
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good benefit if you are in the area of food and beverage and you're
interested in -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And -MS. TEGARDEN: --agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --they, they charge a fee for people to be part
of this program or request that kind of information from them?
MS. TEGARDEN: They do. And they have, each, it depends on the service that
you're going in for. It's, it's a tiered structure. Some of the fees I know
for the nutritional analysis go from, go from about 200 to $250 and I'm
not sure of all of the other fee structures.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And finally do we know if there are
for-profit entities doing the same thing?
MS. TEGARDEN: There are for-profit entities in Honolulu, a lot on the
mainland that do the same kind of service, you know, help you with recipe
formulation, help you with nutritional analysis. Their fees are a bit higher
so there is definitely a benefit of, you know, having it here. I also want to
stress that if you are an individual who is going to this organization for
their services you have to show that you are coming with Maui products.
You know, so they, they want to make sure that your recipes include and
are potentially Maui grown.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Department. Appreciate that
information. Thank you, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What was the second year funding?
MS. TEGARDEN: The second year funding was 70, 75 and that was primarily
for community outreach and partnership development with the food
producers, the farmers, and educators.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then the third year request was how much?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thirty five thousand.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's all they ask?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I share the same concerns
that Member Kaho' ohalahala has, and I think at this particular time and
the last number of years they have, they have virtually progressed,
virtually in accordance to, I guess, their own timetables. Because they had
now have reached the point where they are able to charge for consultant
services. And they are rather successful at this time and we have heard the
representatives' testimony before us and we have also heard of MEDB's
support of this particular entity as well. I believe it's time to look at the
removal of these funds and allow this entity to pursue their own business
objectives at this time, because they are in fact a successful product of the,
the program. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everything has been said and I have to
concur with my Members Nishiki, Kaho'ohalahala and the rest that maybe
it's time, maybe it's time to let them go. I think they've progressed so,
and we could surely use that for our Lanai development. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Ko...Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ka.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ka. What's the other?
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's that time of the evening.
Chair, then is it appropriate then to make a motion at this time?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair is going make his recommendation and, and,
you know, so if you ready for the recommendation I'm ready to give it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. The Chair's recommendation is to
fund Maui Food Technology Center, Inc., net appropriation of $35,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Move by Member Johnson, second by Member Baisa.
Any discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I would like to amend the
motion to remove the Maui Food Technology Center and insert the Lanai
Culture and Economic Development Program.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Moved by Member Kaho' ohalahala,
second by Member Nishiki. Any discussion, Members? Seeing none, all
in favor of the amendment please signify by saying aye.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion. Members, any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The noes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Oh, any noes?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried with six ayes, three noes, Member
Pontanilla, Member Johnson. Member Baisa? No?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I said no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Member Molina. Thank you. So the
ayes have it, 6-3. Again voting no, Member Pontanilla, Member Johnson,
Member Molina. Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Kaho' ohalahala,
Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, and Vice-Chair
Mateo.
Councilmember Johnson, Molina, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to the main motion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion as amended.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I said no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No I thought I said yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, you know, only because I
think that there should remain some money in this Food Technology
Program I would have been in favor if the amendment had been to remove
a certain portion of it, but to take all of it I just, you know, it's very
difficult when this late in the game and it's only a month away. If they
have done budget preparation it means your whole program is going go
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and, you know, I, I just think it's very difficult. And they're probably
struggling, maybe they won't get as many people that are looking at their
services this year, and because I think that there's very few places where
you could actually go as a small business person to get that information.
It's so rare. I, I don't know of anybody else that really does that kind of
service where you could actually have your food analysis and, you know,
if you have to list on your packaging what the carbs are and, you know, all
the information that's required. These small businesses don't have
anywhere to go now and that is, I don't know that they did the best job in
presenting what they do, but I know that small businesses rely on them,
and it may be some of those very small businesses on Lanai that would
come to them for that information. So I just think one shouldn't be
sacrificed at the price of the other. So that, that's my fundamental
problem. I totally support what Mr. Kaho'ohalahala is trying to do but not
at the expense of a program that is so unique that we don't have that kind
of service. And if people can't pay for it and if they can't avail themselves
of that and a lot of businesses are hurting already, I just don't want them to
hurt anymore. So that's why I support your recommendation, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I, I too
voted no for, along the same lines as Member Johnson. Senator [sic]
Kaho'ohalahala, Member Kaho'ohalahala's recommendation, promoted
him
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So I was looking at an adjusted figure
downwards like maybe half, 17,000-plus and that other rest of that money
either we save it or give it to some other entity. But anyway I just wanted
to state that for the record and I'll, and I'll support the will of the majority
for the motion on the floor. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. I have a question before we go any further.
How do these people survive? They can't be surviving on 35, I mean, on,
on and even $75,000. They must have income from someplace.
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MS. TEGARDEN: They do. They do have their service fees that they charge and
they are actively looking for other grant opportunities.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't understand their total financial picture,
we don't have a budget of their operation?
MS. TEGARDEN: And I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We do? It's coming. Thank you, Chair I need a
minute.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: While she's looking at that, I
want to speak toward advocating for the motion as amended and, and I
think it's clear why we want to put in place a line item for Lanai's Cultural
and Economic Development Program. And, and again the question is
going to come where is the source of funding and so while I'm looking at
this particular line item there are other things that I think that they have
also in their favor. One is that they have seated on their board of directors
the Maui Economic Development Board and that might be a source of
funding for them. They also may continue to, to look at the Office of
Economic Development for ag, for promotions in funding in that, that
particular line item that's under the, the, the Director here. So it's not
coming without some thought about why eliminating this line item and
what would be left for that entity. It has in its favor a process of which is
potentially sustainable in their business, and I think added to that is other
resources of funding that they can seek through MEDB, through the Office
of Economic Development that will help them to make up this, this area
of, of need should they want to continue. So it's not without some thought
about what would be left for this entity. So I would hope that that would
be areas that they could continue to pursue and beyond, they don't have to
just stay within just those two entities. But they have members that are
part of their organization that are also potential seekers of funding sources
as well. So I would like to suggest that they consider those as well. So,
but in light of that this will help the Lanai opportunity to begin, and, and
that's why I offered the amendment and I want to support the amendment
as, as passed.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was trying to determine by looking at this what
they actually need to survive and what they raise in terms of fees. But
we're looking at a budget that's based on the 2009 grant of 70,000 and
them raising $28,500 in fees so a budget of 98,500. So I have to assume if
they're asking for 35,000 this year that they have been able to garner more
fees or some other grant or something to balance their budget. We gave a
grant to, was it Hana for Economic Development? And how much was
that? Twenty five.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty five.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And Molokai has 25 too?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: That's 135, that also includes part of the operations -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Kuhao.
MS. TEGARDEN: --for our Kuhao Business Center.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. I was trying to see if there was a more
equitable figure, if the $35,000 was an issue. But it's another one of those
tough decisions we're making. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. You know I, I support the
Maui Food Technology Center, Incorporated and that's the reason why the
Chair made that recommendation. But the amendment which calls for
removing the $35,000 and in its place to have that item go to the Lanai
Cultural/Economic Development prior to the, during our discussion on the
East Maui cultural, the request was for $25,000. So as far as the maker or,
or the motion we're going to be moving $35,000 to the Lanai
Cultural/Economic Development Company or Development. So,
Members, back to the main motion. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would make an amendment to leave 10,000
into the Food Technology Center with the 25 going to the Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Moved by Member Johnson, second by
Member Molina. Members, any more discussion on the amendment?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It leaves, it leaves an equal amount which was
I guess the original proposal where 25 is going to Hana, 25 would be
going to Lanai and it leaves a little bit of money left to pay electric or
whatever for, for that entity. So -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you know at least that way it, I mean we're
going to try.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? The
amendment...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair I have a different
recollection of what Member Kaho' ohalahala said. He was talking about
the East Maui line item, mentioning that, you know, we had 25,000. I
don't recall him asking that Lanai be considered for 25,000 only and I just
wanted to bring that up because that's what I heard.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I thought I heard $25,000. Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. No, Chair, I don't
remember saying that 25 would be because what we were looking at was
East Maui. Later on I found that Molokai had 135 so I'm trying to see
what is the, what is the, the preferred amount. So I just looked at this
particular item because you would have asked me where was the funding
going to come from and I said okay I'm going to find a place where I can
perhaps ask for funding. If not here it'll be somewhere else. But it
seemed that there's, there's no real fixed amount of 25 that I understand
anywhere except that that was what was reflected in the remaining
amounts that you had left for Hana because of taking out a portion for
another program. You know so, so that amount would have been at 70,
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you know, if you had left it intact. So again, so is it 135, is it 70, is it 25 or
35? I'm just looking at an item here that has a number that's 35 and that's
why . . . (inaudible). . . You know so just to clarify that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair is going to support the
amendment as proposed by Member Johnson. Members, any more
discussion? All in favor of the amendment please say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aye. Noes?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes aye. Motion is denied with five
[sic] ayes and four [sic] noes.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Baisa, Johnson, Molina, and
Chair Pontanilla.
Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala, Medeiros,
Nishiki, Victorino, and Vice-Chair Mateo.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion as amended. Member
Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You know I want to speak again just
because I've, going over the Lanai I was really impacted by what is not
occurring there. All the construction has been shut down. When we went
to the hotel up near in the mountain they were running single digit, single
digit. Now listen to this, these are high-end hotels that supposedly the
very rich can come and enjoy, but when you don't see them coming that
tells you something about the state of the economy nationally What even
hurt me more is I was at the airport when this young lady came and said,
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and even worse than that, Nishiki, is these people that are coming from
outer islands and coming and ruining and scooping up all of our fish and I
see them taking them home in coolers. I think that Molokai went through
that and thank God through some vigilantes, people that felt strongly
towards the culture and toward self sufficiency, not having outsiders come
and ruin their food chain I think that this also may be an area that the
money could be spent to trying to protect their resources where they can
get food, because a lot of them are not working or have had their hours
cut. So to me just this amount, a small amount may be a blessing to the
people of Lanai to whereby they can start not having to shudder about
perhaps having to leave the island because there is nothing left and that's
the reality. People are leaving Lanai. And to me this money I hope will
help them in a small way. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? If not, the
Chair is going to call for the motion as amended. All in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes? Motion is carried with nine ayes and zero
noes.
VOTE:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember
Baisa,
Johnson,
Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros, Molina, Nishiki,
Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair
Pontanilla.
None.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next item is Grants to Maui Visitors Bureau for
Visitor Industry. The Chair's recommended is $3,300,000. Members, we
do have Economic Development here if there's any questions. Member
Victorino, if you have?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: If the Department can tell us what their total, total
operation budget is, the County's plus the State funds?
MS. TEGARDEN: It comes to nearly 7 million.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, this is one item that I have
some concerns about, and I guess my concerns have to do with whether or
not we want to continue, you know, program in a direction that I know
that you have made in your own comments, Director, as top of mind. But
at the same time I want to make some comparisons with the direction that
I'm trying to see if this County would be able to also give some
consideration and that's the idea that we need to produce our own food.
And when you look at this industry that right now for food production
where I mentioned that 90 percent of our food is imported to the State of
Hawaii at a cost of $4 billion a year. That it's, it's very serious that we
don't think about how we're going to take of our own islands in Hawaii
when 90 percent of our food is coming from a farmer that is somewhere
else in the world and that we're willing to spend that extra dollar to pay
the farmer from afar than trying to consider the importance of paying a
farmer right here on our own island. So having those two areas of, of
concern that are major I think for us that looking at tourist industry has
been what the State has accepted as our main economic engine. And it is
this industry that I believe that we've spent very little time trying to make
a nexus between what has driven the cost of living here in Hawaii, what
has driven the cost of infrastructural development, what has driven the
cost of overpopulation, what has driven the cost of housing, and what has
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driven the cost of food for that matter or even fuel. That there needs to be
a nexus that's drawn with this, this industry. And if we don't come to
acknowledge that then we will continue to say that because it's an industry
that we accept and that it's an industry that we want to support and, and
keep top of mind. Because it's a thing that we're most familiar now. And
not spend any more or give any more attention to another industry that
would be one that would produce and sustain us in our food development.
And if we could turn that figure around of even 10 percent of $4 billion
that we're talking about here an opportunity to create an economic engine
within our own islands where the money stays home. Most of our, our
monies are being spent elsewhere in the tourist industry and most of those
that are, are corporate hotel entities aren't based here in Hawaii. So at the
end of the day while we've maintained the cost of employees which is
going down, we also understand that our employees are not at the highest
levels of, of income. So when we talk about quality of life and we talk
about good living wages, here's an industry that we cannot say has
provided all of that, because even on Lanai alone when they worked
within an industry that provides this kind of wages they ended up having
to do two or three jobs to make ends meet. So I just think that it's time for
us to make some conscious decisions about where to redirect some of our
resources, and this is the, I think, the reason why I raise this as whether or
not I want to continue to keep pouring all these kinds of funding and, and
dollars that we have put in an industry. And, and I want to help to redirect
some of that so I, I would say if we could take a portion of the funding that
we put in this industry and put it back into the development of another
economic engine in food development within our own islands. And the
education of why this needs to be done and a realization that it comes with
our need to understand our land and our water that here's an economy that
could be as viable as this industry. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got a question for OED?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. In the, in the tourism
industry, just making comparisons, do we know what we bring back or
we, we get as a return for our investment right now?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. Thank you for that question and, and, and for your
thoughts. You know the visitors last year spent $3.6 billion that they left
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here in our Maui County community. They've paid $80 million towards
real property tax which turns out to be about three point, which is
40 percent, sorry, of our real property tax revenue. I understand your
thoughts regarding needing to diversify and making sure that our island is
self sustaining, and I think that when you look at the other areas of our
budget we do fund agriculture, we fund high tech, we fund these different
areas that we hope will soon be able to step up to the plate and provide the
jobs that the visitor industry provides. You know chefs at the hotels,
many, many of the chefs as we heard at the meetings that you convened a,
a few Saturdays ago, if they aren't currently using local product they want
to use local product. So I think that a lot of the chefs at the hotels are very
aware of the fact that they need to, to buy locally, and we do have a lot of
community gardens that are starting out there. And I, I think that the,
what you're saying is that the timing is, is right, everyone is very
conscientious about making sure that, you know, we aren't importing
90 percent of our food. But I don't think that necessarily by taking money
away from the Visitors Bureau is necessarily going to solve all of those
other issues right away, and while we need to continue to focus on those
issues at the same time we need to continue providing the jobs for our
residents so that we don't see more job losses, so that we don't see
businesses close down. So it's a, it's a very difficult balance and, you
know, what is the, what is the right answer? But I think that especially for
our office, you know, we really look at being able to support the
environment, support high tech, support the agricultural area so that we do
become more self sufficient. At the same time support the visitors
industry because that is what is supporting our residents. And agriculture,
knowing there's a lot of ag tourism, our farmers have been benefiting from
value-added products and being able to sell their value-added products to
visitors as well as residents. But it's, you know, it's, it's, we can't, we can
no longer look at things in, in just these, these specific areas. Everything
is so dependent on, on one another and, and right now our community and
our economy is dependent upon the visitor industry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I mean just this, just that
comment alone when you're saying that we can't be so dependent on one
specific entity or, or industry. I think and I agree with you about finding
some balance but I think it's, it's been an economy that's been predicated
on this as being top of mind. So there is an imbalance right now 'cause if
you look at the amount of dollars that we put in this industry and compare
them perhaps to, to agriculture then could we say the same for agriculture
as we have for, for this particular industry?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I think that we do keep our agriculture top of mind as well. I
know that a lot of the issues that the, some of the farmers are facing is that
they, they can't find the people to, you know, work in, work in that, work
in that area. But, you know, again we're working with new programs, Ag
in the Classroom, Educate the Educator, and while these industries are
certainly moving up they're still dependent, they're also dependent on a
healthy visitor industry. Because it's the visitors that come and spend the
$3.6 billion in the community that, you know, buys these products and
allows these, you know, allows us to, you know, continue making our
economy, economy run. So I understand it's a very, very fine line and I, I
hear what you're saying, and that's why, as I said before, I love the office
that I work in because we are able to support so many fantastic
organizations, agriculture, self sustainability, community gardens.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I know that the Chair has
made, made a recommendation to reduce the funding and I would be
supportive of that direction, but I would like to think that the reduction is
going to be moving in other areas. And in this case that's why I've been
trying to, Chair, find directions that are going to help in, in development or
economic development that's not necessarily directly linked to tourism as
an economic, you know, base. So it's, it's trying to . . . (end of tape 8A).. .
now and the question is when do we start? So I don't, I don't disagree
with you and I support the, the fact that you are trying to, to find balance
across the board. I just think that it's time for us to give other focus and
other direction rather than the engine that's been constantly fed for all of
these years because it's an industry that we have accepted as a State of
Hawaii and we trickle down. But I don't want to put all of my, my golden
eggs in that, that same basket, so to speak, and find other directions
because if we could turn around some of these, food could become a very
important direction not only for to sustain us but in fact could help to
develop an attraction that may be related to food, because we're such a
diverse community of people, our foods are very diverse. And here's an
area that has potential as well, so anyway, so I just think that it's, it's time
we make some conscious decisions, but it's based on some of the, the
understanding that if we choose this industry then we have to also accept
all of the consequences that come with this industry. And I don't believe
we've had a good conversation anywhere about what those consequences
are or have been. And today we're dealing with symptoms and we're
trying to resolve symptoms right now as we speak, and no one talks about
how it is related to an industry that we have supported. And that's, that's
the discussion I would like to have and then fmd other directions that we
can bring balance. So thank you, Chair
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, because, you know, of course
we look at this as an economic engine. If, you know, obviously the money
will be a severe loss from the transient accommodations tax if that is
indeed going. The, my understanding of the transient accommodations tax
was to fund many of the impacts that the visitor industry actually has on
our local community. Are you comfortable with the fact that there's no
park assessment paid on new, you know, hotel or timeshare properties,
that there's no traffic impact fees paid, that the Maui Bus services that we
provide and especially now since we've just had this mishap? While we
the County of Maui were performing a service, you know, to help the
industry we're more than likely going to get sued. Are you comfortable
with the fact that the revenues that we may not be getting from the
transient accommodations tax should come at the expense of many other
programs from within the County including some of your own Economic
Development programs?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. And of course there's, there's
no easy answer. The $22 million that the TAT has brought in, in the past,
you are correct, goes to our General Fund. It helps to offset the cost that
you were talking about as, as well as pay for helping to award the grants
that we do to the community. I guess I am worried about that of course,
I'm also worried about the stories that I hear of businesses closing, of
residents losing their jobs and not just businesses that, you know, are there
just for the, the tourists but for instance hair stylists who are having fewer
and fewer women coming in to get their hair done because they've been
laid off from, from the hotels. So the, the trickle down effect I think is, is
huge. I sort of look at the visitor industry as, as the, the umbrella that the
rest of our economy is, is standing under to be shaded from all the, the bad
things that are, are falling down. I don't know if that's the best analogy
but I guess at 8:30 it's okay. And not to be flippant or silly but I, I really
think that the, the value the visitors bring to our economy is something we
can't turn our backs on right now. And when you, when you talk about,
you know, visitors spending 3 6 billion here in the economy, you know, a
lot of that is spent at local small businesses, micro-businesses that get
their, that go through the MEO BDC Program. You know and for every
$100 that is spent locally at a local store that has a $45 recirculation value,
so that means that local owner is going to go purchase other products from
other local owners. You know so I'm not saying that all of the 3.6 billion
is spent only in local stores, but that's a, there's a good percentage of that.
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I, I think if we, if we, if we stop being top of mind we're going to lose
that, that best island in the world status, people are going to stop coming.
I mean every time you open a magazine, I was just reading one the other
day there's a, a 12-page beautiful, full-color spread on Puerto Rico. So we
have to maintain, we have to continue being out there, and I guess my
greatest fear is that if we take money away from the visitor industry our
residents are going to lose jobs and businesses are going to close. And
that's something that I would feel awful, you know, being a, being a part
of. So my main concern is making sure that our residents continue
keeping their jobs, our businesses stay open, and at the same time as, as
Councilmember Kaho' ohalahala stated make sure that we have other areas
where we are putting our funding to ensure that we keep Maui, Maui and
we become self sustaining so we don't have to import all of our food. So
I, that's why I was very happy with the, the budget that we presented,
because I think it really goes across all the, the sectors.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: As a comparative analysis, have you looked at
the total visitor counts from other counties, the actual capital that their
jurisdictions give within the State? And have you done a cost analysis, a
cost benefit analysis?
MS. TEGARDEN: We have done loose cost benefit analysis. Of course Maui
County is a very big supporter of our visitor industry and our Visitor
Bureau but as a result we continue to be the best island in the world. Also
when we have had tragedies in the past like 9/11 and, and, and some of the
other tragedies it has always been Maui County that comes back first, and
I think it's because of all of the, the funding and the, the push that we, you
know, keep out there so that people come back to us first.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I'm, I'm just trying to look at if Kauai
gave $2 million and their tourism is down 10 percent, and we gave
$4 million or $3.85 million and ours is down 15 percent. That's kind of
what I'm looking at because again if you're looking at bottom line, if
you're looking at performance, if you're looking at measurable outcomes I
want to see that the capital that we're giving, in comparison to what other
areas are giving or not giving, if the numbers are working. And so far I
have not seen that because in the statistics that I've seen reported in the
newspaper I'm not seeing the correlation. So that's why I'm asking the
question because if it's not working one way and if the $3.85 million that,
I think it's one of the highest, you know, amounts that have been given out
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Statewide to visitor bureaus that, you know, are in the various counties.,I
would expect to see what are the different things that we're doing to
combat some of the problems that we're having, airlift, different
marketing tactics, what is, what is our survey returns, what are they saying
in terms of visitor satisfaction, 'cause I haven't seen very good comments
in our local papers lately from the visitor industry or at least about, you
know, maybe the experiences that people are having. It's not directly the
result of MVB but it's all related. So that's what I'm looking for and I
don't know if you can give me that but...
MS. TEGARDEN: Well I, I don't have those numbers in front of me, and I, I
won't sit here and, and, you know, try to come up with any. I will say that
I think that the work that our Visitor Bureau does is exceptional. I've had
the opportunity to speak with coordinators, economic development
coordinators on the other islands and the visitor industries on the other
islands, and Maui County always, always is on top. And I think that's, I
think it's because we have a beautiful island, we have a beautiful
community, it's very full of aloha. You, of course, you know, can't please
all the people all the time and unfortunately there are negative situations. I
will say that when the Visitor Bureau or the Hotel Association gets those
kind of calls they're on it, they're on it right away. On occasions we try
to, you know, work with them to see what, what had happened. Again I
know that that's not really answering your question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and in, and I'm not going to put
you on the spot anymore, because I think that, you know, those are the
things, Mr. Chair, that I look for. And that's why I'll defmitely support
your reduction, because personally myself I think that just throwing
money at a problem does not always resolve the problem. We have some
core issues which Member Kaho'ohalahala alluded to, but also I don't see
anything unique or different. It's, if you keep doing the same thing you're
going to end up getting similar results and I don't, I don't see the new
airlines coming or, I mean, the airfares are going down but that, I, I don't
know if there's a correlation between that and what the Visitors Bureau is,
is doing. But I agree that in order to withstand the ups and downs and all
of the global impacts when we have tough economic times it's not wise to
continue to rely so heavily on, on one industry. I just think personally
having lived in an environment that was solely dependent on tourism,
there was no other industry, we had three incidents, you know, back to
back, we had no economy. It, we could have thrown all the money in the
world in advertising it wouldn't have made any difference. So my basic
concern is that the revenue when I look at even the, and visitor industry
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granted is people coming here and staying, right now the lion's share or I
think number seven in revenue generation from real property tax is
timeshare. They're number seven out of ten. The very highest which is
number ten, you know, I guess from one to ten that produces the highest
revenue 81.5 million, timeshare produces 24.415 million in real property
tax. I just don't know where we're going. And then if you look at the
transient accommodation tax, even if we do keep it, the percentage of
transient accommodation tax generated, Mr. Chair, by the timeshare
industry as opposed to the hotel industry, there's no comparison because
it's a completely different formula. And with all due respect to Mr. Ellis
earlier, I know what the numbers are because we've worked them. So we
have to pay and sustain all of these impacts locally, and it's getting harder
and harder and I agree that we have to look at the wage base. I would say
if the visitor industry feels that they're justified in maintaining the level, I
want to see a full blown study done by an independent and unbiased entity
to look at the analysis of revenue, the relationship between expenses, all of
the things, the socioeconomic impacts that was spoken about before by the
Planning Department. Because there are many impacts and they are not
being covered by the revenue. So I do support your lowering, I would go
even lower, but for the sake of moving this thing along I will go with your
recommendation, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What can I say after that? I, I'm concerned. I
have...ever since I've been here listened to this debate over whether or not
this is an appropriate thing for the County to do. I've heard both sides of
it and I just want to point out that, you know, this year is the first time that
we're proposing a huge reduction in this funding. In fact, it has crept up.
I remember it was 3,500 and then it went to the 3,850. If you start where
we started with the $3,850,000 and you look at what is being proposed at
the present time of $3,300,000 we're looking at essentially a 14.3 percent
cut at one whack. The fear that I have about that is just exactly what
we've all been talking about and that is the economic mess we're in where
we don't have jobs and things are closing down. And I recently was told
by one of the union people that there would be more layoffs at the hotels
coming very, very soon. So we'll be adding to the unemployment rolls
quickly. And I have a serious concern about making that big a cut in this
funding, because yes, we can justify it and we can say well we're not
getting the TAT and, you know, we can use it elsewhere and, you know,
we can easily justify it. But I don't know if in the long run when we look
back we're going to say was this the right thing to do or would it have
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been maybe a lesser cut or just investing one more time while we're in this
mess and see if it takes us out of it? Because, you know, we know that if
we continue to do what we're doing this year and nothing changes, we
defmitely will have to come up with some fix next year. I suggested that
we might want to slightly adjust the property tax so that we could take
care of some of these things, but, you know, everybody has decided they
don't want to do that. So I don't know where we're going but I am not
comfortable with this huge cut.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman You
know it's tough being on the end, 'cause I had about a half an hour
dissertation on this but I'm not going to take that long. So I, I really have
no questions for the Department and we've heard a lot from Ms. Vend, at
least for me, explaining her rationale for sustaining this level of funding.
And, Mr. Chair, with all due respect I, this is one of the few things that I
cannot support your recommendation with your $500,000 adjustment. I,
I'm in, in support of the Mayor's recommendation of 3.8 and, and mainly
being that I can appreciate what some of my other colleagues are saying
about possibly looking at changing our direction. But that's a long term
and change is a gradual thing and to change and make a shocking change
at this point in time might be hard for a lot of people especially right now.
I'm concerned about for the time being how do we get our economy back
on its feet. You know we've heard about all the foreclosures, people
losing jobs, and what happens to Maui island is certainly going to have an
impact on our sister islands too, Lanai, Molokai. You know so we have to
be very mindful of that. And, you know, we talk about golden eggs well,
you know, I'm worried about, you know, killing the golden goose and it's
been said to us before. And it's interesting because, you know, we've,
we've heard many testimony over the years from...well residents from
outside of the islands come up and say I came to visit Maui and I fell in
love, you've heard that many times. You know and they became residents
and, you know, we all have our opinions on that but it is what it is. We,
you know, we, it's called the spirit of aloha, I guess, yeah. So we all have
to live with one another and it's interesting some of these folks who have
said that ironically have their objections to the visitor industry, you know,
and it's maybe the thing that brought them here in the first place. But my,
my feeling, Mr Chair, we've heard it stated publicly that I believe
Ms. Reimann had mentioned to us, Ms. Reimann of the Maui Hotel and
Lodging Association that the industry is open to a real property tax
increase, albeit it was a broad, every property tax, every property
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classification. I'm not in favor of a broad increase on everybody, but if
this particular industry is open to an increase and this money is sorely
needed then well there's an old saying, Mr. Chairman, to make money you
got to spend money. So if this is very important to the MVB then I am
open to making an adjustment to the hotel and resort property
classification. I consulted with your staff. A 5 cent increase would
generate that 500,000, Mr. Chairman. So that's what, what I'm throwing
out there. And, you know, I had a chance to look all the CIP for our
various regions, you know, fire stations in Haiku, on Molokai; police
stations in Lanai and South Maui; tennis courts in West Maui and Kula;
park improvements in Hana. I mean these are great improvements for all
of our respective communities, but you wonder without the visitor
industry would these amenities in our various communities be possible,
you know, how much of a contribution that would make. So I just throw
that out for the Members consideration, Mr. Chairman, and whatever
happens, happens. But if we do get an additional cut we need to be real
careful and mindful of what we could be doing to ourselves. So I'll leave
it at that, Chairman, and I'll wait for your recommendation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Again, Members, this is
one difficult decision that this Chair had made in seven years, and looking
at the recommendations that were made by other Members, you know, I
think it is prudent that some reduction is, is due for the visitors industry.
Not due but, you know, based on the recommendations by some of you the
cuts were even much larger. So at this time the Chair's recommendation
for Maui Visitors Bureau for visitors industry is $3,300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Move by Member Johnson, second by Member
Kaho' ohalahala. Members, any more discussion? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And, yeah, just for a little bit,
I'm going to support the Chair's recommendation. I'm going to support
the Chair's recommendation because my budget proposal was one that
was rather deep. We are in unprecedented times in this County, and most
of us feel the need to protect the visitor industry. This is an important
segment of our community, but in difficult times, Mr. Chairman, we are
now choosing between what is important for County core services and the
rest of this community and our problem is trying to balance this off. Half
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a million dollars from a $7 million budget, Mr. Chairman, is a fair, is a fair
exchange in these very difficult times. We have in, in other prior years
increased this particular budget when we had the funds available. And I
just think that as we go through difficult times we are now in competition
with the world. Maui County does not have the kind of money we need to
compete with the world. We're going to have to continue on the status
quo at this particular time. I have all the confidence in the world in
Ms. Vend, she does an incredible job. But tough times, Mr. Chairman,
and I prefer seeing an equitable distribution between County core services,
the continuation of protecting our non-profit organizations as well as this
visitor industry. Thank you, Mr. Chairman I will be supporting your
proposal.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, you've heard a lot tonight and I do
admit most of them have some merit in some, in their minds, in my
Member minds and in the people's minds. But I also realize as Chair has
just mentioned we are in unprecedented times and, you know, nice term of
saying things are really whacky out there, plain and simple. None of us
know what the future holds. I think there's more uncertainty today than in
any other time that I can recall. Consumer confidence is at its lowest
level. People are not spending because they, they just don't know what to
expect. Auto industry is in shambles. So what makes the visitor industry
any better right now? I've been around, I was up in Philadelphia, that's
not a tourist center but they're hurting. Hotel I stayed in has been slow,
single digits. So, you know, you guys don't think that it's only here, it's
all over. Disney World, Disneyland, talked to a cousin that works there.
They've been down, they're putting unprecedented promotions,
reductions, cuts in entrance fees. So we're all facing a major problem
`cause people don't know what to expect, they're not spending money.
That's the bottom line. And we are really impacted because that has been
our economic engine. I reluctantly support your proposal, very reluctantly
and it's not because of you, Chair, but because of what I believe in. My
family has worked in the hotel industry, I have worked in the hotel
industry for many, many, many years. I've seen all the benefits and I've
seen the dark side. Not many people in this room have seen the dark side,
literally and figuratively. When you work security you see the dark side
of the visitor industry and I no go, I won't go any further than that. But I
also understood the benefits, it gave a lot of people opportunities. There
are many people out there today that own homes because they've worked
in the hotel industry, sometimes two and three jobs but they have always
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made it work. My wife and I made it work, Chair. We worked two jobs
for many years and yet was at our children's events, yet at the school PTA
present, you name it. I sacrificed many years like a lot of other people out
there and I'm not comparing nor complaining, I'm proud of what I've
done and I'm proud of what we've been able to accomplish. Today we all
face one major issue, the future, the future of change. Yes, we cannot do
as we did, we've got to do it differently. But to say that changing over
tonight, tomorrow, or next week to the food industry that's going to make
a big difference, well I beg to differ, everything takes time. We can set
courses, we can start, you know, working in that direction but we've got to
support what's here now. Because it's now we got to feed our people.
We've decimated the construction industry, we've decimated other
industries, because hey the economy went south and everything else went
with it. So we face the reality of today. The other issue that we are, we
are a product of our own success and now it's becoming a real inhibit.
That is the convention business. This island was one of the top convention
centers. Now because of what's out there, because of this TARP issue and
other like AIG and others have done. In the past three months, three and a
half months we've lost 11 major conventions, something of $55 million in
just what they knew was coming, hotel, food, meals, all of that stuff that
they knew, not all the other spending, 55 million. If you talking that
spending add another 25 million. In three months we've lost nearly
$75 million in just convention business and it's going to get worse,
because of this attitude that Hawaii's a resort so you can't have a
convention, you can't have business meetings in Hawaii because it's a
resort. Am I correct, Ms. Tegarden? Isn't that a prevalent attitude in the
industry around the nation today and the world? You can answer it.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So we're a product of our own
success and now we're having challenges with it. We're at a crossroad. I
will go with you because I believe some sacrifice needs to be made by all.
I am reluctant because I don't believe we should be taking this course.
But if this is the course we need for at least stability and getting the job
done right now so that we can move on into other issues then I'll go along
with it. But reluctantly I say the people of Maui County have worked real
hard all these years and it's off their backs we've had success and now we
need to continue to support them. So this is why I think even for the
visitor industry, and I love Teryl and I love what all they do, they've got to
help us help our people. So I reluctantly say I'll support your position, I'll
support your, your amount that you have set for the visitor industry, the
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Visitor Bureau this year and hope, and truly hope that all of us will
continue, including them, looking for alternatives and making the
substantial changes that will ensure the future of Maui County, this State
and our nation, it is our responsibility. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Chair
would like to make a final comment on this issue here. You know,
Members, for the last four days now, three days we've come to make hard
choices. This Chair had come to make very hard choices. When I
removed equipment that is required or needed by County government in
regards to supporting our various departments, removing those equipment
was a very hard choice. Removing road resurfacing was another hard
choice. Eliminating some expansion position was a very hard choice.
Removing funding for all of the vacancies was very hard choice.
Members, when we started we were faced with an $18 million gorilla. By
making all of these hard choices this Chair had submitted to the Members
of this Committee with a balanced budget. We made hard choices within
the County, we made hard choices within the non-profit sector, and, and,
and we're going to still be making hard choices, we're not completed yet.
So as, as my recommendation of $3 3 million, that was a very hard choice
for this Chairman, you know. And I understand all of the issues in regards
to our economic engine for Maui County. We need to take care that
before we even venture into different sustainable economic engines like
one of the Members had suggested earlier. So, Members, this is not easy
choices that we are making tonight . . . (end of tape 8B). . . needed to be
done. You know I feel sorry that I'm here sitting here and telling you this,
because any one of you could have been here making those hard choices.
But somebody had to do it. So, Members, the recommendation again by
the Chair is $3.3 million. We have a motion on the floor. Is there any
more discussion before the Chair calls for the question? Hearing none, all
in favor of the motion please aye.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any oppose?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion is carried with two noes, Member
Molina and Member Baisa. Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Johnson, Kaho' ohalahala,
Medeiros, Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo,
and Chair Pontanilla.
Councilmember Baisa and Molina.
None.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Budget and Finance Committee Chair's
recommendation relating to Maui Visitor Bureau for
Visitor Industry at $3,300,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. That concludes the review for all
of the unfinished items for OED. I want to thank you for being here this
evening. Members, we'll reconvene, not reconvene but we'll start again
tomorrow at 9 o'clock and, and I understand that Member Mateo will be
on Oahu as they take up the House Bill 1744 again. So, Members, this
meeting of April 21 st is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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ADJOURN: 8:55 p.m.
APPROVED:

JOSE 'H PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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